
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
__________________________________ 

 
Tuesday, 29 June 2010 at 7.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

*A Training Session for Members of the Committee will be held at 6:45pm prior to 
this meeting in meeting room M71. 

 
 

A G E N D A 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

ROOM M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Carlo Gibbs  
Vice Chair: Councillor Rabina Khan  
  
  
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Craig Aston 
Councillor Lutfa Begum 
Councillor Mizanur Rahman Chaudhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
 

Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Carlo Gibbs, Rabina Khan, 
Abdul Asad, Lutfa Begum and Mizanur 
Rahman Chaudhury) 
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Craig 
Aston) 
 

 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: Zoe.Folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 29 June 2010 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE - CHAIR   
 
 That Councillor Rabina Khan be elected Vice – Chair of the Audit Committee  for the 

Municipal Year 2010/11 . 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  3 - 12  
 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 

unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 30th March 2010.  
 

  

5. AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
AND MEMBERSHIP  

13 - 20  

6. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION 
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

  

6 .1 Annual Audit Letter 2008/09   21 - 36  
6 .2 Progress Report June 2010   37 - 50  
7. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS REPORTS 

FOR CONSIDERATION  
  

7 .1 Internal Audit Annual Report 2009/10   51 - 90  



7 .2 Annual Governance Statement 2009/10   91 - 114  
7 .3 Draft Statement of Accounts 2009/10 - To Follow     
7 .4 Treasury Management Activity for Period Ending 31 

May 2010   
115 - 130  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\7\AI00024700\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\7\AI00024700\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 30 MARCH 2010 
 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
Councillor Helal Abbas (Vice-Chair, in the 
Chair) 

(Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader, Liberal Democrat Group) 
Councillor Clair Hawkins  
Councillor David Snowdon  
  
Other Councillors Present: 
None.  
  

 
Officers Present: 
 
Kate Bingham – (Acting Service Head (Resources) Children 

Schools and Families) 
Jamie Blake – (Service Head of Public Realm, Communities 

Localities and Culture) 
Alan Finch – (Service Head, Corporate Finance, Resources) 
Abid Hussain – (Third Sector & External Funding Manager, 

Strategy and Performance) 
Minesh Jani – (Service Head, Risk Management) 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Tony Qayum – (Head of Audit Services, Internal Audit, 

Resources) 
Steve Vinall – (Service Manager, Deloittee & Touche) 
Les Warren – (Director of Finance and Resources, Tower 

Hamlets Homes) 
Caroline Chalklin – (Committee Officer, Chief Executives') 

 
 –  

 
 
 

COUNCILLOR ABBAS IN THE CHAIR 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Denise Jones. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Noted. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillors Abbas, Snowdon, Hawkins and Eaton declared a Personal 
interest in the agenda.  The declaration was made on the basis that the 
agenda contained references to Members’ Expenses, and Councillors Abbas, 
Snowdon, Hawkins and Eaton are affected by this. 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 15th 
December 2009 be approved. 
 
 
Mr Abid Hussein gave an update on the Working Neighbourhoods Fund 
(WNF).  The Cabinet had approved approximately £21 million, which are 
managed through Children, Schools & Families, Adult Health & Wellbeing and 
the overall management rests with the  Chief Executive’s Directorates. 
 
The Third Sector Team were scoping an exit strategy for November 2010 and 
all projects were asked to prepare for the ending of the fund.  From these, the 
projects were grouped into categories: 

• One off projects 
• Underperforming projects, with insufficient time to improve 
• Council run projects that require gap funding.  
• 3rd Sector projects; a strategy was being developed to work with other 

London boroughs and the flexible New Deal as well as looking for other 
funding opportunities.  

 
Evaluations were being procured for business cases for funders of projects in 
the future to study the 4,000 jobs that were created (in terms of what the jobs 
were ie full time, part time, sustainable etc). 
 
In response to Councillor Eaton, the mid-term evaluation would take place by 
mid- June, with the end of year evaluation by March 2011.  Mr Naylor said this 
was a work in progress and would be brought to a future meeting of the Audit 
Committee.  
 
In response to Councillor Eaton, there was concern that successful projects 
might be closed down, when there could be funding in the near future. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

4. AUDIT OPINION PLAN - LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
2009-10  
 

Page 4



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Mr Jon Hayes from the Audit Commission introduced the report, and 
highlighted leases as the biggest part of the audit and PFIs and the biggest 
audit risk.  
 
Mr Alan Finch said that he agreed with the risks identified in Table 1 (Specific 
risks pp 19-20). 
 
In response to Councillor Eaton’s question on the risks arising from failure to 
provide disclosure of senior officer’s remuneration, Mr Hayes said there were 
risks if there was failure to comply with disclosure; he would have to consider 
if this affected the audit. 
 
The Chair said that sensitivity was required about these matters. 
 
Mr Hayes said that the concern was just around officers pay, as this is a new 
requirement. 
 
Councillor Snowdon asked if the paper published by the Audit Commission on 
15th March 2010 on Payoffs for Senior Officers had any effect.  Mr Hayes said 
there was a need to be alert; he had used the example of the senior officer’s 
pay as a contribution to a national report. 
 
In response to Councillor Eaton’s question about the fees charged by the 
Audit Commission, Mr Hayes referred her to the fee letter contained in the 
Agenda for the June 2009 meeting of the Committee. 
 
In response to Councillor Eaton’s question about the most worrying risk, Mr 
Hayes said that good working papers were most important.  Mr Finch said that 
all the Council accounts are open to all; he will be bringing them to Audit 
Committee in June 2010. 
 
RESOLVED: That a report on the statement of accounts be brought to the 
next meeting. 
 
ACTION BY: Chris Naylor (Corporate Director of Resources) 
 
In response to a question about the accounts for 2008-09, Mr Hayes said that 
the risks were about par for all Council accounts.  Councillor Hawkins asked 
him to identify the riskiest areas, and Mr Hayes said fixed asset valuations in 
schools. He stated that the most significant issue identified during the audit 
had been the accounting treatment of schools.  Mr Naylor said that there was 
now a rigorous accounting timetable, which gives an opportunity to carryout 
quality assurance on the accounts.  The teams are focusing and acquiring 
discipline. 
 
RESOLVED:That the report be noted. 
 

5. AUDIT OPINION PLAN - LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
PENSION FUND 2009-10  
 

Page 5



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

The report was introduced by Mr Hayes, who said it showed the key topics for 
this year’s audit of the Council’s Pension Fund. 
 
Councillor Eaton said that there had been a failure to comply with 
recommended practice.  Mr Hayes said there had been a strengthening of 
quality assurance, and the closure programme for the 2009/10 accounts was 
on target.  Mr Naylor said that the errors were more in the Notes to the 
Accounts, rather than the accounts themselves. 
 

6. CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS - LONDON BOROUGH OF 
TOWER HAMLETS 2008-09  
 
The Certification of Claims and Returns Annual report was introduced by Mr 
Hayes, who explained that this only covered the claims and returns to 
Government departments were required to be audited.  Attempts were being 
made to rationalise the process; there were now only 11-12 claims, down from 
40.  The report highlighted similar numbers of errors and recommendations as 
other boroughs.  The Audit Commission was trying to raise standards across 
the board. 
 
Mr Finch commented that he had been disappointed that there had been 11 
recommendations, but last year the Grants Co-Ordination Officer had been 
promoted from this role, leaving a vacancy during the audit period.  The 
Council’s response was contained in the Action Plan, and the vacant post had 
been filled. 
 
Mr Naylor said that there had been a major reorganisation in Corporate 
Finance, and there was now a new team in place. 
 
Councillor Eaton said that Members look for improvement; was the Audit 
Commission concerned about the NDC funding.  Ms Milton explained that the 
losses were relatively small amounts, such as a few thousand pounds. 
 
Councillor Eaton said that this was a general problem in quality assurance, 
and asked why mistakes were being made.  Mr Finch responded that the 
preparation of the accounts was a big complicated process.  It was important 
that the accounts were checked.  The accounting process was being reviewed 
for efficiencies and effectiveness. 
 
In response to Councillor Eaton’s question about invalid expenditure (page 
49, para. 20), Mr Naylor responded that this came back to timetabling, and the 
interface between the finance community and the other parts of the Council.  
There was now much greater ownership of accounting practices at corporate 
management level. 
 
In response to Councillor Snowdon, Mr Hayes confirmed that 
Recommendation 1 ‘Respond to all audit queries within three working days, 
wherever possible.’ in the report was best practice.  Mr Naylor said it was best 
to have a single point of contact.    
 

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Councillor Hawkins asked what impact the improperly recorded expenditure 
had.  Mr Hayes said that the Government may claw back the funding for that 
expenditure; further, it expenditure is properly accounted for, there is less 
work for the Audit Commission and costs the Council less in fees, and makes 
a contribution to efficiency. 
 
The amount clawed back by the Government was £109,000 out of £220 
million in funding.  Mr Naylor said that the Housing Benefit Subsidy is 
enormous, and he was least concerned about this money clawed back.  The 
Housing Benefit Subsidy claim was so complex that most councils make 
errors.  There was a balance to be made between the investment in  risk 
management and the impact of the error rate. 
 
Mr Naylor said that an agency could have provided a temporary member of 
staff in the Grants Co-ordination role, but it might not have been of much 
benefit.  Mr Naylor anticipated improvement next year. 
 
Councillor Eaton said that she was concerned about detection of fraud, and 
also why the former Grants Co-ordination officer was not consulted as the 
person still worked for the Council. 
 
Noted. 
 
 
UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE REPORT DECEMBER 
2009-10  
 
The report was introduced by Mr Jani, who said that the Internal Audit team 
were on target to complete the Audit Plan.   Efforts were being made to bring 
the percentage of Substantial Assurances up, and there had been 
improvement, but more needed to be done.   
 
Councillor Eaton expressed concern that the Council might be subject to 
Judical Review over the legal processes for Child Protection.  Mr Jani 
responded that the audit had been requested by management as Legal 
Services were setting up something new.  Internal Audit had found that the 
financial infrastructure was there, but some of the administrative areas  that 
were not working, for example, social workers were not signing and dating 
reports. 
 
Councillor Eaton said that omitting dates and signatures could affect reaching 
targets, and this is very important. 
 
Councillor Eaton expressed concern about the variations in payments to the 
Council’s contractor for recycling, and this should by Nil Assurance.  Mr Jani 
said that this assessment was based on findings , and Members should also 
consider the number of recommendations.  Councillor Eaton said that the 
scale of the service meant that it needed to be right; there needed to be a 
formalised approach to holding contractors to account.  Mr Blake said that the 
contractor, Veolia, had many contracts; but there was now robust contract 

Page 7



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

management.  The variations were due to newly built properties, such as a 
block of flats and newly introduced services. 
 
In response to Councillor Snowdon, Mr Jani said he would report back on the 
last audit of Control and Monitoring of Parking Permits.   Mr Jones reported 
that approximately 220 parking permits had been legitimately acquired by non 
Tower Hamlets residents.  Mr Naylor said that the Council’s Parking Policy 
had allowed these people to acquire permits, and the Policy had now been 
changed to prevent this situation in future.   Mr Naylor confirmed that there 
was no connection with car-free developments. 
 
ACTION:   Mr Jani to report date of last audit of Control & Monitoring 
  of Parking Permits to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
In response to Councillor Snowdon, Mr Hayes said that he had seen some 
audits under Full Assurance.  Mr Naylor added that there had been some in 
Tower Hamlets. 
 
Councillor Hawkins said that there were many processes of administration 
and bureaucracy in the funding and managing of schools.  The Councillor 
expressed concern that the Nil Assurance audit of Langdon Park School 
might be followed by Nil Assurance audits of other schools, there needed to 
be training of school governors.    Ms Bingham said that the Children, Schools 
& Families Directorate used Internal Audit to assess the financial probity of 
schools; schools were encouraged to set up Service Level Agreements with 
the Council for provision of specialist accounting services, and the external 
providers used by schools were assessed by the Council to ensure they met 
the appropriate standards.  Forums exist for Governors and administrators, 
and the Council tried to target those who needed help.   
 
In response to Councillor Eaton’s question on the Council’s financial support 
for Tower Hamlets Homes (THH), in terms of the £ 500,000 overspend, Mr 
Warren said that THH was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, but was 
an arms length management organisation (ALMO).  THH has its own ‘Finance 
& Audit Committee’’.   Members could draw comfort from this.  The Ocean 
Estate is subject to a significant regeneration project with £200 m to be spend 
on demolition, rebuilding and sale of property.  This is not part of THH’s remit, 
so additional funding was required to reimburse THH for additional costs to 
support the programme, for example, dog patrols etc of empty properties. 
 
Mr Naylor said that all of this needed to be resolved by THH, but as a wholly 
owned subsidiary, final responsibility ends with the Council.  This would be 
managed through the client side of Development & Renewal (D & R), so 
scrutiny will not just be through the THH Board.   Mr Naylor said he was 
aware of the problem through the client side arrangement, and had been kept 
informed.  Councillor Eaton said that the ownership of security of the Ocean 
Estate project rested with D & R and THH, and £500,000 was a sizeable sum 
of money not to be managed..  Mr Naylor said this had only gone to Strategy 
& Development Committee in the previous fortnight; he would bring officers to 
the Committee to report on the situation. 
 

Page 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

In response to Councillor Eaton’s concern about where the £500,000 would 
come from, Mr Warren said that it was unsatisfactory that THH was going to 
the Council after the event; this could have been predicted.  Internal Audit are 
working on budget management of the potential overspend; the THH Finance 
& Audit Committee were also asking why this happened. 
 
Mr Naylor said he had written to the Chief Executive of THH asking for 
assurances that THH was going to reduce the overspend and ensure this did 
not happen in future.  D & R also needed to assume there were effective 
processes in place. 
 
RESOLVED:   That an update on the THH overspend be brought to the next 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
Councillor Hawkins said that part of the Ocean Estate was now safer to walk 
through.   Mr Naylor said that the reason the cost arose was to protect vacant 
properties from squatters and vandals.  The project was planned to a tight 
timetable.  Questions would need to be asked about risks in a project 
environment, rather than a day to day environment, as there will be many big 
projects in future, so that lessons could be learnt. 
 
Noted. 
 
 

8. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2010-11  
 
The report was introduced by Mr Jani, who highlighted the two strands flowing 
through the report:  

• How effective are the controls in place, and 
• The audit of the key financial processes 

 
Mr Jani said that the Audit Team were trying to reduce the number of days 
spent on similar processes, which would mean they could do more work 
elsewhere, and were working with colleagues across Directorates. 
 
Councillor Eaton asked  whether Mr Jani attended the Leaders Advisory 
Board (LAB) and Cabinet. Mr Jani responded that he attended LAB and 
Cabinet, but to present reports, not as an observer.  Mr Jani would consider if 
he should attend in the future.  Mr Naylor said he was Mr Jani’s eyes and ears 
on LAB and Cabinet, and there is a statutory conflict. 
 
Councillor Snowdon asked Mr Jani if he had sufficient resources to do his job 
effectively, Mr Jani responded positively but explained that there was always 
more that could be done, but sometimes additional audit input was not cost 
effective.  Mr Finch said that the effectiveness of Internal Audit was assessed 
by external audit.  Mr Jani added that Tower Hamlets took part in peer 
reviews with other councils and belonged to a benchmark club.   The new 
financial environment did impact, with strong financial controls, acute contract 
monitoring and value for money included.  Mr Jani said he had stronger links 
with colleagues on other councils, allowing sharing of ideas.  Mr Naylor said 
that the 2010-11 Financial Year was less of a problem than the 2011-12 

Page 9



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Financial Year, when there would be risk management on investment to save: 
work would be focused on ensuring nothing thwarts the process. 
 
Noted. 
 

9. ANNUAL ANTI-FRAUD PLAN 2010-11  
 
The report was introduced by Mr Qayum, who directed Members’ attention to 
the key drivers (page 158, para. 3.3) and the key messages (page 159, para. 
3.4).  Mr Qayum said that the Tenants Audit had been done to ensure the 
systems were robust; and that work was continuing to providing assurance of 
data quality.  Work was also continuing on the National Fraud Initiative, with 
pre-audits ensuring the system was effective.  Mr Qayum was now having 
monthly meetings with Isabella Freeman, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 
Services) and the Corporate Director of Resources. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Eaton, Mr Qayum said that the 
Government had given £50,000 to the Council to examine the tenancies of 
THH and registered social landlords (RSL) for signs of sub-letting.  This 
money will permit the funding of a 3 person team for 100 days, with the 
objective of minimising abuse.  Mr Naylor said that if the team can bring 
properties back into use, then he will consider continuing the team’s funding.  
The Government was funding a pilot scheme. 
 

10. ANTI--FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY  
 
The report was introduced by Mr Qayum, who commented that it would have 
been desirable to be fully compliant with the Strategy by the end of the year.  
Work was being done evaluating the Strategy with Human Resources and 
Legal Services, and the Enforcement Policy would be ready by June 2010, 
and it would be necessary to enhance the Sanctions Policy as recommended 
in the Red Book.   
 
A contractor would be chosen for access profiling. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Councillor Eaton, Mr Jani said that boxes 
had been ticked when the answer was closer to ‘yes’ than to ‘no’.  Mr Jani 
also said that the assessment had been harsher than necessary; processes 
were very transparent.  Councillor Eaton said that the document appeared 
unsatisfactory.  Mr Naylor suggested that the Strategy be brought to a future 
meeting as it was a ‘work in progress’.  
 
RESOLVED:  That the Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy be on a future
   meeting and the report be on the agenda.  
 
ACTION BY:    Mr Qayum (Head of Audit Services) 
   Democratic Services 
 

11. TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 28 FEBRUARY 2010  
 

Page 10



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 30/03/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

The report was introduced by Mr Finch, who said there had been little change 
from the situation outlined at the December 2009 meeting.  Terms had to be 
balanced against risk, and managing the cash flow to provide for the Council’s 
needs. 
 
Officers were in discussions with the Council’s financial advisors to ensure it 
was ready to take advantage of the rise in interest rates. 
 
Noted. 
 

12. CHANGES TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING STANDARDS  
 
The report was introduced by Mr Finch, who informed the Committee that the 
Treasury will require the Council to close its accounts and comply with 
international reporting standards.  This was a compliance issue, and would 
make little difference to the people of Tower Hamlets. 
 
 
Councillor Snowdon asked what impact the change in reporting standards 
would have; Mr Finch said that the level of reported assets and debts would 
appear higher, but it was more a matter of presentation.   
 
Mr Naylor said that the change had required a great deal of work, for 
example, every lease has been examined.   
 
In response to Councillor Snowdon, Mr Finch said that credential limits would 
be higher, but PFI deals would be unaffected. 
 
Mr Naylor said that there would be a report on housing benefits, observing 
how individual officers process individual claims.  Housing benefits work was 
increasing, and with it the possibility of errors.  It was RESOLVED that 
training on housing benefits be incorporated in Members’ Induction. 
 
ACTION BY:  Democratic Services 
 
The Chair thanked all Members and Officers for attending the Committee 
throughout the year. 
 
 

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday 29th June 2010. 
 

The meeting ended at 9.20pm. 
 

 
 

Chair,  
Audit Committee 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\7\AI00024707\AuditCommitteeTermsofReferencereport20101
1V31.doc 

Committee 
 
Audit Committee  

Date 
 
29th  June 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 
 

 
Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s) :  
 
Zoe Folley, Democratic Services 

Title :  
 
Audit Committee Terms of  
Reference, Membership, Quorum and 
Dates of meetings 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the Terms of Reference, Membership, Quorum and 

Dates of meetings of the Audit Committee for the Municipal Year 
2010/11 for the information of members of the Committee. 

 
2.  Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Audit Committee note its Terms of Reference, Membership, 

Quorum and Dates of future meetings as set out in Appendices 1, 2 
and 3 to this report. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 At the Annual General Meeting of the full Council held on 26th May 

2010, the Authority approved the proportionality, establishment of the 
Committees and Panels of the Council and appointment of Members 
thereto. 

 
3.2 It is traditional that following the Annual General Meeting of the Council 

at the start of the Municipal Year, at which various committees are 
established, that those committees note their terms of reference, 
Membership and Quorum for the forthcoming Municipal Year.    These 
are set out in Appendix 1 and 2 to the report respectively. 

 
3.3 The Committee’s meetings for the remainder of the year, as agreed at 

the meeting of the Council on 24th March 2010, are as set out in 
Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
3.4 Meetings are scheduled to take place at 7.30pm in accordance with the 

programme of meetings for principal meetings. 
 
 
4. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
 There are no specific comments arising from the recommendations in 

the report. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\7\AI00024707\AuditCommitteeTermsofReferencereport20101
1V31.doc 

 
5. Concurrent report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
 The information provided for the Committee to note is in line with the 

Council’s Constitution and the resolutions made by Full Council on 24th 
March 2010 and on 26th May 2010. 

 
6. One Tower Hamlets Considerations 
 
 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets considerations arising from 

the recommendation in the report. 
 
7. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
 There are no specific SAGE implications arising from the 

recommendations in the report. 
 
8. Risk Management Implications 
 
 There are no specific Risk Management implications arising from the 

recommendations in the report. 
 
9. Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications 
 
 There are no Crime and Disorder Reduction implications arising from 

the recommendations in the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
Brief description of “background paper”    If not supplied   
                   Name and telephone  
        number of holder            
 
 Zoe Folley  
 020 7364 4877 
Council AGM 26 May 2010 – Report and Decision –  
Agenda item 11 
“Appointment to Committees and Panels of the Council”  
Council  26 May  2010 – Report and Decision - Agenda item 10.1 
“Programme of Meetings 2010/11” 
       

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 
 
 
3.3.11 Audit Committee 
 
Membership: Seven Members of the Council.  Up to three substitutes may be 
appointed for each Member. The Audit Committee shall not be Chaired by a Member of 
the Executive.  
 
Functions Delegation of 

Functions 
1. To consider the Audit Plan and review the performance of 
Internal Audit against this target; 
 
2.  To review internal audit findings and the annual report 
from the Head of Audit and seek assurance that action has 
been taken where necessary; 
 
3.To act as a forum for the Audit Commission (external audit) 
to bring issues to Members’ attention including both specific 
reports and general item such as the Annual Audit Letter and 
the Annual Governance Report; 
 
4.To be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, 
including the Annual Governance Statement properly reflect 
the risk environment and any actions required to improve it; 
 
5.To enable the Council to demonstrate a response to its 
fiduciary responsibilities in preventing fraud and corruption; 
 
6.To consider reports of audit activity together with specific 
investigations; 
 
7.To monitor the Authority’s Risk Management arrangements 
and seek assurance that action is being taken on risk related 
issues identified by auditors and inspectorates; 
 
8.To make arrangements for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs and for the proper stewardship of 
public funds expect the appointment of the Chief Finance 
Officer which shall remain the duty of the Council; and 
 
9.To meet the obligations of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 1996 and the various statutory requirements in 
respect of the duty to approve the Authority's Statement of 
Accounts, income and expenditure and balance sheet or 
record of payments and receipts (as the case may be). 
 

No delegations 
 
 

Quorum 
Three Members of the Committee 

Page 15



 

Page 16



AP
PE

ND
IX

 2
  

 La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 

Ot
he

r 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Cll

r C
arl
o G

ibb
s 

(C
ha
ir) 

 
Cll

r C
rai
g A

sto
n 

 
Cll

r S
tep

ha
nie

 
Ea

ton
 

Cll
r R

ab
ina

 Kh
an
 

(V
ice

-C
ha
ir) 

 
(D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r D
av
id 

Sn
ow

do
n) 

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 
As

ad
 

 
 

 
Cll

r L
utf

a B
eg
um

 
 

 
 

Cll
r M

iza
nu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 

Ch
au
dh
ury

 
 

 
 

(D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r K
ha
les

 U
dd
in 

Ah
me

d) 
 

 
 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPENDIX 3 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
SCHEDULE OF MEETING DATES 2010-11 

 
 
 
 
 

• Tuesday 29th June 2010 
• Tuesday 21st September 2010 
• Tuesday 14th December 2010 

• 22nd March 2011 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Audit 
Letter
London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Audit 2008/09 

December 2009 

Agenda Item 61

Page 21



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Key messages 3

Financial statements and annual governance statement 5

Value for money and use of resources 7

Closing remarks 10

Appendix 1 – Use of resources key findings and conclusions 11

Appendix 2 – Action plan 15

Page 22



Key messages 

3   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Key messages 
This report summarises the findings from my 2008/09 audit. It includes messages 
arising from the audit of your financial statements and the results of the work I have 
undertaken to assess your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources. 

Audit opinion 

1 I gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements and Pension Fund 
on 30 September 2009. I also issued a certificate closing the audit on this date.  

2 I issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's Whole of Government Accounts 
submission to Communities and Local Government on 26 October 2009. 

Financial statements 

3 The accounts were submitted for audit in accordance with the statutory timetable and 
were supported by adequate working papers. The accounts were complete but 
contained two material errors which were subsequently corrected. I reported the 
significant findings from my audit of the financial statements to the Audit Committee on 
29 September 2009. 

Value for money 

4 I issued an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had adequate arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources on 30 
September 2009.

5 I also assessed how well the Authority uses its resources in line with the new 
methodology developed by the Audit Commission. I concluded that the Authority 
demonstrated sound performance in managing its use of resources.

6 The Council has adequate arrangements across all nine areas assessed and these are 
delivering good outcomes in five key areas:  

! financial planning; 

! understanding costs and achieving efficiencies; 

! commissioning and procurement; 

! data quality and the use of information; and 

! risk management and internal control. 

Page 23



Key messages 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  4

Audit fees 

7 To meet my responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act, I had to undertake extra 
work which was not included in my audit plan. To meet the cost of this I increased my 
audit fee by £12,500.

Actions

8 Recommendations are shown within the body of this report and have been agreed with 
officers. The Council should monitor progress against the action plan in Appendix 2. 

Independence

9 I can confirm that the audit has been carried out in accordance with the Audit 
Commission’s policies on integrity, objectivity and independence. 

Page 24



Financial statements and annual governance statement 

5   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Financial statements and annual 
governance statement 
The Council's financial statements and annual governance statement are an 
important means by which the Council accounts for its stewardship of public funds. 

Significant issues arising from the audit 

10 My audit identified two material misstatements in the draft financial statements, which 
were corrected by management. 

! Following a verification exercise of its fixed asset database, the Council identified 
£120m of fixed assets that were incorrectly included in its balance sheet. The 
majority of this balance, £100m, related to voluntary aided schools. In the draft 
financial statements, these assets were removed in year via an entry for losses on 
disposal of fixed assets in the Income and Expenditure Account. Because the 
value of the assets removed was fundamental to the value of the Council’s opening 
balance sheet, this should have been disclosed as a prior period adjustment. 

! £24.4m of long term debt in relation to deferred consideration for PFI had been 
incorrectly classified as a short-term debtor. 

11 My audit also identified three non-trivial errors which I reported to the Audit Committee. 
All of the errors were corrected by management and none had an impact on the 
Council's available resources.  

Material weaknesses in internal control 

12 I have not identified any weakness in the design or operation of an internal control that 
might result in a material error in your financial statements of which you are not aware. 
However, I found the following weaknesses in the operation of controls. 

! My testing of a total sample of 40 journals found that in five cases, no evidence 
could be provided of appropriate authorisation. 

! My documentation of the payroll system found that there were no systematic 
checks in place to ensure that leavers are removed from the payroll correctly. 

! The Council has an internal target of issuing invoices within five days of receiving 
an invoice request. My testing of a sample of 20 invoices found that in five cases, 
this target was not met (in two of these cases, the invoices were not issued within 
14 working days). 

Page 25



Financial statements and annual governance statement 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  6

Accounting practice and financial reporting 

13 I considered the qualitative aspects of your financial reporting. The Council has 
undertaken reviews of key aspects of its accounts and closedown arrangements and 
this work has led to improvements in the quality of the financial statements. However 
there remain some important areas where further work is required: 

! not all working papers are subject to a robust quality review; 

! I identified un-reconciled items in control account reconciliations which indicates 
that authorisation controls are weak; and 

! I experienced some delays in receiving requested working papers, which resulted 
in audit work being completed late in the process.  

Whole of government accounts 

14 The Council is required to submit a Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 
consolidation pack to Communities and Local Government (CLG). This is to support 
the central government objective of producing a set of accounts for the public sector as 
a whole. The Council is a schedule 1 body which means that its accounts are 
significant to the consolidation process. As such, it is important that the audited 
consolidation pack is submitted to CLG by the deadline.

15 The deadline for the submission of the audited pack to CLG was 1 October 2009. Due 
to late work on the accounts and amendments being made at a late stage, I received 
the un-audited consolidation pack on 25 September 2009. I issued my opinion on the 
consolidation pack on 26 October 2009.

International Financial Reporting Standards 

16 The introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) into the public 
sector raises significant challenges for local government. Authorities must ensure 
arrangements are in place if they are to publish timely and accurate IFRS compliant 
accounts in 2010/11.

17 Our experience in other sectors has shown that the despite a long lead-in time, it is 
important for organisations to have robust well managed plans to make the necessary 
adaptations.

18 The Council is making progress in the move to IFRS, however the work still has a 
limited profile and there is a risk that not all work will be completed on time. 

Recommendations

R1 Strengthen internal quality control procedures to facilitate a more efficient 
closedown and audit process.  

R2 Raise the profile of the IFRS transition exercise and closely monitor the progress of 
the project against key milestones, taking remedial action where necessary. 

Page 26



Value for money and use of resources 

7   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Value for money and use of 
resources
I considered how well the Council is managing and using its resources to deliver 
value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people, and gave a 
scored use of resources judgement.

I also assessed whether the Council put in place adequate corporate arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is 
known as the value for money (VFM) conclusion.  

Use of resources judgements 

19 In forming my scored use of resources judgements, I have used the methodology set 
out in the use of resources framework. Judgements have been made for each key line 
of enquiry (KLOE) using the Audit Commission’s current four point scale from 1 to 4, 
with 4 being the highest. Level 1 represents a failure to meet the minimum 
requirements at level 2.

20 I have also taken into account, where appropriate, findings from previous use of 
resources assessments (updating these for any changes or improvements) and any 
other relevant audit work. 

21 The Council's use of resources theme scores are shown in Table 1 below. The key 
findings and conclusions for the three themes, and the underlying KLOE, are 
summarised in Appendix 1. 

Table 1 Use of resources theme scores 

Use of resources theme Scored judgement  

Managing finances 3

Governing the business 3

Managing resources 2

VFM conclusion 

22 I assessed your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your 
use of resources against criteria specified by the Audit Commission. The three themes 
of the framework are: 

! managing finances; 

! governing the business; and 

! managing resources. 

Page 27



Value for money and use of resources 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  8

23 From 2008/09, the Audit Commission will specify each year, which of the use of 
resources KLOE are the relevant criteria for the VFM conclusion at each type of 
audited body. My conclusions on each of the areas are set out in Appendix 1.

24 I issued an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had adequate arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Managing finances 

25 The Council has demonstrated good outcomes from its financial planning and its 
understanding of costs. For example, the Council's Service and Resource Planning 
Process fully integrates service and financial planning and achieve robust financial 
plans. In addition, the Council continually challenges service delivery and efficiency 
savings of £6.2m were achieved in 2008/09.  

26 PWC were commissioned by the Council to undertake a review of the Council's central 
finance function to ensure that it will support the Council in moving to World Class 
Financial Management. Improvements are being made as a result of the review, 
however work is at an early stage and has not yet delivered the expected outcomes.

27 In light of recent turbulence in the financial markets and national pressures on funding, 
the Council should continue to keep its finances under review. In particular, it should 
ensure that the level of available reserves is commensurate with the risks it faces. 

Governing the business 

28 The Council has a clear vision for procurement to deliver better and sustainable 
outcomes. Effective joint working has translated this vision into tangible value for 
money improvements. The Council has a clear approach to commissioning and staff 
and service users are involved in service design.  

29 Data quality and the use of information is managed well by the Council. My work on 
the Council's accounts, financial systems, grants claims and housing benefits has not 
identified concerns regarding data quality. There is an integrated approach to 
performance information to inform strategic, partnership and operational planning. 
Performance against priorities is monitored well. 

30 The Council has an embedded ethical framework and generally constructive 
Member/Officer relations. It is accepted that the departure of the previous Chief 
Executive could have been handled better. 

31 Risk management and internal control is sound. Risk management is linked to 
strategic priorities and is used to secure improvements in all services including those 
delivered through partnerships. The Council's effective internal audit function delivers 
against its plan and satisfies CIPFA standards. Zero tolerance is demonstrated for 
fraud and there is an embedded anti-fraud culture.

Managing resources 

32 In the past the Council did not consider its use of natural resources a priority. However, 
during 2008/09 the agenda has moved forward significantly. While there have been 
some 'quick wins', there is not yet sustained and improved performance in how the 
Council reduces its own environmental impact. 

Page 28



Value for money and use of resources 

9   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

33 In previous years' assessments, asset management had been identified as only 
meeting minimum requirements. In 2008/09, the Council appointed a new Head of 
Corporate Property and improved resource allocation to the department. An 
improvement agenda has been driven forward but many of the benefits will not be 
realised until 2009/10 and beyond. 

Recommendation

R3 Continue to closely monitor the Council's financial position to ensure the Council 
retains a robust level of reserves commensurate with the risks it faces. 

National Fraud Initiative 

34 The Audit Commission's National Fraud Initiative (NFI) matches data across different 
organisations and identifies matches of data which could indicate fraudulent activity. 
The Authority has sound arrangements for responding to the results of the NFI project 
and has made good progress investigating the matches.

Your business at risk 

35 IT security is a high profile issue in the public sector after a number of well publicised 
cases of poor management of electronic information. I undertook a survey of a sample 
of the Authority's staff to assess the strength of its IT security. The overall perception of 
most staff is that IT security at the London Borough of Tower Hamlets is adequate or 
better than adequate but staff are less clear about the precise role that they have to 
play in it. 

36 Regular reminders to staff about all of the issues covered in our survey will be of 
benefit to the Council. The survey indicates that there are a number of key areas 
where the Council particularly needs to raise staff awareness. 

Recommendation

R4 Monitor the implementation of the recommendations in my Use of Resources report 
and in my Your Business at Risk report .

Page 29



Closing remarks 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  10

Closing remarks 
37 I have discussed and agreed this letter with the Chief Executive and the Director of 

Finance. I will present this letter at the Audit Committee on 30 March 2010 and will 
provide copies to all committee members. 

38 Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations in the areas covered by 
our audit are included in the reports issued to the Council during the year. 

Table 2  

Report Date issued 

Audit plan June 2008

Supplementary opinion plan letter February 2009

Your business at risk August 2009

Annual governance report  September 2009

Use of resources report December 2009 

39 The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to our audit. I wish to 
thank the Council staff for their support and co-operation during the audit. 

Jon Hayes 
District Auditor 

December 2009 

Page 30



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
1
 
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 U

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

s
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

h
e
m

e
s
. 

M
a
n

a
g

in
g

 f
in

a
n

c
e
s
 

T
h

e
m

e
 s

c
o

re
 

3

K
L

O
E

 1
.1

 (
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
) 

3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fu
lly

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g

 v
ia

 a
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

S
A

R
P

) 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
to

c
k
 t
a
k
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l,
 

h
u
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 e
n
a

b
le

s
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 t
o

 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
S

A
R

P
 a

ls
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
: 
 

!
e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t;
  

!
a

 s
ta

b
le

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

-t
o

-l
o
n

g
 t
e

rm
; 
 

!
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 g

a
in

s
; 
 

!
a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
; 
a
n
d
  

!
ro

b
u
s
t 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
0
9

/1
0

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 p
la

y
e
d
 a

 l
e
a
d
 r

o
le

, 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

re
d
it
 c

ru
n
c
h
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 b

u
d

g
e

ti
n
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 a
c
t 
a
s
 a

 S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
le

a
rn

in
g
 h

u
b
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 h

e
ld

 a
t 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 l
e

v
e

l.
 T

h
e

 t
u

rn
o

u
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
. 

Page 31



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

  
1
2

K
L

O
E

 1
.2

 (
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 c

o
s

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
) 

 
3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

lly
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
6
.2

m
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

ro
u

ti
n

e
ly

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
ts

 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 s
o
u

n
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
. 
B

e
n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
. 
A

 m
a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 r

e
-e

n
g

in
e

e
r 

‘b
a

c
k
-o

ff
ic

e
’ 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 H

R
 a

n
d

 I
T

. 

K
L

O
E

 1
.3

 (
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
) 

2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

 P
W

C
 t
o

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 f
it
 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

in
 m

o
v
in

g
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

W
o
rl
d

 C
la

s
s
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 W

h
ile

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o

u
n

d
 n

o
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e

s
s
e
s
, 
it
 d

id
 f
in

d
 t
h
a
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t-

h
o
ld

e
rs

 r
e
ly

 h
e
a

v
ily

 o
n

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 b
a
s
e
d

 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
u
d
g
e
t-

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

, 
b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 
u

s
e
r-

fr
ie

n
d

ly
. 
T

h
is

 c
a

u
s
e
s
 i
n

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

p
e

n
d

 a
 h

ig
h

 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 t
im

e
 o

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ls
o
 f
o
u
n
d
 s

c
o
p
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 t
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
a

 m
o

re
 ‘
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

p
a

rt
n

e
ri

n
g

’ 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 t
a

k
in

g
 t
h

is
 f
o

rw
a
rd

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 d
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

o
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g
e

r.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 p

re
p
a

ri
n

g
 f
o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
IF

R
S

. 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 w
e
re

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
im

e
, 
a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 s

lip
p

a
g
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
s
. 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
p
p

ro
v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
a
lt
h

o
u

g
h
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 w

a
s
 

in
h
ib

it
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
a
 t
im

e
 l
im

it
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
o
s
e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

G
o

v
e
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

T
h

e
m

e
 s

c
o

re
 

3

K
L

O
E

 2
.1

 (
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t)
  

3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
b

e
tt

e
r 

a
n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a
s
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 t
h
is

 v
is

io
n
 i
n
to

 t
a
n
g
ib

le
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 d
e
s
ig

n
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

rk
s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 t
o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
ts

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p

ly
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 B

o
a

rd
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
ri

v
e
s
 c

a
s
h

a
b

le
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
. 
A

 
s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
p

h
a
s
is

 o
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

Page 32



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
3
 
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

K
L

O
E

 2
.2

 (
d

a
ta

 q
u

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

) 
3

O
u

r 
s
p

o
t 
c
h

e
c
k
 o

f 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
-b

a
s
e
d

 
re

v
ie

w
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

. 
A

ll 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 w
e
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
a
ir
ly

 s
ta

te
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

th
e

s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
o
rk

 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
O

u
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

ir
d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
. 
O

u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
g

ra
n

ts
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e

fi
ts

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n

fo
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

, 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t/

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 w

e
ll.

 T
h
e
 S

A
R

P
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

s
 o

n
 b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

, 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d

 t
re

n
d
s
. 
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 G

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 a
 s

o
u
n

d
 p

e
e
r 

c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

. 
T

h
is

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

ff
 t
a
rg

e
t 

in
 t
h

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 D
ig

e
s
ts

. 

K
L

O
E

 2
.3

 (
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
) 

2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d

 g
e

n
e
ra

lly
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r/

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
. 
A

 s
h

a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
a

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
. 
T

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

tt
it
u
d
e
s
, 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 i
n

 
h
a
n
d
.

K
L

O
E

 2
.4

 (
ri

s
k

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l)
 

3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 r

is
k
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
n

 e
v
e

ry
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
e

m
b
e

rs
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 g

o
o
d

 r
is

k
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
. 
R

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 a

t 
a

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 l
in

k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 u

s
e
s
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e
c
u

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 t
e
s
te

d
 w

it
h

 P
a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 a

n
ti
-f

ra
u

d
 c

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 z

e
ro

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 
fr

a
u

d
. 
T

h
e

 c
u

lt
u
re

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n
e

d
 b

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o
d
e
s
, 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
it
s
 a

n
ti
-f

ra
u

d
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 R

e
d

 B
o

o
k
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 f
e
w

 
a

re
a
s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t.
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
n
 a

c
ti
v
e

 n
e

tw
o
rk

 o
f 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 a

n
ti
-f

ra
u

d
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
F

I 
d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 f
ro

m
 N

F
I.

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
liv

e
rs

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
it
s
 p

la
n

 o
n

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 b
a

s
is

 a
n

d
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

s
 C

IP
F

A
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t.
 I
t 
is

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

llo
w

 i
t 
to

 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 i
ts

 r
o

le
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
 c

o
n

c
is

e
 a

n
d

 h
o

n
e
s
t 
s
e

lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
it
s
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 

o
w

n
e

rs
h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
 

Page 33



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

  
1
4

M
a
n

a
g

in
g

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

T
h

e
m

e
 s

c
o

re
  

2

K
L

O
E

 3
.1

 (
u

s
e

 o
f 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

) 
2

In
 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

d
id

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

it
s
 u

s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 h

a
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
. 
W

h
ile

 t
h
e
re

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o
m

e
 q

u
ic

k
 w

in
s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n

 h
o

w
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
d

u
c
e

s
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
£
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 t
o
 q

u
a

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 u

s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
it
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 g

re
e

n
 a

g
e
n

d
a

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

m
p

h
a
s
is

 o
n
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

. 
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n

d
 w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
d

 b
e
e

n
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 
lo

n
g

-s
ta

n
d

in
g

 p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
is

 s
h
o

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

L
M

O
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s
. 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
e

d
, 
b

o
th

 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

la
n
s
. 
T

e
a
m

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
v
e

n
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

w
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 u

s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

K
L

O
E

 3
.2

 (
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
 

2

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

' a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 o

n
ly

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 m

in
im

u
m

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 2
0
0
8
/0

9
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
 n

e
w

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t.
 A

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ri
v
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 r

e
a

lis
e
d

 u
n

ti
l 
2

0
0

0
/1

0
 a

n
d

 b
e
y
o

n
d

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
A

s
s
e
ts

 a
re

 n
o

w
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 ‘
c
o

rp
o
ra

te
’ 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 ‘
s
e
rv

ic
e

’ 
a
s
s
e

ts
, 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 

fr
a
g
m

e
n

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
is

te
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 
T

h
is

 p
e

rm
it
s
 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 a

s
s
e
t 
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
s
ta

te
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 a
 m

o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 

a
n

d
 u

n
if
ie

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 w
h
e

n
 a

s
s
e

ts
 a

re
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 t
o

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 k
e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 n

o
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 
re

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d

a
te

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 r
e
c
e

n
tl
y
 s

e
c
u
ri
n

g
 f
u
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
ts

 s
to

c
k
. 

Page 34



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

1
5
 
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

6
R

1
 

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

 a
n
d

 a
u

d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

3
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 

Y
e
s
 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 i
n

 h
a
n

d
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t
h

is
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

6
R

2
 

R
a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 I
F

R
S

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
k
e
y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
, 

ta
k
in

g
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
. 

3
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
. 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 

9
R

3
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
ta

in
s
 a

 r
o
b

u
s
t 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
s
u

ra
te

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 i
t 
fa

c
e

s
. 

2
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e
ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

9
R

4
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 m

y
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n

 m
y
 Y

o
u

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

t 
R

is
k
 r

e
p
o
rt

 .
  

2
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
. 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

Page 35



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, audio, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2009 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 2945 Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 36



Progress
Report

June 2010
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Audit 2009/10 

Audit Committee 29 June 2010 

Agenda Item 62

Page 37



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the 
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Audit progress 3

Appendix 1 – Audit plan outputs 5

Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 6

Appendix 3 - Other matters of interest 12

Page 38



Audit progress 

3   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Audit progress 

Introduction

1 The purpose of this progress report is to brief the Audit Committee on work currently 
being planned or undertaken by the Audit Commission. 

Audit Progress 2009/10 

2 We agreed our outline 2009/10 Audit Plan and fee with officers in April 2009 and 
presented it to the Audit Committee in June 2009. Appendix 1 summarises the 
progress of our audit work. 

3 Our 2009/10 audit is progressing well.  We have maintained regular communication 
with the finance team to identify and resolve issues early. The work proposed remains 
as set out in the detailed 2009/10 opinion audit plan agreed by the Audit Committee in 
April 2010. 

4 We have substantially completed our interim audit which involved updating our 
understanding of the Council's control environment, updating our documentation of the 
key financial systems and testing a selection of the key controls within those systems. 
We have not identified any matters to report to you at this stage. As in previous years, 
we will therefore be placing reliance on controls, and the work of Internal Audit. 

5 In respect of use of resources, we reported our 2008/09 use of resources assessment 
to officers in February 2010 as part of the Annual Audit Letter. The Annual Audit Letter 
is reported to you separately at this meeting. Our 2009/10 work builds upon this 
assessment.

6 In light of the new government’s announcement to abolish Comprehensive Area 
Assessment, the Audit Commission has announced that it will not be issuing new 
scores for the use of resources assessment. The use of resources work that we have 
already completed will inform our VFM conclusion. 

2010/11 Audit Plan 

7 As part of our initial 2010/11 planning, we have had discussions with officers on the 
issues that may impact on our work for that year.  We wrote to the Chief Executive in 
April setting out the proposed fee covering all work related to the 2010/11 audit.  This 
will be followed up with a detailed plan for the opinion audit later in the year.  A 
separate letter covering the pension fund audit has also been issued.  The initial fee 
letters are attached at Appendix 2. 

8 The Audit Commission is undertaking a fundamental review of its approach to 
assessing VFM. At this stage, no decision has been made about any possible impact 
on future audit fees. We will consult on any amendments to the 2010/11 fee scales in 
our consultation on 2011/12 fees in July 2010. 

Page 39



Audit progress 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  4

Other matters 

9 The Codes of Audit Practice (the Codes) define the scope, nature and extent of local 
audit work.

10 The Codes were revised and approved by Parliament on 9 March 2010. The changes 
are minimal and are effective immediately. Details of the changes are included in 
appendix 3.

Page 40



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 

5
 

  
L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

T
a

b
le

 1
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 

P
ro

d
u

c
t

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 L

e
a
d

 
T

im
in

g
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e
n

ts

W
o
rk

 o
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

S
h
o
n
a
 M

ilt
o
n
 

G
o
h
a
r 

M
ir
z
a
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 -
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 

W
o
rk

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

; 

!
o
p
in

io
n
;

!
IS

A
 2

6
0
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
 

!
o
p
in

io
n
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 

S
a
lly

-A
n
n
e
 E

ld
ri
d
g
e

S
h
o
n
a
 M

ilt
o
n
 

J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

W
o
rk

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 o
n
c
e
 w

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 d

ra
ft

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

S
a
lly

-A
n
n
e
 E

ld
ri
d
g
e
 

S
h
o
n
a
 M

ilt
o
n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 -
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
a
lly

-A
n
n
e
 E

ld
ri
d
g
e
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

In
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

Page 41



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  6

Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee 
Letters

Our reference TO00611A

13  April 2010 

Direct line 0844 798 2877 

Email j-hayes@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Kevan Collins 
Chief Executive 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Town Hall 
Mulberry House 
5 Clove Crescent 
London
E14 2BG 

Dear Kevan 

Annual audit fee 2010/11 

I am writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2010/11 
financial year at the London Borough of Tower Hamlets. The fee: 

! is based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of 
Audit Practice and work mandated by the Commission for 2010/11; and 

! reflects only the audit element of our work, excluding any inspection and 
assessment fees.  Adewale will be writing to you separately on these fees. 

As I have not yet completed my audit for 2009/10 the audit planning process for 2010/11, 
including the risk assessment will continue as the year progresses and fees will be 
reviewed and updated as necessary. 

The total indicative fee for the audit for 2010/11 is for £513,500 which compares to the 
planned fee of £480,000 for 2009/10. A summary of this is shown in the table below. 

Audit Area 

Planned fee 
2010/11

(£)

Planned fee 
2009/10

(£)

Financial Statements 342,500 310,000

Page 42



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

7   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Use of Resources & VFM 
conclusion 

162,500 161,500

Whole of Government Accounts 8,500 8,500

Total audit fee 513,500 480,000

IFRS rebate (33,712)  

Certification of claims and returns 105,000 100,000

The Audit Commission has published its work programme and scales of fees for 2010/11. 
The
Audit Commission scale fee for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets is £524,700. The 
fee proposed for 2010/11 is -2.13% per cent compared to the scale fee and is within the 
normal level of variation specified by the Commission.  

The published fee scale for 2010/11 included a 6% increase to cover the costs of 
additional audit work arising from the introduction of International Reporting Standards. In 
July 2009, in recognition of the financial pressures that public bodies are facing in the 
current economic climate, the Commission confirmed that it would subsidise the 'one-off' 
element of the cost of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for 
local authorities and police and fire and rescue authorities from 2010/11. You will therefore 
receive a refund from the Audit Commission of £33,712 in April 2010. 

Changes in international auditing standards will also increase the audit procedures I need 
to carry out, however the Audit Commission will absorb the cost of those additional 
requirements.

In setting the fee, I have assumed that the general level of risk in relation to the audit of the 
financial statements is not significantly different from that identified to 2009/10. A separate 
opinion plan for the audit for the financial statements will be issued in December 2010. 
This will detail the risks identified, planned audit procedures and any changes in fee. If I 
need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of this plan, I 
will first discuss this with the Director of Finance and then prepare a report outlining the 
reasons why the fee needs to change for discussion with the audit committee. 

My use of resources assessments will be based upon the evidence from three themes: 

! Managing finances; 

! Governing the business; and 

! Managing resources. 

The key lines of enquiry specified for the assessment are set out in the Audit 
Commission’s work programme and scales of fees 2010/11. My work on use of resources 
informs my 2010/11 value for money conclusion.

Page 43



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  8

I will issue a number of reports relating to my work over the course of the audit. These 
are listed at Appendix 1. 

The above fee excludes work the Commission may agree to undertake using its advice 
and assistance powers. Each piece of work will be separately negotiated and a detailed 
project specification agreed with you. 

The key members of the audit team for the 2010/11 audit are: 

Sally-Anne Eldridge, Senior Audit Manager (s-eldridge@audit-commission.gov.uk) 
Shona Milton, Audit Manager (s-milton@audit-commission.gov.uk) 

I am committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. 
Alternatively you may wish to contact the London Head of Operations, Les Kidner (l-
kidner@audit-commission.gov.uk).

Yours sincerely 

Jon Hayes 
District Auditor 

cc  Chris Naylor, Director of Resources 

         Sally-Anne Eldridge, Senior Audit Manager 

Page 44



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

9   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Appendix 1 - Planned Outputs 

Output Planned date 

Opinion audit plan December 2010 

Annual Governance Report September 2011 

Auditor’s report giving the opinion on the financial 
statements and value for money conclusion 

September 2011

Use of Resources report October 2011 

Final Accounts Memorandum (to the Director of Finance) October 2011 

Annual Audit Letter December 2011 

Page 45



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  10

Our reference TO00611A

13 April 2010 

Direct line 0844 798 2877 

Email j-hayes@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Kevan Collins 
Chief Executive 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Town Hall 
Mulberry House 
5 Clove Crescent 
London
E14 2BG 

Dear Kevan 

Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 
Annual Audit fee 2010/11 

I am writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2010/11 
financial year on the Tower Hamlets Pension Fund. The fee is based on the risk-based 
approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit Practice and work mandated by 
the Commission for 2010/11. 

As I have not yet completed my audit for 2009/10, the audit planning process for 2010/11, 
including the risk assessment will continue as the year progresses and fees will be 
reviewed and updated as necessary. 

The total indicative fee for the audit for 2010/11 is for £38,500, which compares to the 
planned fee of £38,500 for 2009/10.

In setting the fee, I have assumed that the general level of risk in relation to the audit of the 
financial statements is not significantly different from that identified in 2009/10. A separate 
opinion plan for the audit of the Pension Fund will be issued in December 2010. This will 
detail the risks identified, planned audit procedures and any changes in fee. If I need to 
make any significant amendments to the audit fee, I will first discuss this with the Director 
of Resources and then prepare a report outlining the reasons why the fee needs to change 
for discussion with the audit committee. 

The above fee excludes work the Commission may agree to undertake using its advice 
and assistance powers. Each piece of work will be separately negotiated and a detailed 
project specification agreed with you. 

The key members of the audit team for 2010/11 are: 

Sally-Anne Eldridge, Senior Audit Manager (s-eldridge@audit-commission.gov.uk) 
Shona Milton, Audit Manager (s-milton@audit-commission.gov.uk) 

Page 46



Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Fee Letters 

11   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

I am committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. 
Alternatively you may wish to contact the London Head of Operations, Les Kidner (l-
kidner@audit-commission.gov.uk).

Yours sincerely 

Jon Hayes 
District Auditor 

cc

Chris Naylor, Director of Resources 

Sally-Anne Eldridge, Senior Audit Manager 

Page 47



Appendix 3 – Other matters of interest 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  12

Appendix 3 - Other matters of 
interest

Code of audit practice

11 The Codes of Audit Practice (the Codes) define the scope, nature and extent of local 
audit work.

12 There is a separate code of audit practice for local government and a code of audit 
practice for the NHS, primarily to reflect the increasingly divergent accounting, 
corporate governance and performance management frameworks in the two sectors. 

Background 

13 The Commission has a statutory duty to prepare, and keep under review, codes of 
audit practice prescribing the way in which auditors must carry out their functions 
under the Audit Commission Act 1998 (the Act). The Codes must embody what 
appears to the Commission to be the best professional practice with respect to the 
standards, procedures and techniques to be adopted by auditors. The Act allows for 
separate codes to be produced for the audit of local government and NHS bodies. 

14 The Codes have to be approved by both Houses of Parliament at five yearly intervals 
and auditors have a statutory duty to comply with it. As such, it constitutes secondary 
legislation, and the way it is drafted and the process for reviewing and revising it 
reflects this. 

15 Parliament approved the current Codes on 9 March 2010. There are only minimal 
changes to the Codes which will come into effect immediately. 

16 In preparing the Codes, the Commission consults widely, engaging key organisations 
that represent audited bodies in local government and the NHS, the accountancy 
profession and the public audit agencies at each stage.

The content of the Codes 

17 In developing the current Codes, the Commission's principal aims were to bring about 
a more streamlined, risk based approach to audit, targeted to areas where auditors 
have the most to contribute to improvement, together with a stronger emphasis on 
value for money and clearer reporting of audit results. The Codes are high level 
documents, which focus on the Audit Commission's core requirements and aspects of 
audit specific to its regime.  

18 Each Code: 

! sets out the general principles to be followed by auditors in delivering their 
objectives;

Page 48



Appendix 3 – Other matters of interest 

! outlines their responsibilities regarding the audit of financial statements and use of 
resources; and

! sets out the range of outputs through which the results of audit are reported.

19 Auditors are required by the Code to report their conclusion on the audited body's 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources (VFM conclusion).

Statements of Responsibilities 

20 The Commission's Statements of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies
support the Codes and have therefore been updated to align with the new Codes. The 
'Statements of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies' assist auditors and 
audited bodies by summarising where - in the context of the usual conduct of an audit - 
the different responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. As with the Codes, the 
Commission has prepared separate statements of responsibilities for local government 
and the NHS.

Page 49



The Audit Commission 

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
audio, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 50



 
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

29 June 2010 
CLASSIFICATION 
 

   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Service Head, Risk Management and 
Audit 
 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 2009/10 
 

Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
1. Summary 
 

1.1 This report provides the annual internal audit opinion in accordance with 
the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit. The opinion supports the 
annual governance statement, which forms part of the annual statement of 
accounts required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as 
amended). 

1.2 The report concludes that the Council has an effective system of internal 
control which was in operation throughout 2009/10. The Head of Audit 
opinion is attached to this report at appendices 4 and 5. 

   
 
2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the content of the annual audit 
report, the summary of audits undertaken which have not been previously 
reported and the Head of Audit opinion. 

 
 
3. Introduction 

 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit annual 

reporting requirements set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006.  The Code 
advises that this report includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control environment and 
presents a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion.  

 
 

Agenda Item 71

Page 51



 

 2 

 

3.2 This report is set out as follows: 
 

� Opinion and basis of opinion 
� Summary of audit work undertaken in 2009/10 
� Appendix  1 –  Audit Resources 
� Appendix 2 – Summaries of reports not previously reported. 

Summaries of all audit reports are submitted to the Audit Committee. 
� Appendix 3 – List of audits undertaken in 2009/10 
� Appendix 4 – Summary Head of Audit Opinion 
� Appendix 5 – Detailed Head of Audit Opinion 
� Appendix 6 – Peer review and benchmarking club. 

 
 

4. Statement of Responsibility 
 
4.1 The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently 
and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government 
Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the 
way in which it functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
4.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for 

ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates 
the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

 
 

5. Opinion  
 
5.1 It is my opinion that I can provide satisfactory assurance that the authority 

has a reasonable system of internal control and that this was operating 
effectively during 2009/10. The basis for this opinion is set out below. 

 
  

6. Basis of Opinion  
 
6.1 The annual internal audit opinion is derived primarily from the work of 

Internal Audit during the year as part of the agreed internal audit plan 
2009/10.  A summary of that work is set out in paragraph 8 below. Internal 
Audit has been given unfettered access to all areas and systems across 
the Authority and has received appropriate co-operation.  

 

Page 52



 

 3 

6.2 Internal audit work has been carried out in accordance with the mandatory 
standards and good practice contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice 
for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 and additionally 
from its own internal quality assurance systems.   

 
6.3 My opinion is primarily based on the work carried out by Internal Audit 

during the year on the principal risks, identified within the organisation’s 
Assurance Framework. Where principal risks are identified within the 
organisation’s framework that are not included in Internal Audit’s coverage, 
I am satisfied that a system is in place that provides reasonable assurance 
that these risks are being managed effectively. 

 
6.4 In planning audit coverage and in forming the annual opinion, I have taken 

account of other sources of assurance, including the work of the Audit 
Commission and other inspectors pertaining to or reported during 2009/10.  
Details of the other sources of assurances and the assurances obtained 
from the work of audit are attached at appendix 4. 

 
 

7 Audit Resources 
 

7.1 The resources available to Internal Audit are set out in appendix one 
below. Internal Audit is provided in partnership with Deloitte & Touche 
Public Sector Ltd. An in-house team of nine auditors works with resources 
provided by Deloitte under the contract.  

 
7.2 The resources made available were adequate for the fulfilment of the 

Authority’s duties. The partnership with Deloitte has given the authority 
access to greater capacity, particularly in computer audit.  

 
7.3 Productivity was maintained at planned levels. Sickness absence in the 

team was 5.3 days per person on average, compared to 6 days in 
2008/09. 

 
7.4 During the year, there was an emphasis on risk based audits, which 

reflects the internal audit strategy in providing assurance to the Council 
over its systems of internal control to manage risks. The level of computer 
audit and contract audit has been maintained at a reasonable level 
throughout the year.  

Page 53



 

 4 

 
8 Summary of Audit Work 

8.1 A list of the audits undertaken in 2009/10 is attached to main body of the 
report at appendix 3 including the assurance levels assigned.  Audit 
assurance is assigned one of four categories: Nil, Limited, Substantial and 
Full.  Audits are also categorised by the significance of the systems. These 
are defined in appendix 2. 

8.2 Summaries of the audit reports are reported quarterly to CMT and the 
Audit Committee. Appendix 2 provides the summaries of those reports not 
complete at the time of the last report on audit findings for 2009/10. 

8.3 A summary of the audit assurance resulting from audit reports in 2009/10 
is provided in the table below. 

 
Assurance Audits 09/10 

Full Substantial Limited Nil 

Extensive 0 42 10  

Moderate 0 24 20 2 

Sig
nif

ica
nc

e 

Low 0 1 1  

 

Total 0 67 31 2 

 
8.4 The table shows that of 100 systems audits, 67% of the systems audited 

achieved an assurance level of full or substantial. Full or substantial 
assurance means that an effective level of control was in place, although 
this does not mean the systems were operating perfectly.  33% of systems 
audited were rated as limited or nil assurance, and the remainder have 
their assurance to be confirmed.  

 
8.5 Limited assurance means that there are controls in place, but that there 

are weaknesses such that undermine the effectiveness of the controls. In 
all cases actions are identified to rectify these weaknesses.  

 

Page 54



 

 5 

 
8.6 From the Internal Audit work during 2009/10 financial year, we identified 

risks in the Council’s systems for managing the climate change, managing 
absences, managing the contract for household recycling, control, 
monitoring of parking permits, planning of legal meetings and monitoring, 
management of the Working Neighbourhood Fund and Network control.  
Within Tower Hamlets Homes, risks were identified in the company’s 
budgetary control systems, management of keys to void dwellings and 
management of a specific capital contract.  Action plans have been agreed 
to address the key control weaknesses in these areas, and a programme 
of follow up audit work will be undertaken to assess the progress. 

 
8.7 From our Internal Audit work during 2009/10, we can provide an overall 

assurance that Tower Hamlets has an effective internal control framework 
with identified areas for improvement. In general, the key controls are in 
place and are operational. There is ownership of internal control at all 
management levels, which is evidenced by the positive response to audit 
recommendations.  

 
 
9 Audit Performance  
 
9.1 Internal Audit report two core performance indicators as part of Chief Executives 

performance monitoring and quarterly to the Audit Committee. The performance 
for 2009/10 is set out in the table below. 

 
9.2 As at the 31st March 2010, 100% of the operational plan was completed in terms 

of days used. A number of audits were still in progress, but have now been 
completed/ or are awaiting management comment. 

2009/10 Performance Measure Target Actual 
 
Percentage of operational plan completed (to at least 
draft report stage) in the year 

 
100% 

 
100% 

 
Percentage of priority 1 recommendations followed 
up that have been implemented by 6 month review 
date  
 
Percentage of priority 2 recommendations followed 
up that have been implemented by 6 month review 
date  
 
 

 
100% 
 
 
 
95% 

 
96% 
 
 
 
82% 

Page 55



 

 6 

9.3 Internal Audit’s planned programme of work includes a check on the 
implementation of all agreed recommendations.  This review is carried out six 
months after the end of the audit. At the point of follow-up, 96% of priority 1 
recommendations had been implemented against a target of 100% and 82% of 
priority 2 recommendations had been implemented against a target of 95%. 
Corporate Directors are being regularly updated with the progress and 
performance of follow up audits and Internal Audit maintains a record of 
outstanding recommendations and carry out further checks on recommendations 
not complete at the six month review. 

9.4 The budget outturn is set out in appendix 1. Internal Audit is benchmarked 
against a basket of authorities as part of the CIPFA benchmarking club. Data for 
2009/10 will be submitted and key points will be reported to a future CMT and 
Audit Committee.  

 

Page 56



 

 7 

 
APPENDIX 1 

Internal Audit – Resources 2009/10 
 
 
 

Available audit days 
   
  
  

Revised 
Plan % Outturn % 

      
 In-house staff days 2,205    79% 2,105 73% 
 Deloitte / external     581    21%    756 27% 
 
Gross days 

 
2,786 

 
100% 

 
2,861 

 
100% 

      
      

less  Leave    278  10%   275 10% 
less Sickness absence      56   2%     48 2% 
less Non Operational Time     223   8%   192 7% 

 Unproductive time    557 20%   515 19% 
      

Net productive days 
 

2,229 
 

80% 
 

2,346 
 

81% 
 
 

Internal Audit Budget 2009/10 
 
 
 Budget         

£000 
Actual          
£000 

Variance      
£000 

Salaries 559 554 (5) 
Contract costs 213 213 0 
Running costs 36 36 0 
Central Recharges 115 115 0 
Gross cost recharged 923 918 (5) 
 
 

 

Page 57



 

 8 

Internal Audit Reports 2009/10 – Summary of Audit Reports  
 

 
   
Assurance ratings 

 
Level 
 
1  Full Assurance Evaluation opinion - There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 

the system objectives, and  
  Testing opinion - The controls are being consistently applied. 
 
2 Substantial Assurance Evaluation opinion - While there is a basically sound system there are 

weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at risk, and/ or  
  Testing opinion - There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with 

some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 
 
3 Limited Assurance Evaluation opinion - Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put 

the system objectives at risk, and/or  
  Testing opinion - The level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at 

risk. 
 
4 No Assurance Evaluation opinion - Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 

significant error or abuse, and/or 
  Testing opinion - Significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the 

system open to error or abuse. 
 
 
Significance ratings 
Extensive 
 

High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental Financial Systems, 
Major Service activity, Scale of Service in excess of £5m.   

Moderate Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service £1m- £5m. 

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.   
 
 

Page 58



 

 
9 

 
AP

PE
ND

IX
 2

 
Su

mm
ari

es
 of

 20
09

/10
 au

dit
 re

po
rts

 no
t p

rev
iou

sly
 re

po
rte

d 
 As

su
ran

ce
 le

ve
l 

Sig
nif

ica
nc

e 
Di

rec
tor

ate
 

Au
dit

 tit
le 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LIM
ITE

D 
Ex

ten
siv

e  
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 (T

HH
) 

TH
H 
Bu

dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

am
ily 

(C
SF

) 
Mo

rpe
th 

Se
co
nd

ary
 Sc

ho
ol 

 
Mo

de
rat

e  
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

am
ily 

(C
SF

) 
Ph

oe
nix

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 
Lo

w 
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 (T

HH
) 

Ph
as
e 1

0 o
f C

om
mu

na
l A

eri
al 
Ins

tal
lat
ion

 W
ork

s –
 C
urr

en
t C

on
tra

ct 
Au

dit
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SU
BS

TA
NT

IA
L 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 (T

HH
) 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e o

f T
HH

 – 
Fo

llo
w 
Up

 au
dit
 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Lo

ca
lity

 an
d C

ult
ure

 
(C
LC

) 
Bu

dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 
Sy

ste
ms

 Au
di 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Ad

ult
s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be
ing

 (A
HW

) 
Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 
– F

oll
ow

 U
P a

ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

am
ily 

(C
SF

) 
Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 fo

r th
e F

utu
re 

– S
t P

au
l’s 

W
ay
 Sc

ho
ol 
Cu

rre
nt 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

NN
DR

 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

De
bto

rs 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Pe
ns
ion

s 
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

am
ily 

(C
SF

) 
Cu

bit
t T

ow
n I
nfa

nts
 Sc

ho
ol 

 
 

 
 

Page 59



 

 
10

 

Su
mm

ary
 of

 A
ud

its
 U

nd
ert

ak
en

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Lim
ite

d 
  Tit

le 
Da

te 
of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s –
 

Bu
dg

eta
ry 

Co
ntr

ol 
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

 

Ap
ril 
 20

10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 sy
ste

ms
 fo

r b
ud
ge

t s
ett
ing

, 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 an

d o
ve
ral

l b
ud

ge
tar

y c
on
tro

l.  
Th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 fin

din
gs
 w
ere

 hi
gh

lig
hte

d:-
 

• 
Th

e F
ina

nc
e t

ea
m 

pro
du
ce
d t
he

 20
09
/10

 Bu
dg

et 
bo
ok
 w
hic

h p
rov

ide
d a

 co
ns
oli
da

ted
 

vie
w 
on

 se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 bu

dg
ets

 m
an
ag
ed
 by

 th
e c

om
pa
ny
. G

uid
an
ce
 w
as
 is
su
ed

 to
 

bu
dg

et 
ho

lde
rs 

for
 bo

th 
Co

re 
an

d D
ele

ga
ted

 bu
dg

ets
.  H

ow
ev
er,

 th
e e

xis
tin
g b

ud
ge

t 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s h
av
e n

ot 
be

en
 fo

rm
all
y d

oc
um

en
ted

.  B
ud
ge

t 
ho
lde

rs 
we

re 
req

uir
ed
 to

 si
gn
-of

f d
raf

t b
ud
ge
ts,
 bu

t th
is 
ha
d n

ot 
be

en
 do

ne
 in
 al
l c
as
es
.   

• 
Th

e s
ys
tem

 fo
r S

en
ior
 M

an
ag
em

en
t to

 ch
ec
k a

nd
 ap

pro
ve
 am

en
dm

en
ts 
to 
ori
gin

al 
bu
dg

et 
fig
ure

s b
y m

ea
ns
 of

 vi
rem

en
ts 
or 

rev
ise

d b
ud

ge
ts 
ne
ed

ed
 to
 be

 im
pro

ve
d t

o 
ma

na
ge
 th
e r

isk
 of

 bu
dg
ets

 be
ing

 m
on
ito
red

 ag
ain

st 
wr
on
g f

igu
res

 an
d u

nc
lea

r 
as
su
mp

tio
ns
.  O

ur 
rev

iew
 sh

ow
ed

 th
at 
un

til 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09
, a
ctu

al 
ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

on
 C
ore

 
bu
dg

ets
 w
as
 be

ing
 m

on
ito
red

 ag
ain

st 
inc

orr
ec
t fi
gu
res

 in
cre

as
ing

 th
e r

isk
 of

 bu
dg

et 
ov
ers

pe
nd
.  W

e h
av
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
the

 au
dit
 tra

il f
or 

loa
din

g b
ud
ge

ts 
on

 th
e G

L 
sy
ste

m 
sh
ou
ld 
be

 im
pro

ve
d a

nd
 th

at 
all

 fu
tur

e b
ud

ge
ts 
are

 ag
ree

d a
nd
 si
gn

ed
 of

f b
y 

TH
H 
an
d t
he

 C
ou

nc
il, 
en

su
rin
g t

ha
t b

ud
ge
ts 
ca
n b

e f
ull
y r
ec
on

cile
d w

he
n u

plo
ad
ed

 on
 

the
 G
en

era
l L
ed

ge
r.  

 
• 

Co
ntr

ol 
ov
er 

ca
rry

ing
 ou

t a
nd
 ap

pro
vin

g j
ou
rna

ls 
ne

ed
ed
 to

 be
 st
ren

gth
en

ed
 to

 en
su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 w
as
 su

ffic
ien

t n
arr

ati
ve
 de

sc
rib
ing

 th
e p

urp
os
e o

f th
e j
ou
rna

l a
nd
 ea

ch
 

jou
rna

l w
as
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 do
cu
me

nta
tio
n o

n f
ile
.  T

he
re 

we
re 

a n
um

be
r o

f jo
urn

als
 

co
ve
rin

g i
nc
om

e a
nd
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

be
tw
ee

n L
BT

H 
an
d T

HH
, w

hic
h s

ho
uld

 be
 re

gu
lat
ed
 

thr
ou
gh

 fo
rm

al 
inv

oic
ing

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 to
 di
sti
ng
uis

h t
he

 co
mp

an
y a

s a
 se

pa
rat

e e
nti
ty.
 

All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f F

ina
nc
e a

nd
 

Re
so
urc

es
.   

 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Lim
ite
d 

   Page 60



 

 
11

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 /

 F
in

di
ng

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s –
 

Bu
dg

eta
ry 

Co
ntr

ol 
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

 

Ap
ril 
 20

10
 

Ma
na

ge
m

en
t C

om
m

en
ts

 
 Bu
dg
et
 h
old
er
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
re
qu
es
te
d 
to
 s
ign
-o
ff 
ac
kn
ow
led
ge
me
nt
 o
f 
th
eir
 

20
10
-1
1 
bu
dg
et
 an

d 
als
o t
he
ir 
bu
dg
et
ar
y c
on
tro
l r
es
po
ns
ibi
liti
es
. M

os
t o
f t
he
se
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
re
ce
ive
d.
 O
ut
sta
nd
ing
 re
tu
rn
s a
re
 b
ein
g c
ha
se
d.
 

 All
 re
ve
nu
e 
bu
dg
et
s 
for
 2
01
0-
11
 h
av
e 
be
en
 lo
ad
ed
 o
n 
JD
 E
dw
ar
ds
, t
he
 L
BT
H 

an
d T

HH
 fi
na
nc
ial
 le
dg
er
 sy
ste
m 

  Cl
ea
r b

ud
ge
t m

on
ito
rin
g 
ins
tru
cti
on
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
pr
ov
ide
d 
an
d 
th
is 
ha
s 
be
en
 

re
inf
or
ce
d 

th
ro
ug
h 

a 
se
rie
s 
of 

pr
es
en
ta
tio
ns
 m

ad
e 
to
 t
he
 D

ire
cto
ra
te
 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt
 Te

am
s 

 Th
e r
ep
or
tin
g 
for
ma

t f
or
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
cc
ou
nt
s h
as
 b
ee
n 
sim

pli
fie
d 
an
d 
is 
no
w 

ris
k-
ba
se
d.
 

 Th
e T

HH
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 R
eg
ula
tio
ns
 w
er
e 
re
vie
we
d 
an
d 
ad
dit
ion
al 
co
nt
ro
ls 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 

by
 th
e T

HH
 B
oa
rd
 at
 it
s M

ay
 2
01
0 
m
ee
tin
g 

 A 
mo

nt
h-
en
d 
ac
co
un
ts 
clo
se
do
wn
 ch
ec
kli
st 
is 
be
ing
 d
ev
elo
pe
d 
an
d 
ex
pe
cte
d 
to
 

be
 in
 p
lac
e 
by
 th

e 
en
d 
of 
Ju
ne
 2
01
0.
 I
t w

ill 
be
 a
 r
eq
uir
em

en
t o

f t
ha
t t
his
 

ch
ec
kli
st 
is 
sig
ne
d o

ff 
on
 a 
mo

nt
hly
 ba

sis
 

  

 
 

 Page 61



 

 
12

 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Mo
rpe

th 
Se

co
nd

ary
 

Sc
ho
ol 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Th
e a

ud
it w

as
 de

sig
ne
d t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 
the

re 
we

re 
ad
eq

ua
te 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 co

ntr
ols

 ov
er 

the
 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f th

e s
ch
oo
l. 

 Co
ntr

ols
 w

ere
 a
de
qu

ate
 in

 F
ina

nc
ial
 P

lan
nin

g 
an

d 
Bu

dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol;
 A

cc
ou
nti
ng

 fo
r 

Inc
om

e 
an
d 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re;

 V
olu

nta
ry 

Fu
nd

 a
nd
 S

ch
oo

l J
ou
rne

y; 
 R

isk
 M

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

Ins
ura

nc
e. 
 H
ow

ev
er,

 w
ea
kn
es
se
s w

ere
 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 ar

ea
s:-

 
 

• 
Th

e s
ch
oo
l c
urr

en
tly
 do

es
 no

t h
av
e a

 Fi
na

nc
ial
 M

an
ag

em
en
t P

roc
ed
ure

s m
an
ua

l 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 fu
ll G

ov
ern

ing
 B
od

y. 
At 

the
 5t

h  O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 F

ina
nc
e C

om
mi
tte
e 

me
eti
ng
, G

ov
ern

ors
 ad

op
ted

 th
e L

BT
H 
mo

de
l s
ch
em

e o
f d

ele
ga
tio
n; 

ho
we

ve
r th

e 
Fin

an
cia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t P

roc
ed
ure

s m
an
ua
l w

as
 no

t a
do

pte
d. 
 

 • 
Th

e c
urr

en
t s

ch
em

e o
f d

ele
ga
tio
n d

id 
no
t s

tat
e c

lea
r f
ina

nc
ial
 lim

its
 de

leg
ate

d f
or 

au
tho

ris
ing

 pa
ym

en
ts 

on
 th

e s
ch
oo

l c
red

it c
ard

, s
ch
oo
l jo

urn
ey
 ac

co
un

t, a
nd

 fo
r 

the
 sc

ho
ol 
fun

d a
cc
ou
nt.
 

 
• 

De
cla

rat
ion

s o
f in

ter
es
t h

ad
 no

t b
ee

n o
bta

ine
d f

rom
 on

e 
go

ve
rno

r a
nd
 tw

o s
taf

f 
me

mb
ers

 w
ith
 fin

an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
. 

 
• 

Se
ve
n u

n-r
ec
on
cile

d i
tem

s o
n t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 b

an
k r

ec
on
cili

ati
on
 re

lat
ed

 to
 

ch
eq
ue
s 
iss

ue
d 
by
 th

e 
sc
ho
ol 

in 
20

08
. T

he
 c
he

qu
es
 a
mo

un
ted

 to
 a
 to

tal
 o
f 

£1
,14

3.4
8. 

  
As

 th
e 
sc
ho

ol 
wa

s 
un
aw

are
 o
f t
his

, n
o 
ac
tio
n 
ha
d 
be

en
 ta

ke
n. 

Fu
rth

er,
 th

e F
ina

nc
e O

ffic
er 

wh
o p

erf
orm

s t
he
 ba

nk
 re

co
nc
ilia

tio
ns
 do

es
 no

t s
ign

 
the

m 
off

. 
All

 fin
din

gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e H
ea

d T
ea
ch
er 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e 

Ch
air

 o
f G

ov
ern

ors
 a
nd

 th
e 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Dir

ec
tor

, C
hil
dre

n’s
 S

erv
ice

s 
thr

ou
gh

 E
du
ca
tio
n 

Fin
an
ce
. 

 

£7
.7.

M 
 

 
Lim

ite
d 

Page 62



 

 
13

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Mo
rpe

th 
Se

co
nd

ary
 

Sc
ho
ol 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

ts;
 

Th
e 
sc
ho
ol 

ha
ve
 a
cte

d 
im
me

dia
tel
y a

nd
 a
gre

ed
 to

 co
mp

let
e 
all
 a
cti
on
s w

ith
 a
 d
efi
ne

d 
tim

efr
am

e. 
Th

e s
ch
oo
l a
nd
 th

e g
ov
ern

ing
 bo

dy
 ar

e  
ful
ly 
co
mm

itte
d t

o t
he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m

ad
e i
n 

the
 Au

dit
 re

po
rt b

y: 
 

 • 
Tra

ck
ing

 al
l a

cti
on
s w

ith
in 

the
 tim

efr
am

e p
rov

ide
d i

n t
he
 re

po
rt, 

inc
lud

ing
 ev

ide
nc
e 

of 
ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

  
• 

Co
nfi
rm

ing
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ste

ps
 th

at 
the

 sc
ho
ol 

are
 pl

an
nin

g t
o t

ak
e i

n l
igh

t o
f th

e a
ud
it 

fin
din

gs
  

• 
Ta

kin
g i
mm

ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in

 m
itig

ati
ng

 ex
po
su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 w
ea
kn
es
se
s i
n 

the
 co

ntr
ol 
en

vir
on

me
nt.
 

  

 
 

 

Page 63



 

 
14

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ph
oe

nix
 Sc

ho
ol 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Th
e a

ud
it w

as
 de

sig
ne
d t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 
the

re 
we

re 
ad
eq

ua
te 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 co

ntr
ols

 ov
er 

the
 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f th

e s
ch
oo
l.  
Ou

r re
vie

w 
rep

ort
ed
 th

e f
oll
ow

ing
  

iss
ue
s:-

 
 

• 
De

cla
rat

ion
s o

f b
us
ine

ss
 in
ter

es
t h
ad

 no
t b

ee
n o

bta
ine

d f
rom

 tw
o G

ov
ern

ors
. 

 
• 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 of
 un

rec
on
cile

d i
tem

s a
s a

t 1
5 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 r

ev
ea

led
 ite

ms
 da

tin
g 

ba
ck
 to

 Ja
nu
ary

 2
00
9. 

Th
es
e 
inc

lud
ed

 a
n 
inc

om
e 
ite
m 

ou
tst
an
din

g 
for

 £
63
1.1

0 
sin

ce
 M

arc
h 2

00
9, 

an
d f

ive
 ite

ms
 of

 ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

tot
all
ing

 so
me

 £1
20
6.9

6. 
 It 

is 
of 

co
nc
ern

 a
s t

he
 o
uts

tan
din

g 
inc

om
e 
ite
m 

for
 £
63
1.1

0 
ap
pe

ars
 to

 b
e 
inc

om
e 
no

t 
ba
nk
ed
 in
 th
e s

ch
oo

l’s 
ba

nk
 ac

co
un
t. 

 
• 

Th
ere

 w
as
 no

 ev
ide

nc
e t

ha
t r
ep
ort

s f
rom

 th
e p

ay
rol

l p
rov

ide
r h

ad
 be

en
 ch

ec
ke
d 

an
d 
rec

on
cile

d 
wit

h 
the

 sc
ho
ol’
s r

ec
ord

s. 
Au

dit
 te

sti
ng

 o
f s

ala
ry 

pa
ym

en
ts 

of 
5 

sta
ff m

em
be
rs 

ide
nti
fie
d d

isc
rep

an
cie

s o
f s

ala
rie

s p
aid

 to
 tw

o s
taf

f m
em

be
rs 

for
 

the
 m

on
ths

 of
 N
ov
em

be
r a

nd
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
9. 

 
• 

Th
ere

 ar
e w

ea
kn
es
se
s i
n c

on
tro

l o
ve
r a

uth
ori

sa
tio
n o

f v
ire
me

nts
 w
ith
in 

de
leg

ate
d 

fin
an
cia

l a
uth

ori
ty.
  

 
• 

Th
e 
sc
ho
ol 

ha
d 
no

t a
lwa

ys
 co

mp
lie
d 
wit

h 
the

 a
pp
rov

ed
 F
ina

nc
ial
 M

an
ag

em
en
t 

Pr
oc
ed
ure

s f
or 

ma
rke

t te
sti
ng
. 

 
• 

Alt
ho
ug

h t
he
re 

are
 in
ve
nto

ry 
rec

ord
s i
n p

lac
e, 

the
re 

wa
s n

o e
vid

en
ce
 of

 an
 an

nu
al 

inv
en
tor

y c
he

ck
 co

nd
uc
ted

. 
 All

 fin
din

gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e H
ea

d T
ea
ch
er 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e 

Ch
air

 o
f G

ov
ern

ors
 a
nd

 th
e 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Dir

ec
tor

, C
hil
dre

n’s
 S

erv
ice

s 
thr

ou
gh

 E
du
ca
tio
n 

Fin
an
ce
.  

 

£3
.5 

M 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 64



 

 
15

 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ph
oe

nix
 Sc

ho
ol 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

ts;
 

 Th
e s

ch
oo
l h
as
 ag

ree
d t

o c
om

ple
te 
all
 ac

tio
ns
 w
ith
 a 

de
fin
ed
 tim

efr
am

e. 
W
e h

av
e w

ritt
en

 to
 th

e s
ch
oo
l fo

rm
all
y r
eq

ue
sti
ng

 th
e s

ch
oo
l a
nd
 th

e g
ov
ern

ing
 bo

dy
 to

 
ful
ly 
co
mm

it t
o t
he

 re
co
mm

en
da

tio
ns
 m

ad
e i
n t

he
 Au

dit
 re

po
rt b

y: 
 

 • 
Tra

ck
ing

 al
l a
cti
on

s w
ith
in 
the

 tim
efr

am
e p

rov
ide

d i
n t

he
 re

po
rt, 

inc
lud

ing
 ev

ide
nc
e 

of 
ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

  
• 

Co
nfi
rm

ing
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ste

ps
 th
at 
the

 sc
ho

ol 
are

 pl
an

nin
g t
o t

ak
e i
n l
igh

t o
f th

e a
ud

it 
fin
din

gs
  

• 
Ta

kin
g i
mm

ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in
 m

itig
ati
ng

 ex
po

su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 w
ea

kn
es
se
s i
n 

the
 co

ntr
ol 
en

vir
on

me
nt.
 

  

 
 

Page 65



 

 
16

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ph
as
e 1

0 o
f 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Ae
ria

l 
Ins

tal
lat
ion

 
W
ork

s 
 Cu

rre
nt 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it 

  

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Th
is 

au
dit
 s
ou

gh
t t
o 
pro

vid
e 
as
su
ran

ce
 o
ve
r t

he
 s
ys
tem

s 
in 

pla
ce
 fo

r m
ak
ing

 in
ter

im
 

pa
ym

en
ts;
 fo

r c
on
tro

llin
g a

nd
 is
su
ing

 va
ria

tio
n o

rde
rs;

 fo
r r
ec
eiv

ing
 an

d e
va
lua

tin
g c

lai
ms

; 
an
d 
for

 m
on
ito
rin

g 
co
st 

an
d 
wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

es
 fo

r t
he
 w

ork
s 
co
ntr

ac
t. 
 T

he
 fo

llo
win

g 
fin
din

gs
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

• 
Th

e w
ork

s c
ou
ld 
be

 is
su
ed

 to
 ei
the

r o
f th

e t
wo

 co
ntr

ac
tor

s p
art

ne
rin

g t
he
 Fr

am
ew

ork
 

Ag
ree

me
nt.
  H

ow
ev
er,

 it 
wa

s n
ot 
cle

ar 
on

 w
ha

t b
as
is 
the

 w
ork

s w
ere

 is
su
ed
 to

 SS
C 

Int
ern

ati
on

al 
Ltd

 an
d n

ot 
the

 ot
he

r c
on
tra

cto
r a

s t
he
re 

we
re 

no
 cl
ea

r c
rite

ria
 fo

r 
all
oc
ati
ng
 w
ork

s t
o c

on
tra

cto
rs 

un
de
r th

e p
art

ne
rin

g c
on

tra
ct.
   

• 
No

 co
ntr

ac
t d

oc
um

en
t d
es
cri
bin

g t
he

 na
tur

e o
f w

ork
s, 
pri
cin

g, 
sta

rt d
ate

, c
om

ple
tio
n 

da
te 

etc
. w

as
 is
su
ed
 to

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
r a

s r
eq

uir
ed

 by
 th

e m
ain

 co
ntr

ac
t c
on

dit
ion

s. 
 

On
ly 
an
 or

de
r w

as
 is
su
ed
 co

ve
rin

g t
he
 w
ork

s f
or 

the
 va

lue
 of

 £8
50

k, 
alt
ho

ug
h c

on
tra

ct 
es
tim

ate
 w
as
 £8

00
k. 
Th

e b
uil
d u

p t
o t

he
 co

ntr
ac
t e
sti
ma

te 
wa

s n
ot 
su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 
wo

rki
ng
 pa

pe
rs.

  N
o c

os
t re

po
rts

 w
ere

 be
ing

 pr
ep
are

d a
nd
 su

bm
itte

d t
o t

he
 m

on
ito
rin
g 

off
ice

r.  
Th

ere
 w
as
 no

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 bo

nd
 in
 pl
ac
e f

or 
the

 sc
he
me

.  W
ork

s c
om

me
nc
ed
 

on
 si
te 

pri
or 

to 
the

 ap
pro

va
l o
f th

e H
ea

lth
 & 

Sa
fet

y P
lan

, w
hic

h r
es
ult
ed

 in
 a 
bre

ac
h o

f 
He

alt
h &

 Sa
fet

y r
eg

ula
tio
ns
, a
lth
ou

gh
 w
e u

nd
ers

tan
d t

ha
t s
ub
se
qu
en

t to
 Au

dit
 ra

isin
g 

thi
s i
ss
ue

, th
e H

&S
 Pl

an
 ha

d b
ee

n a
pp
rov

ed
.  N

o s
tar

tin
g a

nd
 co

mp
let
ion

 da
tes

 w
ere

 
sp
ec
ifie

d a
ga

ins
t w

hic
h w

ork
s p

rog
ram

me
 ca

n b
e m

on
ito
red

.   
• 

In 
vie

w 
of 

a n
um

be
r o

f n
on
-co

mp
lia
nc
e i
ss
ue
s, 
we

 ha
ve
 re

co
mm

en
de
d t
ha
t th

e 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 As

se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t s
ho

uld
 in
ve
sti
ga

te 
a n

um
be
r o

f a
sp
ec
ts 
of 
co
ntr

ac
t 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

rou
nd

 th
is 
co
ntr

ac
t.  
In 

ad
dit
ion

, w
e h

av
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 th
at 

the
 

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 As

se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t s
ho

uld
 pu

t m
on
ito
rin

g s
ys
tem

s i
n p

lac
e t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 

an
y n

on
-co

mp
lia
nc
e w

ith
 co

ntr
ols

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s i
s d

ete
cte

d a
nd

 pr
ev
en

ted
 at
 an

 
ea
rly
 st
ag

e i
n t
he

 lif
e c

yc
le 
of 

a c
on
tra

ct.
   

All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f A

ss
et 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt.

 
 

 
£8
50

K 
 Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 66



 

 
17

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ph
as
e 1

0 o
f 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Ae
ria

l 
Ins

tal
lat
ion

 
W
ork

s 
 Cu

rre
nt 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it 

  

Ma
y 2

01
0 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
 1. 
Ind

ivid
ua

l re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 im

ple
me

nte
d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

 co
ntr

ol 
    
 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
im
pro

ve
s t
o a

dd
res

s t
he
 is
su
es
 ra

ise
d b

y A
ud

it. 
 2. 
Th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f A

ss
et 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ha

s i
ns
pe

cte
d t

he
 re

lev
an

t s
ite
s. 

 3. 
Ex

ter
na
l q
ua

nti
ty 
su
rve

yo
r is

 be
ing

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 to

 re
vie

w 
thi
s c

on
tra

ct 
to 

ob
tai
n 

ad
dit
ion

al 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s. 
 

 
 

Page 67



 

 
18

 

 Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e o

f 
To

we
r H

am
let
s 

Ho
me

s 
 Fo

llo
w 
Up

 au
dit
 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

is 
fol
low

 u
p 

au
dit
 a

ss
es
se
d 

the
 p

rog
res

s 
ma

de
 b

y 
TH

H 
in 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 t
he

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on

s m
ad
e a

t th
e c

on
clu

sio
n o

f th
e f

ull
 au

dit
 in
 M

ay
 20

09
. 

 Ou
r 
fol
low

 u
p 

rev
iew

 h
as
 s

ho
wn

 t
ha

t 
eig

ht 
ou
t 
of 

the
 n

ine
tee

n 
pre

vio
us
 a

ud
it 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s h
av
e b

ee
n f

ull
y i
mp

lem
en
ted

, s
ix 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s a

re 
in 

the
 pr

oc
es
s 

of 
be
ing

 im
ple

me
nte

d 
an

d 
tw
o 

ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

pa
rtia

lly 
im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 T

wo
 p

rio
rity

 2
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s h
av
e n

ot 
be
en

 im
ple

me
nte

d a
nd
 th

es
e c

on
ce
rn 

the
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f 
an
 A

nti
- F

rau
d 
Str

ate
gy
 a
nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 re
mi
nd
 s
taf

f o
f t
he
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 s
et 

ou
t i
n 

Fin
an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio
ns
 w
he
n p

roc
es
sin

g a
nd

 ce
rtif

yin
g p

ay
me

nts
.   

 All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 

Re
so
urc

es
. 

  

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Bu
dg

eta
ry 

Co
ntr

ol 
wit

hin
 

CL
C 
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Ap
ril 
20

10
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 so

ug
ht 
to 

pro
vid

e a
ss
ura

nc
e o

ve
r s

ys
tem

s f
or 

bu
dg

eta
ry 
co
ntr

ol 
in 
pla

ce
 w
ith
in 

the
 C
om

mu
nit
ies

, L
eis

ure
 an

d C
ult
ure

 (C
LC

) d
ire
cto

rat
e. 

 Ou
r re

vie
w 
sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
sy
ste

ms
 fo

r b
ud
ge
t p

lan
nin

g, 
bu
dg

et 
se
ttin

g, 
bu

dg
et 
rep

ort
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
, a

nd
 ye

ar 
en

d c
los

ure
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s w

ere
 sa

tis
fac

tor
y. 
  

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
wa

s r
eq

uir
ed

 in
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r c

arr
yin

g o
ut 

an
d a

pp
rov

ing
 jo
urn

als
.  T

es
tin
g 

fou
nd
 th

at 
all
 jo
urn

als
 w
ere

 su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 so
urc

e d
oc
um

en
ts 
su
ch
 as

 in
vo
ice

s, 
rec

ha
rge

 
for

ms
 et
c. 
  H

ow
ev
er,

 th
e n

arr
ati
ve
 in
 th

e f
orm

 of
 te
xtu

al 
att

ac
hm

en
ts 
did

 no
t c
on
tai
n a

 
rea

so
n f

or 
the

 jo
urn

al 
in 
the

 va
st 
ma

jor
ity
 of

 jo
urn

als
 te

ste
d. 
 M

ore
ov
er,

 th
ere

 w
as
 no

 
gu
ida

nc
e i
n r

es
pe
ct 
of 

wh
o s

ho
uld

 au
tho

ris
e J

ou
rna

l e
ntr

y t
ran

sa
cti
on

s a
nd

 th
e e

xp
ec
ted

 
lim

its
 of

 su
ch
 au

tho
ris
ati
on
.  F

ou
r re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 ra
ise

d f
oll
ow

ing
 ou

r re
vie

w 
of 

thi
s a

rea
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e F
ina

nc
e M

an
ge
r a

nd
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 

wa
s i
ss
ue
d t

o t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

, C
om

mu
nit
ies

, L
oc
ali
tie
s a

nd
 C
ult
ure

. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 Page 68



 

 
19

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op
le 

 Fo
llo
w 
Up

 au
dit
 

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 f
oll
ow

ed
 u

p 
au
dit
 a

ss
es
se
d 

the
 p

rog
res

s 
ma

de
 i
n 

im
ple

me
nti
ng

 t
he

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on

s m
ad
e a

t th
e c

on
clu

sio
n o

f a
 fu

ll s
ys
tem

s a
ud
it i
n M

ay
 20

09
. 

Ou
r f
oll
ow

 u
p 
rev

iew
 sh

ow
ed
 th

at 
bo

th 
tw
o 
pre

vio
us
 a
ud
it r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s h

ad
 b
ee

n 
im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 It 

wa
s e

sta
bli
sh
ed

 th
at 

all
 P
rov

ide
rs 

wh
o w

ere
 on

 th
e l

ow
es
t L

ev
el 

"D
" o

n 
the

 R
isk

 R
eg
ist
er 

ha
d e

ith
er 

im
pro

ve
d t

he
ir g

rad
ing

 to
 Le

ve
l "C

" o
r w

ere
 in

 th
e p

roc
es
s o

f 
be
ing

 d
ec
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
. O

ur 
rev

iew
 s
ho

we
d 

tha
t t

he
 Q

ua
lity

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 

(Q
AF

) m
on
ito
rin

g s
pre

ad
sh
ee
t, w

hic
h s

ho
we

d P
rov

ide
rs 

QA
F 
sc
ore

s A
 to

 D
, w

ill 
no

w 
be

 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 a
 S

tee
rin

g 
Gr

ou
p 
he

ad
ed

 u
p 
by
 th

e 
Int

eri
m 

Co
rpo

rat
e 
Dir

ec
tor

 o
f A

du
lts
, 

He
alt
h &

 W
ell
be
ing

. T
he
 Q

ua
lity

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 (Q

AF
) m

on
ito
rin

g s
pre

ad
sh
ee

t, 
wh

ich
 s
ho

we
d 

Pr
ov
ide

rs 
QA

F 
sc
ore

s 
wo

uld
 b

e 
pre

se
nte

d 
to 

the
 S

up
po

rtin
g 

Pe
op
le 

Ste
eri

ng
 G

rou
p 
an

d 
Pr
ov
ide

rs 
on
 th

e 
low

es
t l
ev
el 

QA
F 
sc
ore

 w
ere

 o
n 
the

 S
up
po
rtin

g 
Pe

op
le 

Ris
k 

Re
gis

ter
 a

nd
 w

ere
 b

ein
g 

mo
nit
ore

d 
to 

im
pro

ve
 t
he
ir 

sc
ore

 o
r 
be

ing
 

de
co
mm

iss
ion

ed
.  

Th
e 
cro

ss
 a
uth

ori
ty/
su
b 
reg

ion
al 

pro
cu
rem

en
t p

roj
ec
t h

as
 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
rep

lac
ed

 by
 a 

ne
w 
ten

de
rin

g s
tra

teg
y u

sin
g t

he
 To

llg
ate

 pr
oc
es
s. 

Th
e 
fol
low

 u
p 
rep

ort
 w

as
 is

su
ed
 to

 th
e 
Int

eri
m 

Co
rpo

rat
e 
Dir

ec
tor

, A
du

lts
, H

ea
lth
 a
nd

 
W
ell
be
ing

. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 69



 

 
20

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Bu
ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 

for
 th
e F

utu
re 

 St.
 Pa

ul’
s W

ay
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Sc
ho
ol 
– C

urr
en
t 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it 

Ap
ril 

20
10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 cl
ien

t-s
ide

 sy
ste

ms
 in
 pl
ac
e 

for
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin

g t
he

 co
st 
an

d w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
.  T

he
 C
on
tra

ct 
for

 th
e 

reb
uil
din

g o
f S

t P
au

l’s 
W
ay
 Sc

ho
ol 
is 
ba
se
d o

n a
 fix

ed
 pr

ice
 D
es
ign

 an
d B

uil
d C

on
tra

ct.
 

Ou
r re

vie
w 
fou

nd
 th

at 
the

re 
wa

s a
 st
ruc

tur
ed

 m
on
ito
rin

g r
eg
im
e i
n p

lac
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

 
co
ntr

ols
 as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e c
urr

en
cy
 of

 co
ntr

ac
t w

ere
 m

on
ito
red

, re
co
rde

d a
nd
 re

po
rte

d 
up
on

.  C
lie
nt-

sid
e m

on
ito
rin

g o
f th

e c
on

tra
ct 
du
rin

g t
he

 co
ns
tru

cti
on
 pe

rio
d h

ad
 be

en
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 to
 en

su
re 

co
nti
nu
ity
 ov

er 
the

 C
on

tra
ct 
pe
rio

d. 
Ho

we
ve
r, t

he
re 

req
uir

ed
 to
 be

 a 
str

uc
tur

ed
 pr

oc
es
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 pa

ym
en
t c
ert

ific
ate

s a
nd

 va
ria
tio
ns
 re

lat
e s

ole
ly 
to 

the
 St

 Pa
ul’
s W

ay
 co

ntr
ac
t a
nd
 ar

e n
ot 
int
erm

ing
led

 w
ith
 th

e p
ay
me

nts
 an

d v
ari

ati
on
s 

iss
ue
d t

o o
the

r w
ork

s t
ha
t B

ou
yg
ue
s a

re 
un
de

rta
kin

g a
s p

art
 of

 th
e B

SF
 pr

og
ram

me
.  

 Of
fic
ers

 ne
ed
ed
 to

 en
su
re 

tha
t p
rio

r to
 po

ss
es
sio

n o
f s
ite
 by

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
r, t

he
 H
ea

lth
 an

d 
Sa

fet
y p

lan
 w
as
 in
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 w
as
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he

 C
DM

 co
ord

ina
tor

, a
s t
he
re 

wa
s r

isk
 of

 
wo

rks
 st
art

ing
 on

 si
te 

wit
ho

ut 
an

 ap
pro

ve
d H

&S
 pl
an
.  W

e m
ad
e 4

 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 on

 
thi
s r

ep
ort

, o
ne
 of

 w
hic

h i
s p

rio
rity

 1 
an

d t
he

 re
st 
pri

ori
ty 
tw
o. 
 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
 w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H
ea

d –
 Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho
ols

 
for

 th
e F

utu
re.

 
  

£3
6M

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 Page 70



 

 
21

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

NN
DR

 
Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il c

oll
ec
ts 

ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
£2

90
m 

of 
NN

DR
 ea

ch
 ye

ar 
an

d t
he

 ob
jec

tiv
e o

f t
he

 
sy
ste

m 
is 
to 

en
su
re 

the
 pr

om
pt 

pre
pa
rat

ion
 an

d c
ha
rgi

ng
 of

 N
ND

R 
to 

all
 lia

ble
 bu

sin
es
se
s 

wit
hin

 th
e B

oro
ug
h, 

the
 pr

om
pt 

pa
ym

en
t o

f N
ND

R 
an
d t

he
 pr

op
er 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

NN
DR

 
de
bt.
 

 Ov
era

ll, 
the

re 
we

re 
ad

eq
ua

te 
co
ntr

ols
 in

 p
lac

e 
ov
er 

Am
en
din

g 
of 

Sta
nd

ing
 D

ata
 a
nd

 
Va

lua
tio
n 

Lis
ts,
 
Dis

co
un

ts,
 
Re

fun
ds
, 

Ar
rea

rs,
 
Su

sp
en
se
 
Ac

co
un

ts 
an
d 

Sy
ste

m 
Re

co
nc
ilia

tio
n 
an

d 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 a
nd

 C
oll
ec
tio
n 
Ra

tes
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 
fro

m 
ou
r 

rev
iew

 w
e 

fou
nd

 th
at 

wa
s 
no
 p

roc
es
s 
in 

pla
ce
 to

 p
eri
od

ica
lly 

as
se
ss
 th

e 
co
nti
nu

ed
 

eli
gib

ility
 of

 a 
rat

e p
ay
er 

to 
NN

DR
 re

lie
f (i

.e.
 at
 th

e s
tar

t o
f th

e y
ea
r). 

 
 Th

e f
ind

ing
s a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
-R
ev
en

ue
s a

nd
 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

, R
es
ou

rce
s. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x 

Ap
ril 

20
10
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 o
f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
Ta

x 
sy
ste

m 
are

 to
 e
ns
ure

 th
e 
pro

mp
t p

rep
ara

tio
n 
an

d 
ch
arg

ing
 o
f C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 to

 a
ll l
iab

le 
pro

pe
rtie

s i
n 
the

 B
oro

ug
h, 

the
 p
rom

pt 
co
lle
cti
on
 o
f 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x 
pa

ym
en
ts 

an
d 
the

 p
rop

er 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x 
de
bt.

 T
he
 C

ou
nc
il 

co
lle
cts

 ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
£6

6m
 an

nu
all
y. 

 Ov
era

ll, 
the

re 
we

re 
ad

eq
ua

te 
co
ntr

ols
 in

 p
lac

e 
ov
er 

Am
en
din

g 
of 

Sta
nd

ing
 D

ata
 a
nd

 
Va

lua
tio
n 
Lis

ts,
 R

efu
nd
s, 

Ar
rea

rs,
 S

us
pe
ns
e 
Ac

co
un

ts 
an
d 
Sy

ste
m 

Re
co
nc
ilia

tio
n, 

an
d 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Inf

orm
ati
on
 an

d C
oll
ec
tio
n R

ate
s. 
 H
ow

ev
er 

ou
r r
ev
iew

 fo
un

d t
ha
t th

e t
arg

et 
for

 ra
isin

g 
a 

bil
l w

ith
in 

10
 w

ork
ing

 d
ay
s 

(or
 fo

urt
ee
n 

da
ys
) f

oll
ow

ing
 n

oti
fic
ati
on
 o

f 
oc
cu
pa
nc
y w

as
 no

t b
ein

g m
et.
  W

e a
lso

 fo
un
d t

ha
t th

ere
 w

as
 no

 pr
oc
es
s t

o a
ss
es
s t

he
 

co
nti
nu

ed
 el

igi
bil
ity
 of

 pe
rso

ns
 cl
aim

ing
 th

e S
ing

le 
Pe

rso
n’s

 D
isc

ou
nt 

or 
a v

oid
 al

low
an
ce
 

an
d i
n s

om
e c

as
es
 su

pp
ort

ing
 do

cu
me

nts
 w
ere

 no
t a

va
ila
ble

. 
 

 Th
e f

ind
ing

s a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
-R
ev
en

ue
s a

nd
 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

, R
es
ou

rce
s. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 Page 71



 

 
22

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

De
bto

rs 
Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
e A

uth
ori

ty’
s D

eb
tor

s s
ys
tem

 is
 to

 en
su
re 

tha
t d

eb
tor

 in
co
me

 du
e t

o t
he

 
au
tho

rity
 is
 id
en

tifi
ed

, re
co
rde

d a
nd
 co

lle
cte

d a
cc
ura

tel
y a

nd
 in
 a 

tim
ely

 m
an
ne
r. 

 Ou
r r
ev
iew

 sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
ov
era

ll t
he
re 

we
re 

ad
eq

ua
te 

co
ntr

ol 
ov
er 

Co
lle
cti
on
 o
f I
nc
om

e, 
Re

co
ve
ry 

of 
De

bt,
 W

rite
 O

ff 
an
d 
Ac

ce
ss
 C

on
tro

ls.
  
Ho

we
ve
r, 

we
 re

po
rte

d 
tha

t w
hil
st 

rec
en
t r

ec
on
cili

ati
on

s 
ha
d 
be
en
 c
arr

ied
 o
ut,
 th

e 
rec

on
cili

ati
on

 w
ork

ing
 p
ap

ers
 h
ad
 n
ot 

be
en
 si
gn

ed
 as

 re
vie

we
d b

y a
 m

ore
 se

nio
r o

ffic
er 

to 
ve
rify

 ac
cu
rac

y. 
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t s

ys
tem

, E
xc
els

is,
 w

hic
h s

ho
uld

 be
 up

da
ted

 w
ith
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

tar
ge
ts 

an
d 

ac
tua

l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 in

for
ma

tio
n. 

 O
ur 

tes
tin
g 

fou
nd

 t
ha
t 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 h
ad
 n
ot 

be
en
 u
pd
ate

d 
on

 a
 m

on
thl
y b

as
is.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 ta

rge
ts 

ha
d 
be

en
 se

t, 
ac
tua

l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 in
for

ma
tio
n h

ad
 no

t b
ee

n e
nte

red
 fo

r th
e y

ea
r. 

 
All

 fi
nd

ing
s 
an
d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d 
-R
ev
en

ue
s 
an

d 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

, R
es
ou

rce
s. 

  

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Pe
ns
ion

s 
Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
is 
au

dit
 w
as
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 co
ntr

ols
 in
 pl
ac
e f

or 
eff

ec
tiv
e 

an
d e

ffic
ien

t a
dm

ini
str

ati
on

 of
 pe

ns
ion

s. 
 O

ur 
rev

iew
 fo

un
d a

de
qu

ate
 co

ntr
ol 

ov
er 

Jo
ine

rs 
an
d L

ea
ve
rs,

 E
mp

loy
ee

 an
d E

mp
loy

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
, P

en
sio

n P
ay
me

nts
, M

ain
ten

an
ce
 of

 
Pe

ns
ion

 R
ec
ord

s a
nd
 R
ec
on
cili

ati
on

 w
ith
 G
en
era

l L
ed

ge
r.  

W
e f

ou
nd
 th

at 
Me

mb
er 

de
tai
ls 

are
 up

da
ted

 vi
a a

n i
nte

rfa
ce
 be

tw
ee
n R

es
ou
rce

 Li
nk
 an

d A
XIS

, w
hic

h i
s r

un
 on

 a 
we

ek
ly 

ba
sis

.  
 W

e f
ou
nd
 th

at 
the

 in
ter

fac
e w

as
 no

t r
un

 on
 a
 re

gu
lar
 b
as
is 

wh
ich

 ca
n 
res

ult
 in

 
me

mb
er 

de
tai
ls 
no

t b
ein

g u
pd
ate

d o
n a

 re
gu

lar
 ba

sis
.   

 All
 fi
nd

ing
s 
an
d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d 
-R
ev
en

ue
s 
an

d 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

, R
es
ou

rce
s. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l  

  

Page 72



 

 
23

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Cu
bit
t T

ow
n 

Inf
an
ts 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

e a
ud
it w

as
 de

sig
ne
d t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 
the

re 
we

re 
ad
eq

ua
te 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 co

ntr
ols

 ov
er 

the
 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n 
an

d 
fin
an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t o

f t
he
 sc

ho
ol.
  C

on
tro

ls 
we

re 
ad
eq

ua
te 

in 
the

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Sc
ho
ols

 B
an
k A

cc
ou
nt;
 A
cc
ou

nti
ng
 of

 In
co
me

 an
d E

xp
en

dit
ure

; C
ha
rgi

ng
 

Po
licy

 an
d I

nc
om

e C
oll
ec
tio
n a

nd
 Ba

nk
ing

; S
ch
oo

l M
ea
ls;
 S
ec
uri
ty 
of 

the
 IT

 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e, 
Dis

as
ter

 R
ec
ov
ery

, D
ata

 P
rot

ec
tio
n; 

an
d 
Ris

k 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an

d 
Ins

ura
nc
e. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 
we

ak
ne
ss
es
 w
ere

 id
en
tifi
ed

 in
 th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 ar

ea
s:-

 
 

• 
Bu

dg
et 

vir
em

en
ts 
ha
d b

ee
n p

erf
orm

ed
, b

ut 
no
 do

cu
me

nta
ry 

ev
ide

nc
e s

ho
win

g t
he

 
bu
dg

et 
vir
em

en
ts 
ma

de
 w
as
 re

tai
ne

d b
y t
he
 sc

ho
ol.
  M

ore
ov
er,

 fro
m 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e 
Go

ve
rni

ng
 B

od
y 

an
d 

Fin
an
ce
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

mi
nu
tes

 t
he
re 

wa
s 

a 
lac

k 
of 

do
cu
me

nta
ry 

ev
ide

nc
e 

to 
sh
ow

 th
at 

the
 v

ire
me

nts
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

pre
se
nte

d 
for

 
ap
pro

va
l. 

 
• 

Th
ere

 w
as
 n
o 
thr

es
ho

ld 
ex
pe
nd

itu
re 

lim
its
 d
eta

ilin
g 
the

 n
um

be
r o

f q
uo
tat
ion

s 
req

uir
ed

 w
he

n p
roc

uri
ng
 go

od
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s. 

 M
ore

ov
er,

 th
ere

 w
as
 no

 ev
ide

nc
e 

wh
ich

 de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 th

e s
ch
oo

l s
ou
gh

t a
ny
 qu

ota
tio
ns
 w
he

re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 fo
r la

rge
 

ex
pe
nd

itu
re.

  
Fro

m 
a 
sa
mp

le 
of 

ten
 p
urc

ha
se
 o
rde

rs 
se
lec

ted
 fo

r t
es
tin
g, 

fiv
e 

pu
rch

as
e o

rde
r fo

rm
s w

ere
 no

t a
uth

ori
se
d b

y t
he

 au
tho

ris
ed
 si
gn

ato
ry.
 

 
• 

Th
ere

 w
as
 no

 w
ritt

en
 st
ate

me
nt 
of 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 fo

r th
e s

ch
oo
l fu

nd
 ac

co
un

t. 
 

• 
Th

e s
ch
oo
l w

as
 in

 th
e p

roc
es
s o

f p
utt
ing

 to
ge

the
r c

om
ple

te 
inv

en
tor

y r
ec
ord

s a
t 

the
 ti
me

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it. 

No
 e

vid
en

ce
 w

as
 id

en
tifi
ed
 to

 c
on
firm

 th
at 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
inv

en
tor

y c
he

ck
 w
as
 un

de
rta

ke
n. 
  

 
• 

Th
e 

sc
ho
ol 

did
 n

ot 
ha

ve
 a

n 
ap
pro

ve
d 

dis
po
sa
l p

oli
cy
 a

nd
 d

id 
no

t m
ain

tai
n 

ad
eq

ua
te 

rec
ord

s o
f d

isp
os
als

 m
ad
e s

inc
e t

he
 la
st 
int
ern

al 
au

dit
.   

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e H
ea

d T
ea
ch
er 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e 

Ch
air

 o
f G

ov
ern

ors
 a
nd

 th
e 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Dir

ec
tor

, C
hil
dre

n’s
 S

erv
ice

s 
thr

ou
gh

 E
du
ca
tio
n 

Fin
an
ce
. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

Page 73



 

 24 

APPENDIX 3  
Internal Audit Coverage – 2009/10 

 
Internal Audit Reports 2009/10 – Summary of audit reports 
 
Audit Description Significance Assurance 
Corporate Systems 
Management of Climate Change Extensive Limited 
Health and Safety at Work Extensive Substantial 
Risk Management  Extensive Substantial 

Contract Management and Monitoring Extensive TBC 

Absence Management  Extensive Limited 

Assistant Chief Executive’s   
Members Allowances  Low Substantial 

Legal Planning Meetings  Extensive Limited 

Commissioning Approach to Mainstream Grants Moderate Limited  

Management of Working Neighbourhood Fund Extensive Limited 
Children, Schools and Family   
Building Schools for the Future - St Paul’s Way 
Community School Current Contract Audit 

Extensive Substantial 

Common Assessment Framework Moderate Substantial 

Social Care Commissioning and Client Monitoring Moderate Substantial 

Management and Control of Surplus balances Extensive Substantial 

Manorfield School – Current Contract Audit Extensive Substantial 
St Edmunds Primary Moderate Limited 
Bethnal Green Technology College Moderate Substantial 
Langdon Park Secondary Moderate Nil 
Harry Roberts Nursery Moderate Limited 
Seven Mills Primary Moderate Substantial 
Stephen Hawkings Primary Moderate Limited 
Phoenix School  Moderate Limited 
Morpeth Secondary  Moderate Limited 
Raines Secondary Moderate Limited 
   

Page 74



 

 25 

Audit Description Significance Assurance 
Thomas Buxton Infant Moderate Limited 
Columbia Market Nursery  Moderate Substantial 
Bowden House  Moderate Substantial 
Boy Boys Secondary Moderate Limited 
Mulberry Girls Secondary Moderate Substantial 
St Johns CE Primary Moderate Substantial 
Central Foundation Secondary Moderate Nil 
Sir John Cass & Redcoat Secondary Moderate Substantial 
Shapla Primary School Moderate Limited 
Olga Primary School  Moderate Limited 
Swanlea Secondary School  Moderate Limited 
Harry Gosling Primary  Moderate Limited 
Old Church Nursery  Moderate Limited 
George Greens Secondary Moderate Substantial 
Ian Mikardo Primary Moderate TBC 
Rachel Keeling Nursery Moderate Limited 
Childrens House Nursery Moderate Substantial 
Bishop Challoner Girls Moderate Substantial 
Bishop Challoner Boys Moderate Substantial 
Stepney Green Secondary Moderate Limited 
Oaklands Secondary Moderate Substantial 
St Pauls Way Community School Moderate TBC 
   
Communities, Localities and Culture   
Recycling of household waste – contract 
monitoring 

Extensive Limited 

Brady Arts Centre – FU Moderate Substantial 

ASBO Management and Enforcement Extensive Substantial 

Governance of Tower Hamlets Partnership Extensive Substantial 

Control and Monitoring of Parking Permits Moderate  Limited  

ASBO Management and Enforcement - FU Moderate Substantial 

Management of Highways Works Extensive Substantial 

Budgetary Control Extensive Substantial 

   

Page 75



 

 26 

 
Audit Description Significance Assurance 
Tower Hamlets Homes   
Financial Systems Extensive Substantial 
Performance Management  Extensive Substantial 
Budgetary Control Extensive Limited 
Management and control of decants – Ocean 
Estate 

Moderate Limited 

Management and control of keys to void dwellings  Moderate Limited 
Strategic Management of SLAs Extensive Substantial 
Community Aerial Installation – Current Contract 
Audit 

Low Limited 

Housing Repairs Extensive Limited 
Unauthorised Occupants – Follow Up Moderate Substantial 
Management of Voids – Follow Up Extensive Substantial 
Governance  Extensive Substantial 
Horticulture Contract Monitoring - FU Moderate Substantial 
Sydney Street – Central Heating Contract Audit Moderate Substantial 
   
Development and Renewal   
Homeless and Temporary Accommodation Extensive  Substantial 
Budgetary Control  Extensive  Substantial 
S. 106 Planning Obligations – FU Extensive  Substantial 
Client Monitoring of ALMO – FU Extensive  Substantial 
Commercial Property Management  - FU Extensive  Substantial 
Managing of Planning Permissions  Extensive TBC 
Service Charges Extensive TBC 
   

Page 76



 

 27 

 
Audit Description Significance Assurance 
Adults Health and Wellbeing   

Governance of Pooled Agreements Moderate Substantial 
Supporting People – FU Extensive Substantial 
Commissioning of Elderly Service - FU Extensive Substantial 
Homelessness Assessment – FU Extensive Substantial 
Resources   
Investments /Loans/Prudential Borrowing  Extensive Substantial 
Grant Claim of Teachers Pensions  Extensive Substantial 
VAT Management Extensive TBC 
IFRS Implementation FU Extensive Substantial 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit Extensive Substantial 
General Ledger incl. Budgetary Control  Extensive Substantial 
Cashiers / Cash income Extensive Substantial 
Council Tax Extensive Substantial 
Sundry Debtors including Recovery and Write offs Extensive Substantial 
Creditors Extensive TBC 
Capital Accounting Extensive TBC 
Pensions  Extensive Substantial 
N.N.D.R. Extensive Substantial 
Personnel/Payroll  Extensive Substantial 
Housing Rents  Extensive Substantial 
Pensions Fund  Extensive Substantial 
Computer Audit   
Network Follow Up Extensive Limited 
Internet & e-Mail Extensive Substantial 
Business Continuity Planning Extensive Substantial 
Change Management Extensive Substantial 
Comino (Document Management)  Moderate Limited 
ICT Service Desk  Extensive Substantial 
JD Edwards Finance Application and AS400 
Operating System  

Extensive Limited 

Page 77



 

 28 

Audit Description Significance Assurance 
Icon Income Management and e-Payments Extensive Limited 
Framework i (Childrens Social Care Application)  Extensive TBC 
Authority Public Protection Application Extensive Substantial 
Software Licensing Follow up Moderate Substantial 
Anti Virus and Spyware Follow up Extensive Substantial 
Server Virtualisation Follow up Moderate Substantial 
Acolaid Application Follow up Moderate Substantial 
Information Security Policies and Procedures Moderate Substantial 
Off Site Working Moderate Limited 
DR Provisions Moderate Substantial 
Data Back up and Data centre Extensive Substantial 
   
 

Page 78



 

 29 

 APPENDIX 4 
Head of Audit Opinion - Summary 
 
Background 
 
The purpose of this report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit annual reporting 
requirements set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the United Kingdom 2006.  The Code advises at paragraph 10.4 that the 
report should: 
 

a) Include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s internal control environment; 

b) Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the 
qualification; 

c) Present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies; 

d) Draw attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly 
relevant to the preparation of the statement on internal control; 

e) Compare the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and 
summarise the performance of the Internal Audit function against its performance 
measures and criteria; and 

f) Comment on compliance with these standards and communicate the results of 
the Internal Audit quality assurance programme. 

 
The Code of Practice also states at Paragraph 10.4 that: 
 
“The Head of Internal Audit should provide a written report to those charged with 
governance.” 
 
Therefore in setting out how it meets the reporting requirements, this report also outlines 
how the Internal Audit function has supported the Council in meeting the requirements of 
Regulation 4 the Accounts and Audit Regulations.  These state that: 
 
“The relevant body shall be responsible for ensuring that the financial management of 
the body is adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal 
control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.” 
 
 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion on the Effectiveness of Internal Control 2009/10 
 
This opinion statement is provided for the use of London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Council (hereafter referred to as the Council) in support of its Statement on Internal 
Control (required under Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003) 
that is included in the statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010. 
 

Page 79



 

 30 

Scope of Responsibility 
 
The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the 
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which it functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that 
there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the 
Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
 
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather 
than to eliminate risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system 
of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the 
risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
 
The Internal Control Environment 
 
The Internal Audit Code of Practice states that the internal control environment 
comprises three key areas, internal control, governance and risk management 
processes. Our opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control environment is based 
on an assessment of each of these three key areas. 
 
 
Review of Effectiveness 
 
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control. The review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the 
executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for the development 
and maintenance of the internal control environment, and also by comments made by 
the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates in the annual audit 
letter and other reports. 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

 31 

 
Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement 
 
My opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal Audit Services during the year as 
part of the agreed internal audit plan for 2009/10, including an assessment of the 
Council’s corporate governance and risk management processes. 
 
The internal audit plan for 2009/10 was developed to primarily provide management with 
independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal 
control. 
 
 
Basis of Assurance 
Audits have been conducted in accordance with the mandatory standards and good 
practice contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the UK 2006 and additionally from internal quality assurance systems.  
This programme of work is outlined at Appendix 3. 
 
My opinion is limited to the work carried out by Internal Audit during the year on the 
effectiveness of the management of those principal risks, identified within the 
organisation’s Assurance Framework, that are covered by Internal Audit’s programme. 
Where principal risks are identified within the organisation’s framework that do not fall 
under Internal Audit’s coverage, I am satisfied that a system is in place that provides 
reasonable assurance that these risks are being managed effectively. 
100% of Internal Audit work for the year to 31 March 2010 was completed in line with 
the operational plan.  The percentage levels of assurance achieved for reports 
submitted in 2009/10 are depicted in Graph 1 below.  This shows that 67% of the 
systems audited achieved an assurance level of full or substantial assurance, whereas 
only 33% of systems audited achieved limited or nil assurance. This is a good 
performance by the council particularly as only one system was assigned nil assurance 
in the financial year. 
 
Internal Audit’s planned programme of work also includes following-up all agreed 
recommendations.  I believe this also to be a positive performance by the Council, 
particularly given that 96% of priority 1 and 82% of priority 2 recommendations followed 
up had been implemented when the audit revisited the area. This is a significant 
improvement on last year’s performance of 77% for all recommendations. I have 
therefore developed escalation procedures over the last year to improve on current 
performance and these have been agreed by the Corporate Management Team and the 
Audit Committee. In particular, all priority 1 recommendations must be implemented as a 
matter of course. 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

 32 

 
Graph 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2008/09 Year Opinion 
 
Internal Control 
 
From the Internal Audit work undertaken in 2009/10, it is my opinion that I can provide 
satisfactory assurance that the system of internal control that has been in place at the 
Council for the year ended 31st March 2010 accords with proper practice, except for any 
details of significant internal control issues as documented in the Detailed Report on 
pages 35-36. The assurance can be further broken down between financial and non-
financial systems, as follows: 
 

Evaluation Assurance

NIL (2%)

Lim ited 
(31%)

Substantial 
(67%)

Page 82



 

 33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In reaching this opinion, the following factors were also taken into particular 
consideration: 
 
� In its Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2008/09, the Audit Commission gave the 

Council an overall score of three out of four for the Use of Resources judgement. 
The Audit Commission’s definition of the Council’s achievement of a score of 
three means that the Council is performing well and the direction of travel was 
positive.  

 
� The Audit Commission’s CAA assessments on financial standing, systems of 

internal financial control, standards of financial conduct and the prevention and 
detection of fraud and corruption, and their opinion on the financial statements. 

 
 
� Other review agencies 
 
� In the 2009 annual performance assessment of the service for Children and 

Young People, Ofsted rated the overall effectiveness of Children’s services as 
performing excellently,   and in its commentary, said “Specialist provision and 
services for children and young people whose circumstances make them 
vulnerable is almost all good or outstanding. Nearly half of the special schools in 
the borough and services for looked after children, including the local authority’s 
fostering agency, are outstanding”.  
 

� Adult Social Care Services was rated as “Performing Excellently” for Increased 
Choice and Control for Older People, and as Performing Adequately in 
Safeguarding Adults, by the Care Quality Commission in February 2010. 
 
 

Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within operational systems operating 
throughout the year are fundamentally sound, 
other than those assigned limited or nil 
assurance. 

THE ASSURANCE –NON-
FINANCIAL 

Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within financial systems operating throughout 
the year are fundamentally sound, other than 
those assigned limited or nil assurance. 

THE ASSURANCE –
FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

Page 83



 

 34 

 
Corporate Governance 
 
In my opinion the Council’s corporate governance framework complies with the best 
practice guidance on corporate governance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE. This opinion is 
based on: 
 
� The External Auditors scored judgements under the CPA process, particularly in 

relation to governance, standards of conduct and Performance Management 
 
Elements of governance and standards of conduct were included in the CAA 
review of Use of Resources that the Audit Commission scored at 3 out of 4.  

 
 
Risk Management 
 
In my opinion, risk management within the Council continues to be embedded, with 
increased emphases on buy in from staff, Member and the Corporate Management 
Team.  Embedding risk management within the culture is a lengthy process, continuing 
to improve the management information in the form of risk registers and reporting of 
risks and control will ordinarily assist this process.  In drawing together my opinion, I 
have relied upon the following: 
 
� The of Use of Resources 
 

Elements of Risk Management were included in the Use of Resources that the 
Audit Commission scored at 3 out of 4. The Council was also scored at 3 out of 4 
for Internal Control, the element that specifically relates to risk management. 
 
 

I would like to take this opportunity to formally record my thanks for the co-
operation and support received from the management and staff during the year, 
and I look forward to this continuing over the coming years. 
 
 
 
 
Minesh Jani – Service Head, Risk Management 
June 2010 

Page 84



 

 35 

APPENDIX 5 
DETAILED REPORT 
 
Introduction 
 
This section is a report detailing: 
 
� any significant control failures or risk issues that have arisen and been addressed 

through the work of Internal Audit; 
� any qualifications to the Head of Audit opinion on the Authority’s system of 

internal control, with the reasons for each qualification; 
� the identification of work undertaken by other assurance bodies upon which 

Internal Audit has placed reliance to help formulate its opinion; 
� the management processes adopted to deliver risk management and governance 

requirements; 
� comparison of the work undertaken during the 2009/10 year against the original 

Internal Audit plan; and 
� a brief summary of the audit service performance against agreed performance 

measures. 
 
 
Significant Control Issues 
Internal Audit is required to form an opinion on the robustness of the internal control 
environment, which includes consideration of any significant risk or governance issues 
and control failures which have arisen during the financial year 2009/10.  Key issues 
included: 
 

• Absence Management systems audit – we reported that managers’ compliance 
with the Council procedures on absence management needed to be reinforced.  
Significant improvement was required in the systems for recording, reporting and 
monitoring of sicknesses to ensure that all absences are recorded and reported 
accurately and correctly to ensure data quality. 

 
• Control of Parking Permits systems audit – our review highlighted the need for 

more effective control over the issue and control of parking permits to residents 
and business users to ensure that the administration of permit is based on clear 
policy and procedures. 

 
• Recycling of household waste contract monitoring – the management and 

monitoring of the contract was weak.  We reported that effective monitoring 
should be supported by a clear organisational structure and documented 
procedures and processes which are complied with in practice.  Moreover, there 
was a need to increase contractor and client accountability in order to deliver the 
benefits from the contract. 

Page 85



 

 36 

 
• Management of Climate Change, corporate review – our review found that 

effective arrangements were required to be put in place to manage climate 
change and carbon reduction programme across the Council at corporate and 
directorate level to achieve the ambitious carbon reduction targets set by the 
Council.  In addition, the Council should proactively promote carbon reduction 
within the authority, providing a clear vision and leadership in this area. 

 
• Business Continuity – our review of the systems of control to ensure that the 

Council’s key services can continue to operate in case of interruption to its 
infrastructure, showed that the business continuity arrangements needed to be 
strengthened.  Particularly, disaster recovery priority, critical recovery times and 
testing of recovery systems required addressing. 

 
• Contract Management and Monitoring, corporate review– our audit of this area 

found that effective contract management and monitoring is required to ensure 
that there is clear corporate guidance on contract management of revenue 
contracts so that benefits are derived from improved monitoring. 

• Follow Up Audits – we carried out a programme of follow up audits during the 
year to assess the progress made in implementing the agreed audit 
recommendations to improve systems of control. We were satisfied that progress 
was made in some cases, but we were generally concerned that some medium 
priority recommendations had not been implemented. In order to address the 
matter, an escalation procedure was introduced which involved the relevant 
Service Head and Corporate Director being alerted and we will keep this under 
review. 

 
 

Qualifications to the Opinion 
 
Internal Audit has had unfettered access to all areas and systems across the authority 
and has received appropriate co-operation from officers and members.  
 
Other Assurance Bodies 
 
In formulating the overall opinion on internal control, I took into account the work 
undertaken by the following organisation, and their resulting findings and conclusion: 
 

a) Audit Commission 
b) Benefit Fraud Inspectorate 
c) Care Quality Commission 
d) Ofsted 

 

Page 86



 

 37 

 
Risk Management Process 
The principle features of the risk management process are described below: 
Risk Management Strategy: The Council has established a Corporate Risk Management 
Strategy that sets out the Council’s attitude to risk and to the achievement of business 
objectives and has been communicated to key employees.  The policy: 
 
� Explains the Council’s underlying approach to risk management; 
� Documents the roles and responsibilities of the Council, Cabinet and 

Directorates; 
� Outlines key aspects of the risk management process; and 
� Identifies the main reporting procedures. 
Corporate Risk Register: This register records significant risks that affect more than one 
directorate. The register also includes major corporate initiatives, procurement and 
projects.  
Directorate Risk Registers: Each directorate maintains its own register recording the 
major risks that it faces.     
Corporate Risk Group: The Group identifies and oversees the management of corporate 
risk, and reviews directorate registers to identify emerging corporate risks.  
 
Comparison of Internal Audit Work 
 
The Operational Plan for 2009/10 was based on an Audit Risk Assessment. This 
assessment model takes into account four assessment categories for which each 
auditable area is scored to gauge the degree of risk and materiality associated with each 
area. Auditable areas were prioritised according to risk and a plan was prepared in 
consultation with Heads of Service, the Section 151 Officer and the Council’s external 
auditors. 
 
100% of audit fieldwork is complete for audits relating to the 2009/10 year programme.  
The Internal Audit plan was agreed at the start of the year and revised in December 
2009.  A summary of the revised plan is provided at Appendix 1 for information.  The 
table compares the plan to the work actually completed during the year.   
 
Internal Audit Performance 
 
A table is provided at section 9 of the main body of report setting out the pre-agreed 
performance criteria for the Internal Audit service.  The table shows the actual 
performance achieved against the targets that were set in advance.  
 
Internal audit was also subject to a peer review by the Head of Audit of London Borough 
of Redbridge and benchmarking exercise as part of the IPF Benchmarking Club.  The 
results of these reviews are at Appendix 6. 
 

Page 87



 

 38 

External Audit continues to rely fully on the work undertaken by Internal Audit.  This has 
resulted in the harmonisation of internal and external audit plans, so that external audit 
can place greater reliance on the work of internal audit.  During the course of the year 
we have worked closely with the External Auditors to ensure that this approach is 
followed.  
 
 
Compliance with CIPFA Code of Internal Audit Practice 
 
Internal Audit has comprehensive quality control and assurance processes in place to 
confirm compliance with the CIPFA standards. Assurance is drawn from: 
 
� The work of external audit; and 
� My own internal quality reviews. 
 
External audit carried out a review of internal audit for the financial year 2009/10 and 
reported their findings in March 2010. The main conclusions of their review were: - 
 
Internal Audit is compliant against the 11 code of the CIPFA code of Practice; 
 
The Internal Audit Service has appropriate governance arrangements, internal policies 
and sufficient resources to enable an independent, objective and ethical audit to be 
completed in line with the code. 
 
That audit files contained sufficient information for an experienced auditor with no 
previous connection with the audit to re-perform the work and if necessary support the 
conclusions reached.  
 
Minor recommendations were raised which are being addressed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 

 39 

APPENDIX 6 
 
Peer Review and Benchmarking Club Results 
 
1. Peer Review 
 
1.1. The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 

states that: 

(a) An authority shall maintain an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal 
control. 

(b) The authority shall, at least once in each year, conduct a review of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal audit. 

 
1.2. Circular 03/2006 provided by the Department for Communities and Local 

Government states that the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 would be acceptable as 
the appropriate professional guidance to determine what is “proper 
practice”. 

 
1.3. In order to ensure that a robust review of the internal audit service has 

been carried out, Financial Directors (or equivalent) agreed that in 
addition to the internal reviews, peer reviews would be undertaken to 
ensure that internal audit service has been externally assessed as well.  
As a part of this reciprocal arrangement, in May 2010, the Head of 
Internal Audit from the London Borough of Redbridge conducted a peer 
review of the effectiveness of internal audit at LBTH.  The review focused 
on compliance with the 11 Professional Standards set out in the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Internal Audit. The review is currently on-going and 
any issues arising from this will be reported separately.   

 
 
2. Benchmarking Club Results 
 
2.1. Internal Audit has participated in the Audit Benchmarking Club 

administered by the Institute of Public Finance (IPF) since 1999/2000.  
IPF is a division of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA).  

 
2.2. The purpose of the benchmarking exercise is to provide comparative 

information which can form the basis upon which performance 
comparisons and value for money judgements can be made.  Moreover, 
this information can also feed into the team planning process. 

 
2.3. As part of the 2008/09 CIPFA benchmarking club the London Borough of 

Tower Hamlets was benchmarked against a range of Unitary Authorities 

Page 89



 

 40 

selected either because the level of annual General Fund financial activity 
was similar, or annual total revenue, i.e., General Fund and HRA was 
similar.  For the purpose of the benchmarking review the group with which 
LBTH internal audit was compared comprised 11 London Boroughs.   

 
2.4. In terms of cost analysis, LBTH Internal Audit cost per audit day was £345 

compared with the comparator group average of £393 per day.  In 
comparison with the other 11 London Boroughs, LBTH was a medium 
cost service.   

 
 

 
 

Page 90



 
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
 

29 June 2010 
CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

 
REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Annual Governance Statement 

2009/10 
 

 Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
 

1. Summary  
 
 

1.1 This report sets out the framework for reviewing and reporting on the 
Council’s system on internal control and governance arrangements in line 
with regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003. The 
purpose of the review is to provide assurance that the accounts are 
underpinned by adequate governance arrangements.  

 
1.2 The output from the review is the Annual Governance Statement which 

forms part of the annual accounts and identifies areas of good 
governance and gaps in management of risks and control which may 
prevent the Council from achieving its desired outcomes. 

 
 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee is invited to consider the process and findings set 
out in paragraphs 4.1 – 7.4; and 

 
2.2 Agree the Draft Annual Governance Statement for the financial year 

2009/10 at Appendix 3. 
 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts 
and Audit (Amendments) (England) Regulations 2006 require the Council 
to conduct an annual review of its governance arrangements and to 
publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with the published 
financial statements. The Statement of Recommended Practice 2009 
requires that the AGS be approved by the committee approving the 
accounts, which is the Audit Committee. 

Agenda Item 72

Page 91



3.2 The statement will be signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader. In 
order to sign the AGS they will need to be satisfied that the statement 
accurately reflects the governance arrangements and is supported by 
sufficient evidence. A review of the AGS by the Audit Committee and 
CMT is an integral part of providing sufficient assurance to the Chief 
Executive and the Leader.  

3.3 The statement needs to be finalised and signed to meet the deadline for 
the publication of the accounts (30th June 2010).  

 
 
4. Reviewing the Internal Control Environment 
 

4.1 CIPFA guidance sets out a process for gathering assurance on the 
system of internal control. This Assurance Framework is shown 
diagrammatically below. The key stages are: 
� Identify & review the internal control environment; 
� Obtain assurances on the effectiveness of those controls; 
� Evaluate those assurances and identify gaps in controls; 
� Plan actions to rectify those gaps; and 
�  Draft the Annual Governance Statement. 

4.2 The principal risks, controls and sources of assurance have been 
identified and considered by senior officers, which included a review of 
the control environment and issues raised in the 2008/09 statement.  

Page 92



As
su

ra
nc

e F
ra

me
wo

rk
 an

d t
he

 pr
od

uc
tio

n o
f t

he
 A

nn
ua

l G
ov

ern
an

ce 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

     

Au
tho

rit
y &

 
Di

rec
tor

ate
 Po

lic
ies

, 
Bu

sin
ess

 Pl
an

s a
nd

 
Ri

sk
 R
eg
ist

ers
 

 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k -

 K
ey
 do

cu
me

nts
/pr

oc
ess

 gu
ide

lin
es 

 
• 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce 
ma
na
gem

en
t 

• 
Bu
sin
ess
 str
ate
gy
 an
d p
lan
nin
g p
roc
ess
 

• 
Bu
dg
et 
an
d b
ud
get
ary
 co
ntr
ol 

• 
Co
de
 of
 co
rpo
rat
e g
ov
ern
an
ce 

• 
Pro
jec
t m
an
ag
em
en
t/  
Ri
sk 
Ma
na
gem

en
t / 
co
un
ter
 Fr
au
d P
oli
cy 

• 
Eth
ica
l G
ov
ern
an
ce 

• 
Po
lic
ies
, p
roc
edu

res
, c
od
es 
of 
con

du
ct 

• 
Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 pr
oto
co
l 

Ap
pr

ov
al 

by
 C
om

mi
tte

e o
r b

y m
em

be
rs 

of 
bo

dy
 m

eet
ing

 as
 a 

wh
ole

 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

rou
p w

ith
 

res
po

nsi
bil

ity
 fo

r d
raf

tin
g 

AG
S e

va
lua

te 
ass

ura
nc

es 
an

d s
up

po
rtin

g e
vid

en
ce 

On
go

ing
 as

sur
an

ce 
on

 ad
eq

ua
cy 

an
d 

eff
ect

ive
ne

ss 
of 

co
ntr

ols
 ov

er 
ke

y r
isk

s 

As
su
ra
nc
es 
by
 

dir
ect
or
s/s
erv
ice
 

he
ad
s 

Fin
an
cia
l  

co
ntr
ol 

ass
ur
an
ce 

Ot
he
r s
ou
rce
s o
f 

ass
ur
an
ce 

(in
clu
din
g t
hir
d-

pa
rty
) 

Ex
ter
na
l A
ud
it  

Ri
sk
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce 

M
an
ag
em
en
t  &
 

Da
ta 
Qu
ali
ty 

In
ter
na
l A
ud
it  

M
em
be
rs’
 

ass
ur
an
ce 

Re
vie

w 
of 

the
 

eff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f th
e 

sy
ste

m 
of 
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 

 
Le
ga
l a
nd
 

Re
gu
lat
or
y  

 A
ssu
ra
nc
e 

Id
en

tif
y 

Ap
pr

ov
e 

Dr
aft

 
Ev

alu
ate

 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

 

Page 93



 

   

5. Internal Control Environment 
 

5.1 An internal control checklist was developed based on CIPFA guidance. 
This set out three key layers in the internal control environment: 
♦ The processes for establishing statutory obligations and 

organisational objectives; 
♦ The processes for identifying the risks to the achievement of those 

objectives; and 
♦ The key controls to manage those risks. 

5.2 A list of key policies and processes were identified for each area based on 
the guidance. These are set out in appendix 1 below. Evidence has been 
gathered to demonstrate that these exist and findings arising from these 
are considered in compiling the Annual Governance Statement for 
2009/10. 

5.3 No gaps were identified in the arrangements for establishing principal 
statutory obligations & organisational objectives. The Council has a 
defined Constitution, which was approved in March. The Constitution has 
been subject to a review in 2009/10 and officers assessed the Council’s 
arrangements following publication of the CIPFA/SOLACE Code on 
Corporate Governance in June 2007.  

5.4 The Council has a Strategic Plan that reflects the priorities of the 
Community Plan. The Council has an effective performance management 
framework, including regular reports to the Corporate Management Team 
and lead members. 

5.5 No gaps were identified in the arrangements for identifying the principal 
risks to achieving objectives. The Council has embedded a risk 
management strategy. 

5.6 No gaps were found in the arrangements for identifying key controls to 
manage principal risks. The Council has a robust system of internal 
control. Business Continuity arrangements have been revised and tested 
in July and February 2010. The Corporate Procurement Strategy was 
approved by Cabinet in November 2006.  

5.7 Overall, the review found that the Council has all of the principal elements 
of an internal control framework. 

 
6. Sources of Assurance 
 

6.1 Having identified that the internal control framework contains the principal 
elements and that these can be evidenced, the principal sources of 
assurance were identified and evaluated.  Matters arising from the review 

Page 94



 

   

have been included within the AGS where appropriate and a summary of 
key sources of assurance are attached at Appendix 2. 

 
 

7. Annual Governance Statement 
7.1 The draft Annual Governance Statement is attached at Appendix 3.  
7.2 The issues raised in 2008/09 are set out in the table below with an update 

showing the current status. 
 

Issues in 2008/09 
statement 

Status 

  

Optimise asset 
management across 
public services to 
enable Council assets 
to be utilised in the 
most effective way. 

On-going. Partners such as the Metropolitan 
Police and NHS Trusts are now members of the 
Council's Capital and Asset Management Board 
and are also involved in the development of the 
Asset Strategy Pilot in LAPS 1 & 2. The Asset 
Strategy is now fully aligned with the service 
integration/localisation agenda, which fully 
involve partners. The Pilot is dependent on 
progress with localisation but is expected to be 
ready in draft by December 2010. 

To further enhance 
particularly in relation 
to disaster recovery. 

On-going. Good progress continues to be made 
in establishing a sound framework, but further 
work is required to ensure the Business 
Continuity Plan can respond to a critical event. 

Maintain an ongoing 
drive to deliver decent 
homes standard by 
ensuring the Council’s 
ALMO achieves two 
stars. 

On-going. The authority is actively working with 
its Arms Length Management Organisation to 
ensure it achieves two starts in the inspection 
planned for October. The Council is part of a 
London wide Decent Homes Task Force 
charged with finding ways to fund the 
programme in the future which is currently 
suspended by government. A joint Council and 
Tower Hamlets Homes Capital Board has been 
established to review the Capital Programme & 
funding sources and funding has been identified 
for a pilot Decent Homes Programme covering 
four blocks.   

Ensure processes for 
managing sickness 
are effective. 

Monitoring reports are produced for PRG and 
CMT on a quarterly basis with PRG identifying 
Service Heads with the highest levels of 
sickness in their team and requiring them to 
attend to explain how they are managing 
absence in their service.  Names of managers 
who fail to complete their absence returns are 

Page 95



 

   

Issues in 2008/09 
statement 

Status 

  

circulated to CMT to instruct managers in their 
Directorate to complete it.  The Chief Executive 
raises any concerns with members of CMT 
during their 1-1s. 
Occupation Health has also been 
restructured on an internal rather than 
outsourced basis in order to ensure an 
improved level of service. A Healthy Workplace 
Manager has also been recruited to work 
across the Council and NHS tower Hamlets. 
 

Enhance the benefits 
derived from 
implementation of SX3 
and improve 
management of Major 
Works for 
Leaseholders. 

Completed.  

Arrangements for 
Safeguarding Children 
/ Child Protection. 

On-going. Children Schools and Families 
service continue to focus and respond to the 
requirements of the Laming review. There 
remains significant financial implications for the 
council regarding the increase in demands 
around safeguarding. 
 
The directorate has undertaken a range of work 
to assist with some of the aspects of managing 
this increase in demand in safeguarding work, 
such as development and implementation of 
Integrated Pathway Support team, reshaping of 
family support work in children centres, 
developing a Tower Hamlets well being model 
to capture in one place our multi-agency 
assessment, threshold, and intervention 
regime.  
 
The Tower Hamlets Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board (LSCB) has undertaken an 
interagency audit across the board aspects of 
safeguarding. Both the LSCB and the 
Children’s Trust have been refocused in light of 
recent guidance and statute.  
 
 
 

Page 96



 

   

Issues in 2008/09 
statement 

Status 

  

Improve information 
governance across the 
authority. 

On-going. Project now in place.  
 
The Council, following extensive analysis and 
discussion with industry experts, has prepared 
a solution which will ensure that all portable 
media such as laptops and data sticks, are 
encrypted.  The procurement of the product has  
been completed and the solution is being rolled 
out by a project team within ICT. 
 

To model an efficiency 
programme to take 
account of the likely 
reduction in future 
funding across public 
sector. 

On-going. The Council is actively working to 
deliver substantial savings over the next three 
years. Considerable work has been carried out 
to assess the likely level of funding gap and 
work is underway to identify opportunities for 
securing the savings. The next step is to 
develop individual programmes and projects 
which will be monitored through the relevant 
Board and an overall dashboard approach to 
monitoring the efficiency programme is also 
being put in place. 

Enhance the benefits 
derived from effective 
contract management 
of key contracts with 
the private sector. 

On-going. Contract management is included as 
a core module of the internal procurement 
training programme, and the tollgate project 
assurance process provides a scrutiny of 
contract management proposals. 

To review and ensure 
the delivery of 
additional housing to 
reduce overcrowding. 

On-going with further actions planned in 
2010/11. 

 
7.3 The penultimate section of the 2009/10 statement sets out the key 

governance and control issues that have been identified by the process 
set out above. These are as follows, in no particular order.  

7.4 The CMT is invited to consider whether these represent the most 
significant issues affecting the Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 97



 

   

Governance Issue Source of Assurance 
To model an efficiency programme 
to take account of the likely 
reduction in revenue funding across 
the public sector. 

Corporate risk register, risk 
reference ORG0009 as reported to 
the Corporate Management Team 
on 30 March 2010. 

Optimise asset management across 
public services to enable Council 
assets to be utilised in the most 
effective way. 

Governance issue raised in 2008/09 
and being progressed in 2009/10. 

To further enhance the authority’s 
Business Continuity Plans, 
particularly in relation to disaster 
recovery 

Governance issue raised in 2008/09 
and being progressed in 2009/10. 

Maintain an ongoing drive to deliver 
decent homes standard by ensuring 
the Council’s ALMO achieves two 
stars 

Corporate risk register, risk 
reference ORG0005 as reported to 
the Corporate Management Team 
on 30 March 2010. 

Arrangements for Safeguarding 
Children / Child Protection 

Corporate risk register, risk 
reference ORG0015 as reported to 
the Corporate Management Team 
on 30 March 2010. 

Improve information governance 
across the authority 

Corporate risk register, risk 
reference ORG0014 as reported to 
the Corporate Management Team 
on 30 March 2010. 

Directorate operational guidance on 
contract management; retention and 
filing of contract documentation and 
unauthorised extension of contracts 

Internal Audit work 2009/10. 

Termination of Chief Officer’s 
employment 

Directorate assurance statement for 
Chief Executive directorate. 

To review and ensure the delivery 
of additional housing to reduce 
overcrowding 

Governance issue raised in 2008/09 
and being progressed in 2009/10. 

Pupil Place Planning - expanding 
school provision to meet rising 
demand for places. 

Directorate assurance statement for 
Children Schools and Family. 

 
 

Page 98



Appendix 1 

   

Internal Control Checklist (summary) 
Step Description Assurance 

Objective 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives 
Step 1: Constitution Yes 

Committee terms of reference Yes 

Scheme of delegation Yes 
System to identify and disseminate changes in 
legislation 

Yes 

Identification of principal statutory 
obligations 

Evidence of dissemination Yes 
Step 2: Community & strategic plans Yes 

Consultation on plans Yes 
Service planning framework Yes 

Establishment of corporate 
objectives 

communication strategy Yes 
Step 3: Local code of corporate governance Yes 
Corporate Governance 
arrangements Audit Commission Corporate Governance review Yes 

CIPFA/Solace checklist action plan Yes 
Committee charged with corporate governance Yes 
Governance training for members Yes 

 

Role of Chief Finance Officer Yes 
Step 4: Performance Mgmt framework Yes 

Performance Mgmt monitoring reports Yes 
BVRs and benchmarking Yes 

Performance management 
arrangements 

Inspection reports Yes 
 
Step 1:    

Risk Management strategy Yes Risk Management strategy 
Evidence of dissemination & review Yes 

Step 2: Member forum Yes 

Senior Mgmt Team reporting Yes 
Member and officer lead Yes 
Defined process for reviewing and reporting risk Yes 

Corporate and departmental risk registers Yes 

Insurance and self-insurance review Yes 

Risk Management systems & 
structures 

RM training Yes 

Page 99



Appendix 1 

   

Step 3:    
Committee reports include risk management 
assessment 

Yes 

Risk is considered in business planning process Yes 

Corporate risk management board Yes 

Risk owners identified in registers Yes 

Evidence of review of risk registers Yes 

Risk Management is embedded 

Risks considered in partnership working Yes 

Objective 3 Identify key controls to manage principal risks 
Step 1:     

 Financial Regulations, incl. compliance with 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
Prudential Code 

Yes 

 Contract Standing Orders Yes 
 Whistleblowing policy Yes 
 Counter fraud & corruption policy Yes 

 Codes of conduct, eg Members, Member : Officer 
etc 

Yes 

 Register of interest Yes 
 Scheme of delegation approved Yes 
 Corporate procurement policy Yes 
 Corporate recruitment and disciplinary codes Yes 

 Business continuity plans Yes 
 Corporate / departmental risk registers Yes 
 Independent assessment, by Internal & External 
Audit 

Yes 

Audit Commission reliance on Internal Audit work Yes 

 Corporate health & Safety Policy Yes 

Robust system of internal control, 
which includes systems & 
procedures to mitigate principal 
risks 

 Corporate complaints procedures Yes 

Page 100



Appendix 2 

    
 

Summary of reports received in or pertaining to 2009/10 
 
 

Reports Reporting period Report date 
   

Annual Audit and Inspection plan 2009/10 accounts June 2010 

Opinion on Financial Statements 2009/10 September 2009 

Approach to Value for Money 2009/10 November 2009 

Use of Resources 2008/09 January 2009 

Value for Money Conclusion 2009/10 September 2009 

Data Quality  2009/10 Feb 2009 

Final Accounts Memorandum 2009/10 Jan 2010 

Grant Claim Report 2009/10 Feb 2010  

Annual Governance Report 2009/10 September 2009 

   

Other   

   

Ofsted – Childrens Services 2009/10 February 2010 

Care Quality Assessment – Adult Social 
Care 

2009/10 February 2010 

 
 
 

Page 101



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
Tower Hamlets LBC (Tower Hamlets) is required by law to prepare a statement that details the Council’s 
framework for making decisions and controlling its resources. The statement includes the Council’s 
governance arrangements as well as control issues. This statement should enable stakeholders to have 
an assurance that decisions are properly made and public money is being properly spent on behalf of 
citizens. The statement below complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended. 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
Tower Hamlets is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this 
overall responsibility, Tower Hamlets is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the 
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements 
for the management of risk. Risk management is a principal element of corporate governance, to this end 
a risk management strategy was adopted in March 2002 and is regularly reviewed and endorsed by the 
Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  
 
Tower Hamlets’ has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which is consistent with the 
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy 
of the code is on our website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Council's 
monitoring officer. This statement explains how Tower Hamlets currently complies with the code and also 
meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by 
the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of the 
Annual Governance Statement. The Council's Standards Committee members received a report in 
October 2007 assessing the current local governance arrangements and recommended areas of 
improvement as part of the continuous improvement processes of the Council’s governance 
arrangements. 
 
The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the 
authority directs and controls its activities and through which, it accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to 
achievement of Tower Hamlets’ policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to mange them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 
 
Tower Hamlets’ governance framework is established through its systems, processes, cultures and 
values. These are regularly reviewed. The governance framework has been place at Tower Hamlets for 
the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.  
 
Independent Members of the Standards Committee review the Council’s performance in adhering to the 
core principles of good governance, which form Tower Hamlets Code of Corporate Governance.  
 

Page 102



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

The Governance Framework 
 
Vision and Priorities 
 
The Council’s vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and working in Tower Hamlets. 
This involves helping to create a thriving, achieving community in which people feel at ease with one 
another, have good learning and employment opportunities, experience a higher standard of living and 
good health, and enjoy a safe and an attractive environment together with a wide range of cultural and 
leisure opportunities.  
 
The Council (and Tower Hamlets Partnership) has refreshed the borough’s Community Plan through to 
2020.  This has four new Community Plan themes to make Tower Hamlets: 
 
• A great place to live; 
• A prosperous community; 
• A safe and supportive community; and 
• A healthy community. 
 
Running through this is the core theme of “One Tower Hamlets” with a focus and drive around reducing 
inequality, strengthening community cohesion and working in partnership. The Council’s strategic plan 
flows from the Community Plan themes and for 2009/10, 15 priorities were identified around all five 
Community Plan themes.  
 
Underpinning the Community Plan Themes and corporate priorities are the core values, which all officers 
are expected to adhere to, to build a more effective organisation.  The Council's values are: 
 
• Achieving results 
• Engaging with others  
• Valuing diversity 
• Learning effectively 
 
Over the last year, there has been significant consultation with local people through Local Area 
Partnership (LAP) events, as well as targeted consultation including with young people, older people, 
faith groups and disabled people.  An analysis of key messages form consultation across the Partnership 
in the last four years was also undertaken.  The Vision, themes and priorities of the Community Plan 
were discussed through the Tower Hamlets Partnership structures which comprise the Partnership Board 
and Executive, the Community Plan Delivery Groups (CPDGs) and the Local Area Steering Groups.  The 
Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the Cabinet and other members have also had 
contributed to the Vision and Priorities for the Community Plan. 
 
As the diagram below shows, the Council aligns its Strategic Framework with the Community Plan.  The 
Council’s Strategic Plan for 2009/10 is organised around the themes, priorities and objectives of the 
Community Plan and shows how the Council both lead and contribute to the delivery of the Community 
Plan. 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership Community Plan and the Council’s Strategic Plan fall within the 
Council’s Budget and Policy Framework.  This requires that Overview and Scrutiny Committee are given 
10 working days to comment on the draft plans, that Cabinet takes account of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee comments in their consideration of the draft plans before recommending them to Full Council.  
Both plans are subject to approval by Full Council. 
 
The Council’s vision, priorities and objectives are used to structure all directorate, service plans and 
Personal Development Plans (PDRs).  This ensures that there is a “golden thread” that runs from each 
individual’s work through to the Community Plan.  This makes sure that the vision, priorities and 
objectives are communicated at all levels of the organisation.  Further communication takes place 
through the Council’s staff newsletter “Pulling Together”. 
 
The Strategic Plan is refreshed each year through Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny and Full Council.  The 
Community Plan is refreshed every three years. 
 

Page 103



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Quality of Service 
 
The Council operates a comprehensive performance management framework to ensure that strategic 
priorities are embedded in service, team and individual performance development plans; that resources 
are linked to operational aims and objectives; and that progress against plans and targets is monitored & 
evaluated at all levels. 
 
The overall planning framework is illustrated in the following diagram. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Constitutional Matters 
 
The Council has an agreed Constitution that details how the Council operates, how decisions are made 
and the procedures that are to be followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. The Constitution is reviewed annually. 
 
The constitution also includes sections on standing orders, financial regulations and conduct of meetings. 
 
During the year the Constitution was reviewed to ensure that it kept abreast of changes within the 
Council. The Council approves and keeps under regular review all of the strategic policies which it 
reserves for its own consideration, including: 
 
• the constitution; 
• the corporate performance plan; 
• the corporate strategy; 
• the capital programme and revenue budget; 
• the housing strategy; and 
• the local development framework. 
 

COMMUNITY PLAN 
A strategic document prepared in partnership with local agencies and residents. 

THE COUNCIL'S STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Council's corporate aims, objectives and key activities to achieve them, along with an 

analysis of performance against targets and future targets. 
 
 

SERVICE AND DIRECTORATE PLANS  
Linking operational aims and objectives for services/directorates to resource use.   

Purpose 
Strategic 

Focus 
Broad 

  

Specific 

TYPE OF PLAN 

TEAM PLANS 
Operational objectives and activities for teams working within services. 

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
Set out performance objectives and training and development needs for individual staff. 

Operational 

Page 104



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

 
The Executive is responsible for key decisions and comprises a Leader and a Cabinet, who are all 
appointed by the Council. All key decisions required are published in advance in the Executive’s Forward 
Plan, and will generally be discussed in a meeting open to the public. All decisions must be in line with 
the Council’s overall policy and budget framework and any decisions the Executive wishes to take 
outside of that framework must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide. The Council operates a 
system of delegated authority whereby the Executive delegates certain decisions to the Chief Executive 
and Senior Officers. This is set out in the scheme of delegation.  
 
During 2009/10 the work of the Executive was scrutinised by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and a 
number of Scrutiny Panels. A “call-in” procedure allows Scrutiny to review Executive decisions before 
they are implemented, and to recommend alternative courses of action.  
 
In a referendum over the borough having a directly elected Mayor, held on 6 May 2010, Tower Hamlets 
electorate voted for the mayoral model to govern the business of the Council. An election to appoint a 
mayor will take place in October 2010 and the Council’s constitution and accompanying instructions and 
guidance will be updated to reflect the new model. 
 
Codes of Conduct 
 
The Council has a code of conduct for officers supported by a requirement to make declarations of 
interest and to declare gifts and hospitality. Interests must be declared by officers above a certain grade 
and those in certain decision making and procurement positions. Officers are required to generally 
decline gifts and hospitality to ensure that officers are not inappropriately influenced. These codes and 
processes are made available to staff at their induction, they are on the intranet and training is available 
to ensure every staff member understands their responsibilities.  
 
Members are required to make declarations of interest when elected and to consider their interests and 
make appropriate declarations at each meeting they attend. Members must also declare any gifts and 
hospitality. Members’ declarations and gifts and hospitality records are made public through the Council’s 
website. As part of the adoption of the new members code a number of protocols were reviewed 
including the one concerning member and officer relationships in 2008/09. The Standards Committee 
was advised of the change and the revisions that were made to the code.  
 
Compliance with Policies, Procedures, Laws and Regulations 
 
The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and relevant regulations in the 
performance of its functions. It has developed policies and procedures to ensure that, as far as is 
reasonably possible, all Members and officers understand their responsibilities both to the Council and to 
the public. These include the Constitution, Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Financial 
Procedures, Codes of Conduct and Protocols. Key documents are available to Members and staff 
through the Council’s intranet and to a wider audience through publication on the Council’s website. All 
policies are subject to periodic review to ensure that they remain relevant and reflect changes to 
legislation and other developments in the environment within which the Council operates. 
 
Effective Audit Committee 
 
Internal Audit provides assurance and advice on internal control to the Corporate Management Team 
and Members. Internal Audit reviews and evaluates the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of internal 
control within systems and recommends improvements. It also supports the management of the Council 
in developing systems, providing advice on matters pertaining to risk and control.  
 
Internal Audit is overseen by an Audit Committee comprising seven members; four from the majority 
group and one each from the three largest minority group in proportion of their representation on the 
Council. The Audit Committee’s remit is around the Council’s systems of internal control, risk 
management and governance, as outlines in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Audit Committees. The 
Audit Committee also reviews audit findings and the effectiveness of the internal audit function. 
Specifically, the core functions of the Audit Committee are to consider the annual audit plan and the 
performance of internal audit; to be satisfied that the authority’s annual governance statement properly 
reflects the risk environment; to demonstrate its fiduciary responsibilities in preventing and detecting 

Page 105



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

fraud; to monitor the authority’s risk management framework; to meet the accounts and audit regulations 
in respect of approving the authority’s statement of accounts and to consider reports from the Audit 
Commission. The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 2009/10 as planned. 
 
 
Whistle Blow and the Complaints Procedure 
 
The Council has a recognised complaints process. This comprises a number of stages to enable the 
public to escalate their complaints if they are unsatisfied with the answer they receive. Details of 
complaints are monitored by the Monitoring Officer and Members.  
 
Members also receive enquiries and complaints via their surgeries, walkabouts and question time 
activities. The Council has arrangements to support members in addressing these queries to ensure that 
the public receive an appropriate answer. 
 
Within the Council the whistle blowing policy is actively promoted and annually, there are a number of 
whistle blowing events reported. The effectiveness of the policy and the type of issues raised are 
reviewed and monitored by the Council’s Audit Committee on an annual basis. 
 
Tower Hamlets also participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) a computerised data matching 
exercise, lead by the Audit Commission, designed to detect fraud perpetrated on public bodies.  The 
Corporate Anti Fraud team has actively engaged with the Audit Commission to test and improve the 
output from the NFI exercise. 
 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Authority has embedded a Risk Management Strategy to identify and manage the principal risks to 
achieving its objectives. The Strategy recognises that the Council may not always adopt the least risky 
option, where the potential benefits to the community warrant the acceptance of a higher level of risk.  All 
reports seeking decisions or approval to a proposed course of action contain an assessment of the risk 
involved.  
 
Key risks are recorded in corporate and directorate risk registers, which are subject to periodic review 
and reporting to the Corporate Management Team. Directorate Risk Champions oversee the continued 
development of the Council’s approach to risk management. 
 
Financial Management 
 
Statutory responsibility for ensuring that there is an effective system of internal financial control rests with 
the Corporate Director, Resources. The system of internal financial control provides reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that 
material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be detected.  
 
Internal financial control is based on a well established framework of management information, financial 
regulations and administrative procedures, which include the segregation of duties, management 
supervision and a system of delegation and accountability. Ongoing development and maintenance of 
the various processes is the responsibility of managers within the Council. The control arrangements in 
2009/10 included: 
 
• comprehensive corporate and directorate budgeting systems; 
• an annual budget approved by the Council that reflects strategic priorities; 
• a risk financing strategy; 
• medium-term financial plans and projections; 
• regular reporting of actual expenditure and income against budgets and spending forecasts; 
• targets to measure financial and other performance; 
• clearly defined prudential borrowing framework and indicators; and 
• standing meetings of finance managers from across the Council. 
 

Page 106



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Since the publication of the CIPFA statement on the role of the Financial Officer in Local Government 
(2010), a self assessment of the Council has shown the authority confirms to the good practice identified 
within the code.  
 
The Efficient and Effective Use of Resources 
 
Value for money and continuous improvement are secured through a range of processes, including the 
application of best value principles and the carrying out of best value reviews. During 2009/10, the 
Council continued work on its efficiency programme and has been making plans to manage with 
significantly reduced financial resource in future. As part of its service and financial planning process, the 
Council set a stretch efficiency target and brought performance and perception data into the 
consideration of resource allocation. The Audit Commission’s most recent assessment for value reported 
an improvement in the way the Council seeks to delivery value for money. 
 
The strategic planning process ensures that resources are focused on the priorities set out in the 
Strategic Plan. Processes for service and financial planning are aligned and the annual budget process 
evaluates new requirements for resources in terms of their contribution to the objectives of the Strategic 
Plan. Corporate guidance on team planning requires consideration of value for money issues in 
developing annual objectives. Reports concerned with proposed expenditure, reviewing or changing 
service delivery or the use of resources contain an efficiency statement setting out how the proposals will 
assist towards achieving greater efficiency. 
 
Learning and Organisational Development 
 
The Council has a commitment that every member of staff receives an annual appraisal to discuss 
performance, targets and personal development. The Council provides a range of training opportunities 
for managers and staff to ensure that they can deliver excellent public service. These include a 
Leadership programme, specific training relating Recruitment and Selection, Risk Management, and 
other computer based training.  
 
Members have a support officer and a development program to keep them up to date with changes and 
to support training needs. Training is supplemented by information through briefings, conferences and 
weekly bulletins. The Audit Committee and Standards Committee have training as part of their agendas 
and it is intended that in future they will agree specific training plans for themselves annually. For some 
aspects of Council work members are required to undertake a period of study and pass a test to ensure 
they can demonstrate appropriate competence, for example the Licensing Committee. 
 
 
Communication and Engagement 
 
The Council publishes numerous documents on its website as well as providing a weekly newspaper, 
East End life to keep members of the public up to date with what is going on.   
 
The Council also engages with citizens through surveys such as the annual resident’s survey and a 
tenants’ survey. These help to inform the Council of the population’s opinion on the services provided, 
their experience of services and to influence the Council’s priorities for the future.  
 
On a more local basis the Council has a number of community forums which are used to engage with the 
community. Tower Hamlets has a greater proportion, compared to the rest of London, of young 
population and has thus engaged with the young people of Tower Hamlets by enabling them to vote for a 
young Leader of the Council. A number of local residents put themselves forward and a vote was held to 
elect a Leader to represent the young people of Tower Hamlets. The young Leader has a clear manifesto 
and is working to make a difference to young people’s lives within the borough. 
 
The Council’s website is continually being developed to provide more information, enable more services 
to take place electronically and to receive comments from all stakeholders.    
 

Page 107



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Partnerships 
 
The most significant partnership for the Council is the Tower Hamlets Partnership. The partnership has 
three stands; the eight local area partnerships which allows residents to influence their locality; the 
Community Plan Delivery Groups for each of five key themes in the community plan and the Partnership 
Executive and Board, which has responsibility for developing the overall strategy and for ensuring plans 
are delivered. The Partnership has its own constitution and its Members are also subject to a code of 
conduct and make declaration of interest at meetings. The Tower Hamlets Partnership is responsible for 
delivering the vision and aspirations for the Community in the medium and long term, and the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA) agreed for the period 2008 - 2011 include key targets and indicators following 
negotiation between the Tower Hamlets and Central Government. 
 
The Council also has important partnership arrangements with the local primary care trusts. There are 
also partnership arrangements with the Police, Probation and Youth Justice services to help to meet the 
targets for reducing crime and making Tower Hamlets a safer and stronger community.  
 
Review of Effectiveness 
 
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control. The review was conducted in accordance with the assurance framework and 
therefore focussed on the risks to the fulfilment of the Council’s principal objectives, as set out in the 
Strategic Plan, and the controls in place to manage those risks. The review of the effectiveness of the 
internal control framework involved the evaluation of the key sources of assurance: 

 
• the Council evaluated its corporate governance arrangements against good practice criteria set out 

in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance. The arrangements were found to be sound albeit recommendations 
were made to enhance current arrangements.  
 

• the annual Head of Audit Opinion expressed the opinion that overall the Council’s system of internal 
control is adequate and effective.  

 
• the risk management framework, including the corporate and directorate risk registers, provides 

assurance that the key risks to strategic objectives are managed effectively and are monitored by 
senior officers and Members. 
 

• the Council is subject to a range of external audit and inspection activity both corporately and for 
individual services. The judgements of the external auditors contained in their annual audit letter and 
other reports provide assurance that the Council has a reasonable system of internal control. The 
independent assessment by six inspectorates as part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment 
identified one notable practice around Engaging and Empowering Local People. This measures the 
extent to which people believe they are able to influence decisions affecting their area. The 
assessment did not identify any significant concerns. The results of inspections of individual services 
continue to show improvements whilst Children’s Services was rated as “Performs Excellently” by 
Ofsted in its report dated February 2010. Adult Social Care Services was rated as “Performing 
Excellently” for Increased Choice and Control for Older People, and as Performing Adequately in 
Safeguarding Adults, also published in February 2010. 

 
• monitoring of performance shows improvement in performance against external measures, the 

Council’s own targets and in comparison to other authorities.  
 
• the provisional outturn on the 2009/10 budget shows that the financial management systems and 

processes of the Council succeeded in keeping expenditure within planned limits.  
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny function reviews decisions made by the cabinet and raises proposals for the 
Cabinet from its annual plan of work. The focus of their role is thus to provide a challenge and to support 
the development of policies. At their meetings they consider performance information. They also have a 

Page 108



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

key role in reviewing and challenging the Cabinet’s budget framework prior to consideration at full 
Council. 
 
Internal Audit 
 
Internal audit is an independent appraisal function that acts as a control that measures, evaluates and 
reports upon the effectiveness of the controls in place to manage risks. In carrying out this function 
Internal Audit contributes to the discharge of the Executive Director of Resources’ S151 responsibilities.  
 
The work of the Internal Audit Section is monitored and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Annually the 
Service Head, Risk Management and Audit is required to give an opinion on the Council’s internal control 
framework based upon the work carried out during the year in the form of an annual report. For 2009/10, 
the overall the control environment is adjudged to be satisfactory. 
 
External Audit 
 
The Council’s external auditors, the Audit Commission, review its arrangements for: 
 
• preparing accounts in compliance with statutory and other relevant requirements; 
 
• ensuring the proper conduct of financial affairs and monitoring their adequacy and effectiveness in 

practice; and 
 
• managing performance to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. 
 
The auditors have in their annual audit letter and their assessment commented upon the Council’s 
accounts, corporate governance and performance management arrangements.  
 
 
Significant Governance Issues 
 
The review of the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in 2009/10 has identified some areas 
where action is appropriate to enhance the control environment and ensure continuous improvement. 
The areas are set out below. In all cases work is already underway to address the action points as 
shown by the reference to the strategic or directorate plan of the Council. 
 
Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
To model an efficiency programme to 
take account of the likely reduction in 
revenue funding across the public 
sector. 

The authority has identified a savings 
target of £18m a year the next three 
years arising from the Government 
action likely to be necessary to tackle 
the UK's public spending deficit.  This 
is much greater than the target in 
previous years and the incremental 
approach adopted in the past does not 
lend itself to this scale of problem. 
The authority has established a 
Service Options Review which will 
examine the strategic opportunities for 
delivering the savings. A clear savings 
target has been set of £55m over the 
next three years.   
Directorates have been challenged to 
identify savings to the scale required 
and this information has been fed into 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

Page 109



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
the review. The Review will go on to 
supplement the proposals brought 
forward by Directorates and identify 
strategic savings opportunities, likely to 
include some of a transformational 
nature, which will be governed through 
the Council's Transformation Board.   
A key component of the programme 
will be to ensure that a system is in 
place to secure the financial benefits of 
the transformation in the form of 
cashable savings. 
{Priority 1.2 (5) Strategic Plan and 
priority 5 – Resource’s Directorate 
Plan}. 

Optimise asset management across 
public services to enable Council assets 
to be utilised in the most effective way. 

Partners such as the Metropolitan 
Police and NHS Trusts are now 
members of the Council's Capital and 
Asset Management Board and are also 
involved in the development of the 
Asset Strategy Pilot in LAPS 1 & 2. 
The Asset Strategy is now fully aligned 
with the service integration/localisation 
agenda, which fully involve partners. 
The Pilot is dependent on progress 
with localisation but is expected to be 
ready in draft by December 2010 
{Priority 6 – Strategic Plan}. 

Corporate 
Directors, 
Resources 
and 
Development 
and Renewal 

To further enhance the authority’s 
Business Continuity Plans, particularly in 
relation to disaster recovery. 

The authority has a framework for 
business continuity planning and 
management. However, further 
enhancements will be made to ensure 
the authority can respond to a 
catastrophic disaster and its ability to 
access all essential IT applications       
{Priority Res011 – Resources 
Directorate Plan}. 

Corporate 
Director, 
Resources 
and Corporate 
Director, 
Communities, 
Localities and 
Culture 

Maintain an ongoing drive to deliver 
decent homes standard by ensuring the 
Council’s ALMO achieves two stars. 

Following a mock inspection of the 
Council’s Arms Length Management 
Organisation (Tower Hamlets Homes) 
in June 2009 a Service Improvement 
Plan was developed. This was 
refreshed in February 2010 and 
agreed with the Council as one of the 
suite of documents which govern the 
operations of the ALMO under the 
terms of the Management Agreement. 

Corporate 
Director, 
Development 
and Renewal 

Page 110



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
This allows the ALMO and the Council 
to focus on those areas where there is 
the greatest risk at inspection and 
where the need for a stronger 
customer focus is most intense. 
The clienting procedures within the 
Council have also been strengthened 
in recognition of the importance of the 
need to drive change in the ALMO 
As a Round 6 ALMO funding for this 
scheme is not fully committed at this 
stage. Discussions continue with the 
HCA and the need for such 
investment has been prioritised in the 
draft Borough Investment Plan which 
will be agreed with the HCA by 
September 2010 Other regeneration 
opportunities  have been progressed 
and the Ocean estate scheme has 
achieved start on site and 40Million 
funding from HCA. {Priority 14 – 
Strategic Plan and 2.1.4.2 Directorate 
Plan}.  

Arrangements for Safeguarding Children 
/ Child Protection. 

Following national scrutiny of 
safeguarding issues, and the 
publication of Laming report, the 
Council has reviewed referral and 
safeguarding arrangements with social 
care and where necessary 
strengthened current arrangements 
and adopt the DCFS / Laming 
recommendations. 
Some key recommendations have 
already been implemented, for 
example the appointment of an 
independent chair for the Safeguarding 
Board, carrying out audit and 
assurance on cases within Children’s 
Services and enhancing the use of 
Framework I, the Council’s case 
management system. The next steps 
involve implementing all appropriate 
remaining recommendations, in 
particular, assessing potential increase 
in social worker requirements and 
taking heed of further guidance. 
{Priority 60, Strategic Plan}. 

Corporate 
Director, 
Children 
Services 

Page 111



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
Improve information governance across 
the authority. 

Following loss of personal data by an 
employee last year, a number of steps 
were taken to militate against future 
losses and to protect the information 
held by the Council. Some of the 
initiates already taken include the use 
of BIOS passwords. A Project is now in 
place to implement full encryption for 
all mobile devices. This will be 
implemented for the most vulnerable 
devices first and all remaining devices 
by September 2010 {Priority Res011 – 
Resources Directorate Plan}. 

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive 
(Legal) 

Directorate operational guidance on 
contract management; retention and 
filing of contract documentation & 
Unauthorised extension of contracts. 

Guidance is already available through 
the contracting toolkit. Work is 
underway to broaden and strengthen 
our approach and this will be submitted 
to Competition Board for approval in 
September.  A proposal for a standard 
self-assessment approach to contract 
management is currently being 
developed, for approval by 
Competition Board and subsequent 
roll-out across the Council. 
Systems have been improved for 
recording and filing contract 
documentation.  Work is underway 
with Legal for setting up a repository of 
contract documents. This will be 
finalised by end June 2010. 
Unauthorised contract extensions have 
largely been addressed through 
revision of the Procurement 
Procedures in 2009.  The updating of 
the contracts register, which will be 
completed by end May 2010, will 
provide the assurance to prevent 
unauthorised extensions. 
{Priority 8 – Resource’s Directorate 
Plan}.  

Corporate 
Management 
Team. 

Termination of Chief Officer’s 
employment. 

Responding to the Audit Commission’s 
recommendation the process will be 
clarified by introducing a protocol into 
the Constitution by July 2010.  This 
makes the responsibilities of officers 
and members clear when the 
termination of a Chief Officer's 

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive – 
Legal Services 

Page 112



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
employment is being considered. 
{Priority within Chief Executive 
Directorate Plan}. 

Pupil Place Planning - expanding school 
provision to meet rising demand for 
places. 

Action has been taken to identify short 
term primary place needs (for 2010/11 
School Year) and develop technical 
feasibility of temporary school 
expansion. The pupil projections model 
has also been enhanced to ensure 
pupil place planning is based on robust 
data. 

Work in underway with the 
Development and Renewal directorate 
to integrate two planning models to 
provide one single comprehensive 
projection model by September 2010 
and have in place strategic provision 
of additional primary school places to 
2019/20 school {Priority CYPP, ECS – 
Children Schools Family Directorate 
Plan}. 

Corporate 
Director, 
Children 
Services 

To review and ensure the delivery of 
additional housing to reduce 
overcrowding. 

The council is committed to providing 
high quality housing in line with the 
needs of the community. 
An Overcrowding Strategy has been 
agreed, which involves all partner 
RSLs in the borough as well as Tower 
Hamlets Homes. A programme has 
been developed to acquire and new 
build properties to reduce 
overcrowding {Priority 2.1 (1) – 
Strategic Plan}. A Right to Buy 
Buyback programme purchased more 
than 80 properties of three beds or 
larger, and despite the recession the 
Affordable Housing new build target 
(NI155) was achieved in 2009/10. 
Responsibility for addressing 
overcrowding within the Council's own 
stock has also been formalised with 
the Council dealing with those tenants 
who are two or more bedrooms short 
of need and Tower Hamlets Homes 
arranging a programme of visits to 
tenants who are 1 bedroom short of 
need using an Overcrowding Toolkit 

Corporate 
Director, 
Development 
and Renewal. 

Page 113



Appendix 3 
 

    
 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  
which has been developed to 
standardise the approach to 
overcrowding, {Priority 15 – Strategic 
Plan}. 

 
We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the governance systems 
of the Council having regard to the sources of assurance set out in this statement, and we are satisfied 
that the system of control is effective.  
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that 
were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part 
of our next annual review. 
 
 
 
……….……….……….……….………. 
Chief Executive 
Date: 
 
 
 
……….……….……….……….………. 
Leader 
Date:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



LONDON BOROUGH OF

TOWER HAMLETS 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009-10 

Agenda Item 73

Page 115



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009-10 

CONTENTS

   Page

Foreword by the Corporate Director of Resources 1 

Review of the Year 2 

The Accounting Statements 7 

Statement of Accounting Policies 8

Income and Expenditure Account 17 

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance 18 

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 19 

Balance Sheet 20 

Cash Flow Statement  21 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 22 

Housing Revenue Account 56

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance 57

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account 58

Collection Fund 62 

Group Accounts 65

Pension Fund Accounts 71 

Auditor’s Report 78 

Statement of Responsibilities 80 

Annual Governance Statement 81 

Glossary and Abbreviations 92

Page 116



- 1 -

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD

Overview by the Corporate Director of Resources 

I am pleased to introduce Tower Hamlets Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2009/10, which reports our 

financial results for the year. 

The accounts have been compiled in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2009 and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2009. These constitute “proper 

accounting practice” with which councils must comply by statute. The Council has also produced a summary of 

the accounts, which is less detailed than the full statement. This has been produced following consultation with 

stakeholders and is available from the Council’s website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk.

The Council’s last Use of Resources score was a ‘3’, the second highest category, against the Audit 

Commission’s ‘harder test’.  Overall, the Council’s finances  are sound, and we will need this solid financial 

base as we face the period of tighter public spending ahead. Expenditure in 2009/10 was kept  under control and 

the revenue budget ended the year slightly under spent.  

Pressures on the Council’s budget year on year from demographic growth, new legislation and inflation will 

generally exceed the additional income we receive, while uncertainty in the economy means that we may have to 

plan for greater financial risk as we go forward. The Council’s prudent treasury management strategy allowed us 

to avoid some of the consequences of the 2008 banking crisis, but the Council’s investment income has been hit 

by lower interest rates.  However, the Council has delivered or planned to deliver savings which have enabled 

the budget to be balanced and increases in Council Tax kept to affordable levels.  

For the period 2007/08 to 2009/10 , the Council set a three year budget plan, and this will help us to look beyond 

this to plan the use of our resources better in the longer term. Tower Hamlets’ Council Tax remains, for 2010/11, 

the sixth lowest Band D charge in London . At the same time, the Council continues to retain a prudent level of 

reserves against foreseen and unforeseen eventualities, while fully taking into account its ambitious 

improvement programme.

Tower Hamlets Homes, the Council’s Arms Length Management Organisation (or ALMO), was established in 

July 2008 to run Council housing in the Borough. These accounts therefore include Group Accounts, reflecting 

the financial position of the ALMO as well as the Council. The ALMO faces inspection in November 2010 to 

determine whether it can achieve 2 Star performance and with it draw substantial new investment for housing to 

Tower Hamlets.  

The Council has played its part in reshaping the highly-regarded Tower Hamlets Partnership during 2009/10, and 

looks forward to working with its partners to deliver further community benefits across all public services in the 

Borough. 

In summary whilst we face challenging times ahead, the Council through prudent and effective financial 

management is in a strong position financially to respond and to maintain itself as an improving Council in 

support of its local community. 

Chris Naylor ACA CPFA MA Cantab 

Corporate Director of Resources

Page 117



- 2 -

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

The Council’s expenditure and income are defined either as revenue (spending on or income from the day to day 

running of services) or capital (spending on or income from items that provide a benefit for more than one year, 

such as building a school). The following shows revenue income and expenditure for the year.  

WHERE THE MONEY CAME FROM

The Council’s overall income for the year was £1,255.54 million (£1,195 million in 2008-09) and came from a 

number of different sources: 

The!majority!of!the!income!was!from!Central!Government!Sources

£74.21m

£75.50m

£215.07m

£890.76m

Central !Govt!(Inc!NNDR)

Fees !and!Charges !from!users!of!services!provided!by

the!council !and!external !interest!reciept

Housing!Tenants'!rents!and!other!charges

C!Tax!payers

HOW THE MONEY WAS SPENT

The Council spent £1,296.37million (£1,201.2 million in 2008-09) on services: 

The!biggest!share!of!expenditure!was!in!Childrens!&!Education!Services

£29.75m

£382.26m

£142.63m

£113.07m

£89.42m
£28.41m

£510.83m

Childrens !&!Education!Services

Housing

Cultural,!Environmental !&

Planning!Services

Adult!Social !Care

Central !Services

NDC!!&!Corporate!and

Democratic!Core

Highways !and!Transport

Grants from Central Government form the biggest single source of income to the Council - £890.76 million 

(£839.7 million in 2008/2009). Of this, approximately 69% is grant towards the costs of providing specific 

services.  The rest is grant for the Council's service provision as a whole. 

Income received from housing tenants’ rents and other charges amounted to £75.50 million (£72.7 million in 

2008/2009). “Other” income of £215.07 million (£212.09 million in 2008-09) includes fees and charges from 

users of services provided by the Council and external interest receipts. The balance of £74.21 million came 

from Council Tax (£70.5 million in 2008-09). 

Page 118



- 3 -

£1,296.37 million was spent in the year (£1,201.2 million in 2008-09). 39% of spending was on Children’s and 

Education services; 30% on Housing; Adult Social Care accounted for 9%, Culture and Environment (including 

leisure, environmental health, planning and refuse collection) 11% and a further 2% on Non-Distributed Costs 

and Corporate & Democratic core. A fuller analysis is shown in the Income and Expenditure Account on page 

17. 

Page 119



- 4 -

REVENUE SPEND COMPARED TO BUDGET

The Council’s revenue expenditure and income is divided between “General Fund” (services excluding council 

housing) and the “Housing Revenue Account” (HRA) - a separate account for the Council acting as a housing 

landlord. The General Fund net budget requirement for the year was agreed at £297.9 million consisting of 

service budgets of £300.4 million and a net contribution from balances of £2.5 million. Actual spend amounted 

to £297.9 million. The HRA expenditure requirement for the year was agreed at £104.2 million. In total there 

was a net under spend of £2.1 million. HRA balances and reserves have reduced by a total of £10.3 million. 

More details are shown below: 

General Fund           Adjusted Budget           Actual     Variance 

       £’m      £’m         £’m

Net expenditure 300.4 297.9 (2.5)

   

Contribution to balances (2.5) 0.0 2.5

      

Budget requirement 297.9 297.9 0.0

   

Government Grants   

  Revenue Support Grant (42.9) (42.9) 0.0

  Redistributed Business Rates (185.9) (185.9) 0.0

(Surplus)/Deficit on Collection Fund 2.0 2.0 0.0

    

Council Tax requirement 71.1 71.1 0.0

Housing Revenue Account         Adjusted Budget      Actual          Variance 

       £’m      £’m         £’m

Expenditure 104.2 102.1 (2.1)

Accounting adjustments (5.0) (4.2) 0.8

Budgeted contribution from HRA (4.3) (4.3) 0.0

Additional contribution from HRA Reserve 0.0 (2.2) (2.2)

    

Budget requirement 94.9 91.4 (3.5)

   

Income   

  Rents (58.0) (57.2) 0.8

  Government grant (19.3) (14.9) 4.4

  Charges and contributions (17.0) (19.1) (2.1)

  Interest (0.6) (0.2) 0.4

    

Total Income (94.9) (91.4) 3.5 

    

 Reserves C/Fwd  13.0

Page 120



- 5 -

PENSIONS

The Council offers retirement pensions to its staff under a statutory scheme and makes contributions to pension 

schemes on their behalf. Although the pension benefits are not payable until employees retire, the Council has a 

commitment to make the payments and must account for them in the year in which the future entitlements are 

earned. This commitment is compared with the assets (investments) of the pension schemes and the net amount 

is included in the accounts as the Council’s “Pensions Liability”. At the end of 2009-10 this liability was 

£670.69 million (£270.57 million 2008-09). Although this sum has a significant impact on the net worth of the 

Council as shown in its Balance Sheet, there are statutory arrangements for meeting the liability. The deficit will 

be addressed by increased contributions to the schemes over the remaining working lives of the staff. These 

contributions were assessed by the Council’s actuary in 2007 and a budget provision has been made accordingly.

CAPITAL SPENDING

The!largest!Capital!Spending!was!on!Council!Housing

£5.37m

£17.23m

£54.12m

£54.97m

£7.69m Council !Housing

Other!Land!and!buildings

Intangible!Assets!and!Deferred

Charges

Other!Expenditure

Infrastructure!Assets

Capital spending during the year amounted to £139.38 million (£68.98 million in 2008-09). £54.97 million 

(£21.77 million in 2008-09) of this was on projects relating to the conversion and improvement of the Council’s 

housing stock. Spending on other land and buildings projects was £54.12 million £17.84 million in 2008-09) and 

was primarily on the refurbishment, improvement and extension of schools in the Borough.  Infrastructure 

spending of £7.69 million (£5.69 million in 2008-09) was mainly on improving the existing road system within 

the Borough and the provision of street lighting. Other expenditure comprises equipment, which amounted to 

£1.87 million (£2.83 million in 2008-09) and a further £3.50 million (£3.32 million in 2008-09) was spent on 

improving parks and open spaces in the borough. Spending on Intangible Assets and Revenue Expenditure 

Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) includes information technology, home improvement grants paid 

to homeowners and grants paid to voluntary organisations, and amounted to £17.23 million (£17.53 million in  

2008-09).  

Page 121



- 6 -

HOW CAPITAL SPENDING WAS PAID FOR

        

Capital!Grants!and!Contributions!was!the!largest!source!of!Capital!Expenditure!

Financing

£13.84m

£14.44m

£11.39m

£76.78m

£22.93m
Borrowing

Capital !Grants!and

Contributions

Major!Repairs !Allowance

Capital !Receipts

Revenue

The Government pays the Council a grant called the Major Repairs Allowance to be spent on its housing stock. 

This amounted to £13.84 million for the year (£12.31million in 2008-09). Capital receipts are income from the 

sale of assets, such as council houses. £11.39 million was used in 2009-10 (£8.91million in 2008-09). The 

Council can pay for capital spending from its revenue monies and £14.44 million was used in the year (£3.32 

million in 2008-09). There are other Government grants which have to be used for specific projects and the 

Council receives contributions from others (for example developers). A total of £76.78 million was used in 

2009-10 (£20.59 million in 2008-09). Finally, the Council is allowed to borrow money to finance capital 

spending and £22.93 million was borrowed in the year (£23.85 million in 2008-09).   

FURTHER INFORMATION 
Further information about the accounts and a copy of the summary of accounts are available from the Head of 

Corporate Finance, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG. The summary is also on the Council’s 

website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk.

Page 122



- 7 -

THE ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS

These comprise: 

The Statement of Accounting Policies on which the figures in the accounts are based. 

The Core Financial Statements:

The Income and Expenditure Account which reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which the 

Council is responsible and demonstrates how the cost has been financed from general Government grants and 

income from local taxpayers.  It brings together income and expenditure relating to all the Council’s functions in 

three distinct sections, each divided by a sub-total, to give the net deficit or surplus for the year. 

The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance which shows the amounts in addition to the 

Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the year that are required by statute or non-statutory 

proper practices to be taken into account in determining the movement on the General Fund Balance. 

The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses which shows all gains and losses recognised in the 

Council’s Balance Sheet including those that are not reflected in the Income and Expenditure Account.  

The Balance Sheet which shows the Council’s financial position at the year-end - its balances and reserves and 

its long-term indebtedness, and the fixed and net current assets employed in its operational activities together 

with summarised information on the fixed assets held.  

The Cash Flow Statement which summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with 

third parties for revenue and capital purposes.  Cash is defined as cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand 

less overdrafts repayable on demand. 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which reflects a statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for 

local authority housing provision in accordance with Part 6 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, and 

details the credit and debit items required to be taken into account in determining the surplus or deficit on the 

HRA for the year. It is accompanied by the Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance and appropriate 

Notes.

The Collection Fund which shows the transactions of the Council in relation to non-domestic rates and Council 

Tax and illustrates the way these have been distributed between Tower Hamlets Council and the Greater London 

Authority.  It reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities such as the Council to maintain a separate 

account.

The Group Accounts which combine the financial activities and position of the Council and its subsidiary Arms 

Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Tower Hamlets Homes, into amalgamated Core Financial 

Statements 

The Pension Fund Accounts which provide information about the financial position, performance and the 

financial adaptability of the statutory pension fund. They show the results for the fund for the year and the 

disposition of its assets at the period end. 

We try to produce the statements in a form that is understandable to most stakeholders. However, they include 

some technical terms which are explained in the Glossary, which starts at page 92. 

Page 123



- 8 -

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2009-10 financial year and its position 

at the year-end of 31st March 2010. It has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom – A Statement of Recommended Practice 2009 (the “SORP”). The 

accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of tangible 

fixed assets. Expenditure and income are reported in accordance with a total cost basis of accounting. Gross total 

cost includes all expenditure attributable to the service/activity, including employee costs, expenditure relating to 

premises and transport, supplies and services, third party payments, transfer payments, support services and 

depreciation. No categories of income are considered to be abatements of expenditure, and movements to and 

from reserves are excluded from total cost. 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Generally, activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 

received. In particular: 

! Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the Council provides 

the relevant goods or services. 

! Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 

supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as stocks on the Balance Sheet. 

! Works are charged as expenditure less deposits and are carried as works in progress on the Balance Sheet.  

! Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the 

effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined 

by the contract. 

! Where income or expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or 

creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be 

settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not 

be collected. 

! Exceptionally, income in respect of adults in residential care under the National Assistance Act 1948 is 

accounted for on a cash basis, although the amount involved is not material to the presentation of the 

accounts.

3. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation that probably requires 

settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain. For instance, if 

the Council were to be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the 

payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Council becomes aware of 

the obligation, based on the best estimate of the likely settlement. When payments are eventually made, they are 

charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year. 

Where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not be required (or a lower 

settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue 

account.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle an obligation is expected to be met by another party (e.g. 

from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant revenue account if it is virtually 

certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

Page 124



- 9 -

4. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. 

When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred it is charged to the relevant service revenue account 

in that year to score against the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account.  The reserve is 

then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance statement so that there is no net charge against Council 

Tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed assets and retirement benefits 

and do not represent usable resources for the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies 

below. 

5. Government Grants and Contributions (Revenue) 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants and third party contributions and 

donations are recognised as income at the date that the Council satisfies the conditions of entitlement to the 

grant/contribution, there is reasonable assurance that the monies will be received and the expenditure for which 

the grant is given has been incurred. Revenue grants are matched in revenue accounts with the service 

expenditure to which they relate. Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are credited 

to the foot of the Income and Expenditure Account after Net Operating Expenditure. 

6. Retirement Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of three separate pension schemes: 

! The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Council 

! The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the London Pensions Fund Authority  

! The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department 

for Education (DfE). 

All the schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees 

work for the council.  

However, the arrangements for the Teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot be identified 

to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contributions scheme – no liability 

for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet and the education service revenue account is 

charged with the employer’s contributions payable to teachers’ pensions in the year. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

The Local Government scheme is a defined benefits scheme. 

The liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial 

basis using the projected unit method – an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 

retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 

rates, etc. and estimates of projected earnings for current employees.  

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate derived from corporate bond 

yields (as measured by the yield on iboxx Sterling Corporates Index, AA over 15 years) as at 31st March 2010.  

Assets attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. Quoted or unitised 

securities are valued at current bid price; unquoted securities on the basis of professional estimate; and property 

at market value.

Page 125



- 10 -

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 

! current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year, allocated in 

the Income and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked 

! past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions the effect of which relates 

to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the Net Cost of Services as part of Non Distributed 

Costs

! interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move one 

year closer to being paid, debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account 

! expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the Council, 

based on an average of the expected long-term return, credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the 

Income and Expenditure Account 

! gains and losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Council of liabilities 

or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees, credited or debited 

to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs 

! actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 

coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated 

their assumptions, debited to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 

! contributions paid to the pension funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension funds. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the 

amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 

relevant accounting standards. In the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance this means that there 

are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 

benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension funds and any amounts payable to the 

funds but unpaid at the year-end. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 

retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers) 

are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are 

applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

7. VAT 

Income and expenditure exclude any amounts related to VAT, as generally all VAT collected is payable to HM 

Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.  Any irrecoverable VAT is included in the 

cost of services.  

8. Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those services that benefit from the supply or service 

in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2009

(BVACOP). The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services is 

shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 

! Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-functional, democratic 

organisation, 

! Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and any 

depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties, 

! Non-material end of year balances on support services treated as trading accounts. 

The first two cost categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as separate headings in the Income and 

Expenditure Account, as part of the Net Cost of Services. Balances on the third category are accounted for as a 

surplus or deficit on a trading account, as part of Net Operating Expenditure. 

Page 126



- 11 -

9. Intangible Fixed Assets 

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council 

(software licenses) is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than one financial year. The 

balance is amortised to the relevant revenue account over the economic life of the investment to reflect the 

pattern of consumption of benefits.  

10. Tangible Fixed Assets 

Tangible fixed assets are assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or 

for administrative purposes on a continuing basis. 

Recognition: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is capitalised on 

an accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Council for more than one financial year. Expenditure 

that secures but does not extend the previously assessed standards of performance of an asset (e.g. repairs and 

maintenance) is charged to revenue as it is incurred. The de minimis level above which expenditure on tangible 

fixed assets is classified as capital is £50,000 except where the expenditure is financed by grants or 

contributions; or where lesser amounts on the same scheme accumulate above that level.  

Measurement: Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to 

bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using 

the following measurement bases: 

! investment properties and assets surplus to requirements – lower of net current replacement cost or net 

realisable value 

! dwellings, other land and buildings, vehicles, plant and equipment – lower of net current replacement cost 

or net realisable value in existing use 

! infrastructure assets – depreciated historical cost 

! community assets – historical cost. 

Net current replacement cost is assessed as: 

! non-specialised operational properties – existing use value 

! specialised operational properties – depreciated replacement cost, 

! investment properties and surplus assets – market value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued where there have been material changes in the 

value, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation 

Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Income and Expenditure 

Account where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service revenue 

account.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date the reserve 

came into existence.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment: The values of each category of assets and of material individual assets that are not being 

depreciated are reviewed at the end of each financial year for evidence of reductions in value. Where impairment 

is identified as part of this review or as a result of a valuation exercise, this is accounted for by: 

! where attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits – the loss is charged to the relevant 

service revenue account 

! otherwise – written off against any revaluation gains attributable to the relevant asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, with any excess charged to the relevant service revenue account. 

Where an impairment loss is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account but there were accumulated 

revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for that asset, an amount up to the value of the loss is transferred 

from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Page 127



- 12 -

Disposals: When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet is 

written off to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from 

disposals are credited to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted 

off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation 

Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in excess of £10,000 received from 

disposals are categorised as capital receipts. 

A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of 

statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government.  The balance of receipts is required to be 

credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to 

reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to 

the Reserve from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 

provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 

Adjustment Account from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. 

Depreciation: This is provided for on all assets with a determinable finite life (except for investment properties), 

by allocating the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected to benefit from their use. 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

! dwellings – equivalent to the Major Repairs Allowance payable by the Government which has been used 

as an appropriate proxy for depreciation 

! other land and buildings – straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer 

! vehicles, plant and equipment – for vehicles and plant, a percentage of the value of each class of assets in 

the Balance Sheet  as advised by a suitably qualified officer. For equipment, over 5 years. 

! infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 40 years. 

Were an asset to have major components identified by a qualified valuer, and assessed to have different 

estimated useful lives, these would be depreciated separately. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 

depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical 

cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Grants and contributions: Grants and contributions received after the 31st March 2007 which are identifiable 

to fixed assets with a finite useful life are credited to the Government Grants Deferred Account. The balance is 

then written down to revenue to balance depreciation charges made for the related assets in the relevant service 

revenue account, in line with the depreciation policy applied to them. Grants and contributions received on or 

before 31st March 2007 are transferred to revenue over a specified period depending on the nature of the 

expenditure which was funded as follows:  

! Works – 10 years 

! Improvements – 20 years 

! Conversions – 30 years 

! New Construction – 40 years 

Page 128



- 13 -

11. Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 

record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

! depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

! impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on tangible fixed assets used 

by the service and other losses where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against 

which they can be written off 

! amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisations.  

However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its 

overall borrowing requirement (equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 

accordance with statutory guidance).  Depreciation, impairment losses and amortizations are therefore replaced 

by revenue provision in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 

transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two. 

12. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the 

creation of fixed assets has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. 

Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by 

borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged in the Statement 

of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is no impact on the level of Council Tax. 

13. Leases 

The Council has reviewed in detail its leases and has determined that there are a small number of finance leases 

with immaterial asset value, so the agreement costs are charged to revenue.  If the Council was to have a material 

finance lease the accounting policy would be as per the following. 

Finance Leases 

The Council accounts for leases as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the 

leased property transfer to the Council. Rentals payable are apportioned between: 

! a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property (recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet 

at the start of the lease, matched with a tangible fixed asset – the liability is written down as the rent 

becomes payable), and 

! a finance charge (debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account as the 

rent becomes payable). 

Fixed assets recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies applied generally to Tangible 

Fixed Assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated 

useful life. 

Operating Leases 

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable are 

charged to the relevant service revenue account on an equalized basis over the term of the lease, to reflect the 

economic benefits consumed over the life of the lease, irrespective of fluctuations in annual payments.  

14. Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the 

Income and Expenditure Account for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, 

multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For most of the borrowings that the Council has, 

this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued 

interest) and the interest charged to the Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for the year in 

the loan agreement. 

Page 129



- 14 -

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to Net Operating 

Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where 

repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves a modification or 

exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the 

amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Income and Expenditure Account is spread 

over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 

Where premia and discounts have been charged to the Income and Expenditure Account, regulations allow the 

impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years.  The Council has a policy of spreading 

(amortising) the gains/losses over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was 

payable or discount receivable when it was repaid.  The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Income and 

Expenditure Account to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or 

from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund 

Balance.

15. Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

! loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active 

market 

! available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable 

payments 

The Council has no available-for-sale assets. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and 

carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable are 

based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most 

of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 

outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Income and Expenditure 

Account is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

When soft loans are made (loans to voluntary organisations at less than market rates), a loss is recorded in the 

Income and Expenditure Account for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the 

instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally 

higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference 

serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the 

impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the 

reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Income and Expenditure Account to the net gain required 

against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment

Account in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due 

under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Income and Expenditure 

Account. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited/debited to the Income and

Expenditure Account. 

16. Stocks and Work in Progress 

Stocks are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Exceptionally, vehicle 

maintenance stocks are valued at the latest purchase price. Work in progress consists of rechargeable works 

which are shown net of deposits. 

Page 130



- 15 -

17. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 

The Council has a material interest in Tower Hamlets Homes which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council 

and which requires group accounts to be prepared. The Council, as part of the Government’s Building Schools 

for the Future (BSF) initiative, also has a ten percent shareholding in the delivery company Tower Hamlets 

Local Education Partnership Ltd. but has determined that the interest is outside the group accounts requirement. 

The group accounts are at pages 65 to 70 In the Council’s own single-entity accounts, interests in companies and 

other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses.  

18. Private Finance Initiative (PFI)            

PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the fixed assets 

needed to provide services passes to the PFI contractor. The Council is party to two PFI contracts in respect of 

schools which terminate in 2027 and 2029.  The Combined Heat and Power (CHP) contract is treated as an end 

user agreement. 

The SORP 2009 requires these contracts to be accounted for in 2009-10 in a manner that is consistent with the 

adaptation of International Financing Reporting Interpretation 12 (IFRIC 12) - Service Concession 

Arrangements - contained in the Government’s Financial Reporting Manual (FReM), as this will assist in the 

transition to International Finance Reporting Standards (IFRS) for 2010/11. IFRIC 12 is the interpretation of 

IFRS that applies to operators of PFI and similar contracts, and is expected to form part of United Kingdom 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) in due course. The 2009 SORP is consistent with the 

accounting treatment required of other public sector bodies in the UK set out in the FReM and approved by the 

Financial Reporting Advisory Board. 

This is a change in accounting policy compared with previous years when PFI contracts were accounted for in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 5 and the fixed assets were carried on the Balance Sheet of the 

contractor and not the Council. The effect of IFRIC 12 is that the Council is deemed to control the services that 

are provided under its PFI schemes and, as ownership of the fixed assets will pass to the Council at the end of 

the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries the fixed assets used under the contracts on the 

Balance Sheet. 

The original recognition of these fixed assets has been balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due 

to the scheme operator to pay for the assets. The fixed assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and 

depreciated in the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Council. The amounts payable to the 

PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements: 

! fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in the Income and 

Expenditure Account 

! finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to Interest Payable 

and Similar Charges in the Income and Expenditure Account 

! contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract, debited 

to Interest Payable and Similar Charges in the Income and Expenditure Account 

! payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI operator 

lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as fixed assets on the Balance Sheet. 

This change in accounting policy has required prior period adjustments to the Council’s accounts. See note 57 

page 55.

There is also a contract for the Barkantine Heat and Power scheme.  This concession agreement is a user pay 

arrangement where the end user pays the operator for the combined heat and power (CHP) services rendered.  

The council receives a profit share but pays no unitary charge for the service.  This opinion confirms that the 

agreement is not to be treated as a finance lease and that any costs are to be charged to revenue. 

Page 131



- 16 -

19. Collection Fund 

The Council is required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts due 

in respect of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). 

Up to 2008-09 the Council Tax income included in the Income and Expenditure Account was the amount that 

was required to be transferred to the General Fund under regulations. From 1st April 2009 the amount included in 

the Income and Expenditure Account, as specified in the 2009 SORP, is the accrued income for the year. The 

difference between the two amounts is taken to a Collection Fund Adjustment Account. In addition, there is a 

revised debtor / creditor relationship between the Council and the Greater London Authority (GLA) as the 2009 

SORP determines that the collection of the tax on behalf of the GLA is an agency arrangement. This is a change 

in accounting policy which requires a prior year adjustment. See note 57 page 55.

Up to 2008-09 NNDR taxpayers’ debtor and creditor balances and an allowance for doubtful debts were 

included on the Council’s Balance Sheet. The 2009 SORP determines that the Council collects NNDR under 

what is in substance an agency arrangement with the Government. From 1st April 2009 the amount included in 

the Council’s Balance Sheet is the amount of cash collected from NNDR taxpayers (less the amount retained in 

respect of a cost of collection allowance) that has not yet been paid to the Government or has been overpaid to 

the Government on the Balance Sheet date. This is a change in accounting policy which requires a prior year 

adjustment. See note 57 page 55.

Page 132



Note 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2008/09 2008/09 2008/09

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 4 142,626 48,701 93,925 130,252 53,909 76,343

Central Services 89,424 77,339 12,085 55,655 47,018 8,637

Children's and Education Services 55 510,826 425,197 85,629 470,703 374,075 96,628

Highways and Transport Services 29,754 24,141 5,613 30,989 27,693 3,296

Local Authority Housing (Housing Revenue Account) 6 96,729 90,760 5,969 110,565 91,599 18,966

Other Housing Services 6 285,533 278,526 7,007 259,630 255,347 4,283

Adult Social Care 19 113,069 20,948 92,121 102,959 17,201 85,758

Corporate and Democratic Core 10,689 6,303 4,386 21,072 6,339 14,733

Non-distributed Costs 17,721 26 17,695 15,185 481 14,704

NET COST OF SERVICES 1,296,371 971,941 324,430 1,197,010 873,662 323,348

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets 3 21,428 (13,394)

Total net (surplus)/deficit on trading accounts 8 11 1,555

Amounts due to levying authorities 9 1,636 1,641

Contribution to housing pooled capital receipts 572 4,766

Interest payable and similar charges 27,379  28,544

Interest and investment income (1,313) (6,144)

Amortisation of premiums and discounts 0 2,849

Unattached capital receipts (8,734) (1,331)

Pensions interest cost and  expected return on pensions assets 47 21,252 12,234

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 386,661 354,068

INCOME FROM TAXATION AND GENERAL 

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Council Tax income (74,206) (70,073)

Government grants (not attributable to specific services) 14 (76,714) (55,384)

Distribution from non-domestic rate pool (185,907) (197,503)

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR TRANSFERRED TO 

THE GENERAL FUND
49,834 31,108

1
 See note 57

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

This account brings together all of the functions of the Council and summarises all the resources it has generated, consumed or set aside in providing services during the year.

- 17 -Page 133



Note 2009/10 2008/09

As Restated 
1

£'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year on the Income and 

Expenditure Account 49,834 31,108

Net additional amount required by statute and non-

statutory proper practices to be debited or credited to the 

General Fund Balance for the year 2 (48,440) (24,883)

(Increase)/decrease in General Fund Balance for the year 1,394 6,225

General Fund Balance brought forward (47,638) (53,863)

General Fund Balance (including schools' balances) carried forward (46,244) (47,638)

Amount of General Fund Balances Held by Schools 

under Local Management Schemes

Schools' Balances brought forward (20,536) (28,349)

Movement on Schools Balances in year 1,425 7,813

Schools' Balances carried forward 
2 (19,111) (20,536)

Amount of General Fund Balance Generally Available for New Expenditure (27,133) (27,102)

1
 See note 57

2
 Schools' Balances are included in Earmarked Reserves on the Council's Balance Sheet (see page 46)

- Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners, rather than as future benefits are

earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the Council's spending against the Council Tax that it raised for the year, taking into account

the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure.

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure Account and the

General Fund Balance.

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE

The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council's actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms of the

resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However, the Council is required to raise Council Tax on a different

accounting basis, the main differences being:

 - Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are consumed.

- The payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government counts as a loss in the Income and Expenditure Account,

but is met from the capital receipts reserve rather than Council Tax.

- 18 -Page 134



This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the aggregate increase in its

net worth. In addition to the surplus generated on the Income and Expenditure Account, it includes gains and losses

relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.

The gains and losses for the year are adjusted by the effect on reserves of prior period adjustments.

 2009/10 2008/09

As Restated 
1

£'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year 49,834 31,108

(Surplus)/Deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets  (38,203) (168,154)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities 395,329 85,644

Collection Fund deficit - element relating to the Council 0 481

Total recognised (gains) and losses for the year 406,960 (50,921)

Cumulative effect on reserves of prior period adjustments 93,579

Aggregate (increase)/decrease in net worth 406,960 42,658

1
See note 57

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

- 19 -Page 135



Note 2010 2010 2009 2009

As Restated 
1

As Restated 
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 20

Operational assets

Council dwellings 925,378 901,291

Other land and buildings 983,324 968,157

Infrastructure assets 91,170 86,397

Equipment 4,456 3,643

Community assets 48,410 45,220

Non-operational assets

Investment properties 52,769 50,042

Surplus assets 5,072 802

Total Fixed Assets 2,110,579 2,055,552

Long Term Debtors 27 1,067 855

Total Long Term Assets 2,111,646 2,056,407

Current Assets

Stocks and Work in Progress 28 531 303

Debtors 29 88,620 80,618

Investments 31 85,508 78,427

Cash and Bank 37,010 211,669 27,452 186,800

Total Assets 2,323,315 2,243,207

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowing 31 15,324 13,600

Creditors 32 129,702 145,026 132,166 145,766

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,178,289 2,097,441

Long Term Liabilities

Long-term borrowing 31 302,475 251,785

Capital Grants Unapplied 34 38,511 37,363

Capital Grants and Contributions Deferred 35 130,864 96,139

Deferred liabilities 10 38,287 38,637

Deferred Income - Receipt in Advance 36 9,817 11,006

Provisions 37 11,216 8,560

Liability related to defined benefit pension schemes 47 670,693 1,201,863 270,565 714,055

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 976,426 1,383,386

Financed by

Revaluation Reserve 39 510,138 486,712

Capital Adjustment Account 41 975,634 994,431

Capital Receipts Reserve 42 16,309 18,091

Deferred Capital Receipts 43 298 412

Pensions Reserve 
1

47 (670,693) (270,565)

Major Repairs Reserve 38 1,074 2,354

Council Tax Adjustment Account 47 3,902 (597)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 40 764 280

Balances

General Fund 38 27,133 27,102

Housing Revenue Account 38 12,978 23,301

Earmarked Reserves 46 98,889 101,865

TOTAL NET WORTH 976,426 1,383,386

1
See note 57

BALANCE SHEET 
 as at 31st March 

This statement shows the Council's balances and reserves and its long-term indebtedness, and the fixed assets and net current assets employed in its

operations.

- 20 -Page 136



Note 2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

As Restated
 1

As Restated
 1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NET  REVENUE ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW 50 40,856 17,276

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

Cash outflows

Interest paid (22,455) (21,038)

Interest element of finance lease rental payments (5,846) (5,348)

Cash inflows

Interest received 1,385 6,434

(26,916) (19,952)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows

Purchase of fixed assets (119,730) (66,564)

Other capital cash payments (554) -

Cash inflows

Sale of fixed assets 1,371 25,873

Other capital cash receipts 243 67

Capital grants received 69,124 36,716

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES (49,546) (3,908)

NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING (35,606) (6,584)

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

Net increase/decrease in other liquid resources 54 (8,402) 22,390

(8,402) 22,390

FINANCING

Cash outflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed (12,901) (21,719)

Cash inflows

New loans raised 66,467 7,000

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING 53,566 (14,719)

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 9,558 1,087

1
See note 57

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

This statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes. From 2008-09 the SORP permits

presentation of the Cash Flow Statement by either the direct method showing gross cash flows, or by the indirect method, whereby revenue cash flow is derived by adjusting the

overall Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit to a cash basis. Under the latter method gross cash flow categories are not presented in the Statement and non-cash

items, returns on investments and servicing of finance are removed from the surplus or deficit in order to calculate a single overall figure for revenue cash flow. The Council's

Cash Flow Statement is presented by the indirect method.

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND

SERVICING OF FINANCE

- 21 -

Page 137



1 SERVICE EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS

2 NOTE OF RECONCILING ITEMS FOR THE STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE

2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

As Restated 
1

As Restated 
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(1,374) (969)

(61,712) (28,908)

(335) (734)

(6,842) (23,363)

(1,434)

37,275 25,851

484 (2,284)

(15,045) (16,281)

Unattached capital receipts 8,734 1,331

(2,379) 3,720

(19,049) 9,674

(36,104) (96,347) (38,249) (71,646)

7,260 7,302

14,437 3,316

(572) (4,766)

33,231 36,353

5,097 59,453 (427) 41,778

(10,323) (11,887)

(1,223) (11,546) 16,872 4,985

(48,440) (24,883)

1
See note 57

3 GAIN OR LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS

2009/10 2008/2009

Disposal Disposal

£'000 £'000

483 5,911

27,056 0

Book value of disposals 27,539 5,911

(1,340) (19,387)

11 82

Deferred contributions written off (4,781) 0

21,429 (13,394)Loss/(Gain) on Disposal

This represents the gain/loss to the Council on the sale of fixed assets. The effects are reversed in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund balance to avoid any 

impact on the General Fund balance. 

Market value of assets sold

*Adjustments for demolitions/transfers/disposals

Capital receipts received

Net profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets

Gain or loss on sale of Housing Revenue Account fixed assets

Net additional amount required to be credited to the General Fund balance for the year

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to be taken into account when

determining the movement on the General Fund balance for the year

Transfer of statutory surplus/(deficit) for the year on the Housing Revenue Account

Transfers made at the discretion of the Council to or from reserves that have been earmarked for specific 

purpose

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The service expenditure analysis has been compiled in accordance with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice.

Employer's contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement benefits payable direct to

pensioners

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be excluded

when determining the movement on the General Fund balance for the year

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets 

Excess of depreciation of Housing Revenue Account compared with Major Repairs Allowance

Deferred considerations adjustment

Government Grants Deferred amortisation

Impairment relating to Housing Stock transfer

*The adjustments represent write out of the carrying value of assets disposed of in previous years, identified during an asset verification exercise.

Difference between amounts debited/credited to the Income and Expenditure account and amounts

payable/receivable to be recognised under statutory provisons relating to premiums and discounts on the

early repayment of debt

Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS 17

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required to be included by statute

when determining the movement on the General Fund balance for the year

Transfer from the Council Tax Adjustment Account

Minimum revenue provision for capital financing 

Capital expenditure financed from the General Fund

Transfer from Capital Receipts Reserve to meet payments to the housing capital receipts pool

Cost of disposal on dwellings

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

- 22 -Page 138



4 BUILDING CONTROL ACCOUNT

Non Total Non Total

Chargeable Chargeable Outturn Chargeable Chargeable Outturn

Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Employee costs 1,068 638 1,706 1,127 628 1,755

 Transport 25 14 39 24 15 39

 Premises 134 80 214 168 95 263

 Supplies and services 136 21 157 211 47 258

 Support services 132 221 353 149 168 317

Total Expenditure 1,495 974 2,469 1,679 953 2,632

Income

 Building Regulation fees 1,149 111 1,260 1,766 197 1,963

Deficit (Surplus) for the year 346 863 1,209 (87) 756 669

5 CONTROLLED PARKING ACCOUNT

2009/2010 2008/2009

Expenditure £'000 £'000

 Employee costs 4,136 4,270

 Premises 510 529

 Transport 159 152

 Supplies and services 2,277 2,098

 Third party payments 1,681 1,524

 Support services 1,377 1,691

 Capital financing 0 10

Total Expenditure 10,140 10,274

Income

 Fees and charges 14,650 14,646

Decrease in provision for bad debts 358 491

Total Income 15,008 15,137

(Surplus)/Loss for the year (4,868) (4,863)

Balance at 1st April 957 0

Surplus for year 4,868 4,863

Funding of General Fund service initiatives. (3,997) (3,906)

Balance at  31st March 1,828 957

This account records all income and expenditure attributable to on-street parking activities, including enforcement. The account may incur a deficit in the year in which case

the deficit must be made good from the General Fund at the end of the year. The use of any surplus is prescribed by legislation and is restricted largely to reinvestment within

the service and highways and transportation initiatives. The balance of the surplus at 31st March 2010, after the funding of General Fund service initiatives, has been

transferred into an earmarked reserve.

2009/2010 2008/2009

The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 1998 require the disclosure of information regarding the setting of charges for the administration of its building control

function. The statement below shows the total cost of the building control function divided between chargeable and non-chargeable activities.

The Council operates a separate Controlled Parking Account in accordance with s.55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as amended by the 1991 Road Traffic Act), the

costs of which are incorporated within the income and expenditure for Highways and Transport Services.

- 23 -Page 139



6 HOUSING SERVICES

2009/2010 2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009

Gross Gross Net Net

Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account  (page 56) 97,231 (90,760) 6,471 19,294

Internal recharges

   Corporate and Democratic Core (502) 0 (502) (328)

Local Authority Housing 96,729 (90,760) 5,969 18,966

Other Housing 285,533 (277,812) 7,721 5,215

Internal recharges

   Supporting people 0 (714) (714) (932)

Other Housing Services 285,533 (278,526) 7,007 4,283

NET COST OF SERVICES 382,262 (369,286) 12,976 23,249

7 MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES

8 TRADING ACCOUNTS

2008/2009

Expenditure Income Surplus/ Surplus/

        (Deficit)         (Deficit)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Vehicle Maintenance 0 0 0 47

Cleansing and Welfare Catering 0 0 0 (9)

Building and Property Services 99 0 (99) (14)

Support Services 0 0 0 (1,711)

Street Trading (see note 45) 2,002 2,090 88 104

Mile End Park 0 0 0 28

TOTAL TRADING ACCOUNTS 2,101 2,090 (11) (1,555)

9 LEVIES

Levies payable by the Council for services received were as follows:

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 247 243

Environment Agency 161 161

London Pensions Fund Authority 1,228 1237

TOTAL LEVIES 1,636 1,641

Note: A number of services previously treated as trading accounts have been fully recharged to services for 2009/10 resulting in nil balances.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA), which is separately reported at page 52, is consolidated into the Income and Expenditure Account.

Before consolidation certain adjustments are required to ensure the proper reporting of  expenditure and income for the Council as a whole. 

The amounts consolidated are as follows:

2009/2010

The following services are reported as trading activities in 2009/2010:

Includes total allowances paid to Council Members of £926,521 in 2009/2010 (£856,159 in 2008/2009).

- 24 -Page 140



10 PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE SCHEMES - ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND PAYMENTS

Movement on PFI Assets Mulberry Group

School Schools Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Asset value at 31 March 2009 48,500 224,599 273,099

Depreciation (1,012) (4,667) (5,679)

Enhancements 3,501 3,501

Asset value at 31 March 2010 47,488 223,433 270,921

Movement on PFI Liabilities Mulberry Group

School Schools Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Liabilities at 31 March 2009 7,606 31,730 39,336

Repayments (154) (204) (358)

Liabilities at 31 March 2010 7,452 31,526 38,978

Consisting of:

Long term liability 7,123 31,164 38,287

Short-term liability 329 362 691

7,452 31,526 38,978

Payments due under PFI schemes Mulberry Group

School Schools Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Liability

Within 1-2 years 328 363 691

Within 2 - 5 years 791 1,717 2,508

Within 6 - 10 years 1,582 4,417 6,000
Within 11 - 15 years 2,185 13,202 15,386
Within 16 - 19 years 2,566 11,827 14,393

Interest

Within 1 year 836 4,638 5,474

Within 2 - 5 years 3,147 19,362 22,509

Within 6 - 10 years 3,310 22,229 25,538

Within 11 - 15 years 2,338 16,485 18,823

Within 16 - 19 years 777 3,501 4,278

Service Charges

Within 1 year 673 3,830 4,504

Within 2 - 5 years 2,694 12,855 15,549

Within 6 - 10 years 3,367 13,538 16,905

Within 11 - 15 years 3,367 13,414 16,781

Within 16 - 19 years 2,694 7,200 9,894

The Council is party to two Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes in respect of the design, construction, maintenance and servicing of 28 schools -

the Mulberry and Group Schools schemes - until the year 2029. Prior to 2009-10 the assets involved were treated as "off balance sheet" in accordance

with relevant accounting standards. SORP 2009 requires that the schemes are now accounted for under International Financial Reporting Standards and

that the position as at 31 March 2009 is restated. The assets are now included on the Council's Balance Sheet, matched by a finance lease liability. 

- 25 -Page 141



11 AGENCY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

12 OFFICERS' EMOLUMENTS

All Employees except Senior Employees

Remuneration Band Teaching Other Total Teaching Other Total

               £ Staff Staff Staff Staff Staff Staff

 50,000   -   54,999 213 68 281 187 80 267

 55,000   -   59,999 105 77 182 70 79 149

 60,000   -   64,999 40 41 81 45 31 76

 65,000   -   69,999 41 21 62 25 22 47

 70,000   -   74,999 20 19 39 16 28 44

 75,000   -   79,999 18 12 30 11 4 15

 80,000   -   84,999 9 11 20 2 8 10

 85,000   -   89,999 2 5 7 1 3 4

 90,000   -   94,999 0 11 11 2 2 4

 95,000   -   99,999 4 4 8 4 9 13

 100,000 - 104,999 2 6 8 1 8 9

 105,000 - 109,999 5 0 5 3 1 4

 110,000 - 114,999 1 1 2 1 0 1

 115,000 - 119,999 1 0 1 1 0 1

 120,000 - 124,999 2 0 2 0 1 1

 125,000 - 129,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 130,000 - 134,999 0 0 0 0 1 1

 135,000 - 139,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 140,000 - 144,999 0 0 0 1 0 1

 145,000 - 149,999 0 1 1 0 1 1

 150,000 - 154,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 155,000 - 159,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 160,000 - 164,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 165,000 - 169,999 0 1 1 0 1 1

 170,000 - 174,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 175,000 - 179,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 180,000 - 184,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 185,000 - 189,999 0 0 0 0 1 1

 190,000 - 194,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 195,000 - 199,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 200,000 - 204,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

 205,000 - 209,999 0 1 1 0 0 0

Total employees 463 279 742 370 280 650

Senior Employees 
1

Salary, fees & 

allowances

Taxable

expenses

allowances

Compensation

for loss of 

employment

Council's

contribution to 

Pension Fund

Other
Total

Remuneration

£ £ £ £ £ £

2008-2009

Mr M F Smith - Chief Executive 186,974 29,056 216,030

Corporate Directors

 Children, Schools and Families 147,003 22,740 147 169,890

 Communities, Localities and Culture 138,008 21,319 159,327

 Resources 133,225 20,569 20 153,814

 Adults Health and Wellbeing 130,967 20,207 346 151,520

 Development and Renewal 92,008 14,221 106,229

Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 120,862 18,661 139,523

Assistant Chief Executive 70,692 10,886 81,578

1,019,739 0 0 157,659 513 1,177,911

The numbers of employees whose remuneration was equal to or greater than £50,000 were as follows. Categorisation includes the effect of any redundancy or

severance payments. The first table excludes senior employees details of which are shown in the second table below.

The Council has an agency agreement with Thames Water Authority (TWA) whereby the Council is responsible for collecting unmetered water charges from

Council tenants. For this service the Council receives a commission based on the total TWA bill chargeable for the year. In 2009/2010 this commission amounted

to £ 774,552 (£798,738 in 2008/2009).

2008/2009

The remuneration of senior employees whose annual salary for the year was equal to or greater than £50,000 (pro rata for employment for fewer than the usual 

full time hours) was broken down as follows:

2009/2010

- 26 -Page 142



12 OFFICERS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salary, fees, 

allowances

Taxable,

expenses

allowances

Compensation

for loss of 

employment

Council's

contribution

to Pension 

Fund

Other
Total

Remuneration

2009-2010 £ £ £ £ £ £

Mr M F Smith - former Chief Executive 
2 73,966 10,107 84,073

Mr K A Collins - Chief Executive 177,413 26,848 204,261

Corporate Directors

 Children, Schools and Families 120,789 18,270 139,059

 Communities, Localities and Culture 140,980 21,788 162,768

 Resources 135,604 20,940 156,544

 Adults Health and Wellbeing 112,982 161 18,434 131,577

 Development and Renewal 136,306 21,050 157,356

Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 121,052 18,661 139,713

Former Assistant Chief Executive 
2 113,694 17,508 11,620 142,822

1,132,786 161 0 173,606 11,620 1,318,173

13 PUBLICITY

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

1,672 1,571

1,298 1,267

1 1

2,971 2,839

Media and public relations

Other

Total expenditure

1
The above posts have been designated as senior employees of the Council in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Amendment No. 2) (England) 

Regulations 2009.

2
The former Chief Executive and former Assistant Chief Executive received severance payments during 2009/10.  Details have not been published in 

this document due to confidentiality agreements in place.

Section 5(1) of the Local Government Act 1986 requires the Council to disclose separately its expenditure on publicity. 

Recruitment advertising

- 27 -Page 143



14 GOVERNMENT GRANTS (NOT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SPECIFIC SERVICES)

2009/10 2008/09

£'000 £'000

Revenue Support Grant (42,910) (27,494)

Local Authority Business Growth Incentives Scheme Grant (LABGI) (306) (215)

Area Based Grant (31,171) (27,675)

Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG)
1

(2,327) (3,416)

(76,714) (58,800)

15 AUDIT FEES

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

500 442

- 27

119 113

13 2

632 584

The fees for other services related to the National Fraud Initiative.

16 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1
HPDG was included in Net Cost of Services in the 2008-09 Income and Expenditure Account. The above note has been restated for 2008-

09 for comparative purposes.

Total

This includes Revenue Support Grant, Local Authority Business Growth Incentives Scheme Grant and, from 1st April 2008, Area Based

Grant (ABG). ABG is a non-ringfenced general grant, no conditions on use are imposed and, unlike LAAG, it is paid directly to the

authority that benefits from the grant, rather than being paid to the authority in the area with 'accountable body' status for onward

distribution to the other authorities.

The Local Government (Promotion of Economic Development) Regulations 1990 require authorities to disclose any financial assistance

given to relevant bodies in the form of a loan with a rate of interest at less than market rate. At 31st March 2010 the Council had no

outstanding loan agreements of this nature. 

Fees payable to the Audit Commission for external audit services were as follows:

External audit services carried out by the appointed auditor

Statutory inspection

Certification of grant claims and returns

Other services provided by the appointed auditor

Total

- 28 -Page 144



17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) Central Government

(ii) Partnerships

NDC (New Deal for the Community)

PCT (Primary Care Trust)

(iii) Pension Fund

(iv) Membership of and relationship with other organisations

Organisations Councillor
Payments by the 

Council

£'000

Alpha Grove Community Trust S A Houghton * 29

Bromley by Bow Centre A A Sardar * 1067

Chisenhale Gallery J J Peck 10

Collective of Bangladeshi School A A Sardar * 25

M. Uz-Zaman

Council of Mosques A A Sardar * 109

A Ullah

Cultural Industries Development Agency R U Ahmed 35

D Jones

Docklands Sailing & Watersports Centre M S Ali 42

East End Citizens Advice Bureau R U Ahmed 260

East End Homes M Uz-Zaman 1002

R M A Saunders

East London NHS Foundation Trust P J Briscoe * 1

S A Houghton *

Eastside Books D Jones

Ensign Youth Club A Asad 89

Gateway Housing Association J J Peck 671

Greater London Enterprise W Islam * 24

Greenwich & Docklands Festivals R U Ahmed 38

Invest in Thames Gateway London Ltd A M O Ahmed 15

Island / Health / Educational / Trust M S Ali 8

R H B Eckhardt *

P Golds

B Turner

Isle of Dogs Community Foundation T J Archer 863

M S Ali

Jewish East End Celebration Society R M A Saunders 5

John Scurr JM & I School S Islam 45

Keen Students School H U Abbas 19

Kingsley Hall Community Centre Rania Khan 19

Leaside Regeneration Ltd M Francis 655

C Harper-Penman

London Youth Games B Turner 7

W Islam *

Montefiore Centre M Rashid * 28

Mudchute Association R H B Eckhardt * 292

Poplar HARCA Rania Khan 2252

A A Sardar *

* indicates former Councillor

Council Members have made declarations of their interests in the following organisations to which the Council made payments in 2009-10:

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires disclosure of additional information regarding transactions between the Council and related parties in

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 8. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been

constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council - it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the

Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transaction that the Council has with other

parties. Details of transactions with Government departments are set out in a note to the Cash Flow Statement.

The Council has partnership arrangements with the following organisations:

The Council borrows from or lends to the Pension Fund. The year end balance is shown in note 31 to the Core Financial Statements. The Pension Fund

accounts are presented on pages 71 to 77 of this Statement.

- 29 -
Page 145



17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(iv) Membership of and relationship with other organisations (continued)

Organisations Councillor
Payments by the 

Council

£'000

Queen Mary University of London & Nursery A Ullah 36

Rich Mix / Al-Isharah / Cultural Enterprises / Cultural Foundation D Jones 60

R M A Saunders

Shelter / Shelter Legal / Shelter Training M Francis 10

Smith Street Primary School M. Uz-Zaman 4

Solander Gardens Community & Education H Miah 3

Spitalfields Housing Association Ltd H U Abbas 7

M Rashid *

SSBA-Montefiore Centre M Rashid * 30

St Katharine & Shadwell Trust E Jones 5

The Housing Forum Ltd A K Heslop * 1

The London Thames Gateway A M O Ahmed 20

Tower Hamlets Community Credit Union A K Heslop * 21

Tower Hamlets Community Housing Ltd H U Abbas 292

S Haque

S Islam

Tower Hamlets Law Centre M Rashid * 225

L Rahman

Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust D Jones 1862

Tower Hamlets Sports Council A M O Ahmed 13

R U Ahmed

C Harper-Penman

W Islam *

L Rahman

B Turner

Tower Project A T Jackson 2244

Visit London D Jones 27

* indicates former Councillor

- 30 -
Page 146



18 INTERESTS IN COMPANIES

19 POOLED BUDGETS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ceased at the end of 2008/09 when funding transferred from Health.

(e) Occupational Therapy Service (OTS)

ICES LDSA DCTP CLDSA OTS

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

1,102 1,299 6,521 0 1,803

565 1,704 1,538 0 1,591

0 0 0 0 -

1,667 3,003 8,058 0 3,394

1,667 3,003 8,058 0 3,394

0 0 0 0 0

ICES LDSA DCTP CLDSA OTS

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

924 1,278 6,301 17,885 1,805

610 1,661 1,538 3,142 1,385

0 0 0 245 0

1,534 2,939 7,839 21,272 3,190

1,534 2,939 7,839 21,272 3,190

0 0 0 0 0

2009-10

The purpose of these arrangements is to work collaboratively with health providers in the Borough, to deliver efficient, joined up health 

and social care services to residents.

Surplus/Deficit for the year

2008-09

   Learning Disabilities Development Fund

   The Council 

   Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust

   Learning Disabilities Development Fund

Surplus/Deficit for the year

Expenditure

   Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust

Expenditure

Tower Hamlets Homes Limited is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Council and is incorporated in the Council's Group Accounts at pages 65 to 70.

Under the terms of a Section 31 Agreement (Health Act 1999), the Council entered into five Pooled Budget and Lead Commissioning

agreements with the Primary Care Trust. The Council will manage and deliver statutory functions, alongside the Primary Care Trust, in

respect of the following:

Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES)

Services for Adults with Learning Difficulties (LDSA)

Integrated Services for Disabled Children in the Children's Trust Pathfinder (DCTP)

Commissioning Health and Social Care Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities (CLDSA) pooling arrangements

A summary memorandum Income and Expenditure Account for each pooled budget is shown below. The Council's contribution to each

pool is included in the Adult Social Care gross expenditure figure disclosed in the Income and Expenditure Account.

   The Council 

- 31 -Page 147



2
0

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 O
N

 F
IX

E
D

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
O

th
er

 L
a

n
d

T
o
ta

l
In

v
es

tm
en

t
S

u
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

et
s

T
o
ta

l 
N

o
n

-

D
w

el
li

n
g

s
a

n
d

 B
u

il
d

in
g

s
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
p

er
a
ti

o
n

a
l

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

H
el

d
 f

o
r 

D
is

p
o
sa

l
O

p
er

a
ti

o
n

a
l

T
o
ta

l

o
r 

R
ed

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
o
st

 o
r 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

A
t 

1
st

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
9

1
1

,0
5

1
,6

1
5

1
,0

3
7

,7
4

5
1

0
9

,6
9

0
1

2
,2

8
1

4
5

,2
2
0

2
,2

5
6

,5
5
1

5
4
,4

4
9

8
0
2

5
5
,2

5
1

2
,3

1
1
,8

0
2

A
d
d

it
io

n
s

5
4

,9
7

3
5

4
,1

2
1

7
,6

8
8

1
,8

6
6

3
,5

0
3

1
2
2

,1
5
1

8
0
6

0
8
0

6
1
2
2
,9

5
7

D
is

p
o
sa

ls
(1

7
,6

8
5

)
(2

4
,5

1
2

)
(1

9
0

)
0

(3
1
3
)

(4
2

,7
0
0
)

(4
,5

4
3
)

0
(4

,5
4

3
)

(4
7
,2

4
3
)

R
ec

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
s

0
(3

,3
0

7
)

0
0

0
(3

,3
0
7
)

(9
6
3
)

4
,2

7
0

3
,3

0
7

0

R
ev

al
u
at

io
n

s
(1

2
,4

6
9

)
(1

3
,9

3
4

)
0

0
0

(2
6

,4
0
3
)

7
,2

8
3

0
7
,2

8
3

(1
9
,1

2
0
)

A
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
1

,0
7

6
,4

3
4

1
,0

5
0

,1
1

3
1

1
7

,1
8

8
1

4
,1

4
7

4
8

,4
1
0

2
,3

0
6

,2
9
2

5
7
,0

3
2

5
,0

7
2

6
2
,1

0
4

2
,3

6
8
,3

9
6

D
ep

re
ci

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

a
ir

m
en

ts

A
t 

1
st

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
9

1
1

5
0

,3
2

4
6

9
,5

8
8

2
3

,2
9

3
8

,6
3

8
0

2
5
1

,8
4
3

4
,4

0
7

0
4
,4

0
7

2
5
6
,2

5
0

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
 c

h
ar

g
e 

fo
r 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

1
2

,5
5

6
1

3
,7

1
7

2
,7

6
8

1
,0

5
3

0
3
0

,0
9
4

0
0

0
3
0
,0

9
4

D
is

p
o
sa

ls
0

(2
,0

2
8

)
(4

3
)

0
0

(2
,0

7
1
)

(7
2
)

0
(7

2
)

(2
,1

4
3
)

R
ev

al
u
at

io
n

s
(1

1
,8

2
4

)
(1

4
,4

8
8

)
0

0
0

(2
6

,3
1
2
)

(7
2
)

0
(7

2
)

(2
6
,3

8
4
)

D
ep

re
ci

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
1

5
1

,0
5

6
6

6
,7

8
9

2
6

,0
1

8
9

,6
9

1
0

2
5
3

,5
5
4

4
,2

6
3

0
4
,2

6
3

2
5
7
,8

1
7

B
a

la
n

ce
 s

h
ee

t 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
a

t 
3

1
st

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

9
2

5
,3

7
8

9
8

3
,3

2
4

9
1

,1
7

0
4

,4
5

6
4

8
,4

1
0

2
,0

5
2

,7
3
8

5
2
,7

6
9

5
,0

7
2

5
7
,8

4
1

2
,1

1
0
,5

7
9

B
a

la
n

ce
 s

h
ee

t 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
a

t 
3

1
st

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

 1
9

0
1

,2
9

1
9

6
8

,1
5

7
8

6
,3

9
7

3
,6

4
3

4
5

,2
2
0

2
,0

0
4

,7
0
8

5
0
,0

4
2

8
0
2

5
0
,8

4
4

2
,0

5
5
,5

5
2

1
 S

ee
 n

o
te

 5
7

N
a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

ss
et

 h
o

ld
in

g

O
w

n
ed

9
2

5
,3

7
8

7
1

2
,4

0
3

9
1

,1
7

0
4

,4
5

6
4

8
,4

1
0

1
,7

8
1

,8
1
7

5
2
,7

6
9

5
,0

7
2

5
7
,8

4
1

1
,8

3
9
,6

5
8

P
ri

v
at

e 
F

in
an

ce
 I

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

0
2

7
0

,9
2

1
0

0
0

2
7
0

,9
2
1

0
0

0
2
7
0
,9

2
1

9
2

5
,3

7
8

9
8

3
,3

2
4

9
1

,1
7

0
4

,4
5

6
4

8
,4

1
0

2
,0

5
2

,7
3
8

5
2
,7

6
9

5
,0

7
2

5
7
,8

4
1

2
,1

1
0
,5

7
9

2
1

F
IX

E
D

 A
S

S
E

T
 V

A
L

U
A

T
IO

N
S

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

O
th

er
 L

a
n

d
T

o
ta

l
In

v
es

tm
en

t
S

u
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

et
s

T
o
ta

l 
N

o
n

-

D
w

el
li

n
g

s
a

n
d

 B
u

il
d

in
g

s
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
p

er
a
ti

o
n

a
l

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

H
el

d
 f

o
r 

D
is

p
o
sa

l
O

p
er

a
ti

o
n

a
l

T
o
ta

l

o
r 

R
ed

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

0
0

9
1

,1
7

0
4

,4
5

6
4

8
,4

1
0

1
4
4

,0
3
6

0
0

0
1
4
4
,0

3
6

9
2

5
,3

7
8

1
0

0
,6

4
1

0
0

0
1
,0

2
6

,0
1
9

0
0

0
1
,0

2
6
,0

1
9

0
8

5
7

,9
4

3
0

0
0

8
5
7

,9
4
3

0
5
,0

7
2

5
,0

7
2

8
6
3
,0

1
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

4
,7

4
0

0
0

0
2
4

,7
4
0

0
0

0
2
4
,7

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
2
,7

6
9

0
5
2
,7

6
9

5
2
,7

6
9

9
2

5
,3

7
8

9
8

3
,3

2
4

9
1

,1
7

0
4

,4
5

6
4

8
,4

1
0

2
,0

5
2

,7
3
8

5
2
,7

6
9

5
,0

7
2

5
7
,8

4
1

2
,1

1
0
,5

7
9

2
0

0
9
/1

0

V
al

u
ed

 a
t 

h
is

to
ri

c 
co

st

T
h
e

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

sh
o

w
s

th
e

p
ro

g
re

ss
o

f
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l'
s

ro
ll

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

v
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

 f
ix

ed
 a

ss
et

s.

V
al

u
ed

 a
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

v
al

u
e 

in
:

T
o
ta

l

2
0

0
8
/0

9

2
0

0
7
/0

8

2
0

0
6
/0

7

2
0

0
5
/0

6

- 
3
2
 -

Page 148



21 FIXED ASSET VALUATION (contd)

   Dwellings - M.Checksfield, MRICS

   Other assets - O.Saunders, MRICS and A.Osibogun, MRICS

The freehold properties which comprise the Council's property portfolio have been valued by Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) qualified 

valuers as follows:

The Council operates a five-year rolling programme of revaluation. The valuations carried out complied with the requirements of Financial Reporting

Standard (FRS) 15, "Tangible Fixed Assets", issued by the Accounting Standards Board. A table showing the analysis of revaluations of fixed assets is

shown above.

Properties considered by the valuer to be specialised within the definition provided by FRS 15 were valued on the basis of Depreciated Replacement

Cost where there is no active market for the asset being valued. Properties considered by the valuer to be non-specific were valued on an Existing Use

Value basis. Community assets and infrastructure assets have been included at historic cost.

Independent RICS qualified valuers have undertaken a review of the value of assets as required under FRS 11, "Impairment of Fixed Assets", and

consider that the value of the assets has not been impaired in 2009/10.

Depreciation

Housing Revenue Account Property Valuation

General Fund Property Valuation

The valuation of Housing Revenue Account assets has been carried out by the District Valuer London (DVS) in accordance with guidelines produced

by central government in the "Guidance on Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting".

Depreciation on a straight line basis is provided for on all fixed assets with a finite useful life, except non-operational investment properties and land.

Community assets are not depreciated as they have no determinable useful life. The depreciation bases adopted for each type of asset are disclosed in

the Statement of Accounting Policies on page 12. The projected asset lives, which form the basis of the depreciation charges, are reviewed as part of

the revaluation exercise.

For council dwellings the Major Repairs Allowance has been used as a reasonable estimate of depreciation, as it represents the estimated average annual 

cost of maintaining the condition of the housing stock over a 40 year period.

- 33 -Page 149



22 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

(i)

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

Expenditure

122,151 50,519

806 209

1,374 969

0 1,002

15,045 16,281

TOTAL 139,376 68,980

Source of Finance

22,934 23,846

88,169 29,508

13,836 12,311

14,437 3,315

TOTAL 139,376 68,980

(ii)

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 421,698 404,835

Capital Investment

Tangible Fixed Assets 122,957 51,730

Intangible Assets 1,374 969

15,045 16,281

Deferred Consideration 0 0

Sources of Finance

Capital Receipts and Contributions (88,169) (29,508)

Major Repairs Reserve (13,836) (12,311)

Direct Revenue Funding (14,437) (3,315)

Minimum Revenue Provision
1

(6,902) (6,983)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 437,730 421,698

Explanation of movements in the year

Increase (decrease) in underlying need to borrow

(supported by Government financial assistance) 11,003 16,309

Increase in underlying need to borrow

(unsupported by Government financial assistance) 5,029 554

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 16,032 16,863

1
CFR excludes Private Finance Initiative schemes.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Borrowing

Capital Receipts and Contributions

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Major Repairs Reserve

The following table shows how capital expenditure was financed in the year:

Direct Revenue Funding

The following table shows the relationship to the Council's Capital Financing indicator under the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local

Authorities:

Tangible Fixed Assets

      Operational

      Non Operational

Intangible Fixed Assets

Deferred Consideration

- 34 -Page 150



23 ANALYSIS OF TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

2009/2010 2008/2009

Land and buildings Number Number

Dwellings 12,827 13,058

Administrative buildings 22 34

Commercial properties 399 492

Depots 8 6

Cemeteries 2 2

Public mortuary 1 1

Recreation and leisure facilities 34 25

Schools 81 48

Social services establishments -

    Residential Homes, Day Centres etc. 24 16

Other 121 74

Hectares Hectares

Parks and open spaces 242 238

Infrastructure Kilometres Kilometres

Principal built up roads 14.7 14.7

Other built up roads 248.2 248.2

24 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Committed Costs to 2010/2011

sum 31/3/2010 onwards

£m £m £m

Building Schools for the Future:

Bethnal Green Technology College 17.046 12.313 4.733

St Pauls Way Secondary School 36.055 20.276 15.779

Morpeth School 20.483 2.296 18.187

Sir John Cass school 17.100 2.072 15.028

Manorfield School extension 3.617 2.805 0.812

Marner Primary School Phase 4 3.429 0.292 3.137

Smithy St Primary School 2.256 0.000 2.256

TOTAL 99.986 40.054 59.932

The tangible fixed assets of the Council can be analysed as follows.

The Council had contractually binding capital commitments, in respect of schemes costing in excess of £1 million,

totalling £59.9 million at 31st March 2010 (£52.7 million at 31st March 2009). 

- 35 -Page 151



25 LEASES

Operating Leases

Other Land and

Buildings

£'000 £'000

Leases expiring in 2010/11 0 639

Leases expiring between 2011/12 and 2015/16 71 669

Leases expiring after 2015/16 6,443 305

26 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Balance at Expenditure Revenue Balance at

1/4/2009 2009-10 Charge 31/3/2010

2009-10

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Software licences 0 1,374                    (1,374) 0

27 LONG TERM DEBTORS

Balance at Income and Balance at

1/4/2009 Advances adjustments 31/3/2010

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Mortgages on Right to Buy properties 431 0 (99) 332

Sundry loans 424 554 (243) 735

TOTAL LONG TERM DEBTORS 855 554 (342) 1,067

28 STOCK AND WORK IN PROGRESS

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Work in progress 518 289

Stocks 13 14

TOTAL STOCKS AND WORKS IN PROGRESS 531 303

The Council has identified a small number of finance leases. The amounts involved are not material to the Council's accounts and for accounting

purposes the leases are treated as operational.

Vehicles, Plant 

and Equipment

These are computer software licences which are treated as non-financial fixed assets which do not have a substance but are controlled by and

provide a future economic benefit to the Council. The cost of the licences is charged to revenue over the economic life of the licences, which is

currently one year. 

Work in progress consists of rechargeable works which are shown net of deposits. 

1
SORP 2009 requires amended accounting treatment for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes. See Note 57 for more details. PFI

schemes are no longer included as Long-Term debtors and 2008-09 figures have been restated accordingly.

The Council was committed at 31 March 2010 to making payments of £8.127 million under operating leases as follows:

- 36 -Page 152



29 DEBTORS AND PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

8,725 11,256

14,782 8,002

14,496 10,566

Other local authorities 307 243

4,421 4,792

13,049 13,368

352 306

4,695 3,563

- -

Housing benefits overpayments 13,731 11,317

Controlled parking fees 7,534 5,749

58,474 63,195

140,566 132,357

Provisions for bad debts

(2,631) (3,207)

(11,080) (10,277)

(13,192) (13,154)

(6,865) (5,437)

(5,135) (4,979)

(13,043) (14,685)

(51,946) (51,739)

88,620 80,618

2
See Note 30

30 DEFERRED CONSIDERATIONS

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated 

£'000 £'000

0 26,241

0 (26,241)

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 0 0

31 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In these disclosure notes, financial instruments are also required to be shown at fair value. Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability

settled, assuming that the transaction was negotiated between parties knowledgeable about the market in which they are dealing and willing to buy/sell at an appropriate price, with

no other motive in their negotiations other than to secure a fair price.

This change in accounting standards has meant that most financial instruments (whether borrowing or investment) in 2007/08 and subsequent years, have to be valued on an

amortised costs basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Fair Value

With effect from 1 April 2007, local authorities have had to adopt a major change of accounting policy in order to comply with the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom – the Statement of Recommended Practice 2007, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy / LASAAC

Joint Committee. 

Amortised Cost

TOTAL NET DEBTORS

Balance at beginning of year

SORP 2009 restatement

1
SORP 2009 requires revised accounting treatment of the debtor / creditor relationship between the Council and the Government (in respect of National Non-Domestic

Rates) and the Greater London Authority (in respect of Council Tax). 2008-09 figures have been restated accordingly. See Note 57 for more details.

Deferred considerations were in respect of initial capital contributions by the Council under Private Finance Initiative schemes, which were written off to the appropriate

service revenue accounts over the lifetime of the contracts. SORP 2009 requires amended accounting treatment for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes. See Note 57

for more details. PFI schemes are no longer included as Deferred Considerations and 2008-09 figures have been restated accordingly.

Rents: homeless families

Employees

Payments in advance

Deferred considerations
2

Government

Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs

Council Taxpayers 

Rents: sundry tenants

Sundry

Council Taxpayers 

Sundry

TOTAL DEBTORS

TOTAL PROVISIONS FOR BAD DEBTS

Rents: sundry tenants

Housing benefits overpayments

Rents: homeless families

Controlled parking fees

- 37 -Page 153



31 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (contd)

1

2

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings at amortised cost 302,475 249,075 14,633 15,611 317,108 264,686

Deferred Liabilities (PFI) 38,287 38,637 691 699 38,978 39,336

Investments

Loans and receivables 0 0 85,508 78,427 85,508 78,427

The adjustments are as set out below: 2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£000s £000s

Balance Sheet: long term loans 302,475 249,075

Balance Sheet: deferred liability 38,287 38,637

Balance Sheet: short term loans 15,324 16,310

Total Borrowing 356,086 304,022

Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

Financial

Liabilities

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial

Assets Loans 

and receivables

Financial

Liabilities

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial

Assets Loans 

and receivables

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Interest expense 27,379 29,361

Interest income 1,313 6,059

TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME 27,379 1,313 29,361 6,059

The fair value of an instrument is determined by calculating the Net Present Value (NPV) of future cash flows, which provides an estimate of the value of payments in the future in 

today's terms.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

TotalLong-Term Current

For comparison purposes 2008/09 figures have been restated to reflect the reclassification of accrued interest from  long-term to short-term borrowing.

2008/2009

As Restated
1

Compliance

The Council has:

The rates quoted in this valuation were obtained by the Council's treasury management consultants from the market on 31st March, using bid prices where applicable.

The interest payable relates to third party debt and excludes interfund interest payments amounting to £0.296 million. These payments to the HRA and Pension Fund have been 

included in the balance sheet.

The discount rate used in the NPV calculation is the rate applicable in the market on the date of valuation for an instrument with the same structure, terms and remaining duration. 

For debt, this will be the new borrowing rate since premature repayment rates include a margin which represents the lender's profit as a result of rescheduling.

The fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities which are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost is disclosed below. 

Methods and Assumptions in valuation technique

Adopted the CIPFA‘s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice.

Set treasury management indicators to control key financial instrument risks in accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code .

2009/2010

Types of Financial Instruments

Accounting regulations require the financial instruments (investment, lending and borrowing of the Council) shown on the balance sheet to be further analysed into various defined 

categories. The investments, lending and borrowing disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following categories of "financial instruments".

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

Financial Instrument Balances

- 38 -Page 154



31 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (contd)

2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Carrying

amount Fair value

Carrying

amount Fair value

Public Works Loans Board 233,723 298,874 247,113 330,715

Lender's option, borrower's option loans 77,608 85,606 17,573 18,337

Short term 5,777 5,777 0 0

PFI 38,978 38,978 39,336 39,336

Financial liabilities 356,086 429,235 304,022 388,388

2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

Carrying

amount Fair value

Carrying

amount Fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

44,690 44,690 49,170 49,170

40,466 40,484 25,541 25,626

Advance to Pension Fund - - 3,364 3,364

Equity Shares (not quoted in an active market) 352 352 352 352

TOTAL 85,508 85,526 78,427 78,512

1. Credit Risk 

Amounts at 31 

March 2010

Historical

experience of 

default

Historical

experience

adjusted for 

market

conditions as at 

31 March 2010

Estimated

maximum

exposure to 

default and 

uncollectability

£'000 % % £'000

Cash deposits with banks 44,690 -                   -                      -

Fixed term deposits with banks and other financial instututions:

1 - 3 months 20,466 -                   -                      -

3 - 6 months 15,000 -                   -                      -

6 - 12 months 5,000 -                   -                      -

> 12 months 352

TOTAL 85,508 0 0 0

Fair Value of Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

Fixed term deposits with banks and building societies

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.

Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments

Credit risk arises from the short-term lending of surplus funds to banks, building societies and other local authorities as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. It is the policy of the Council to

place deposits only with a limited number of high quality banks and building societies whose credit rating is independently assessed as sufficiently secure by the Council’s treasury advisers and to restrict

lending to a prudent maximum amount for each institution.  The Council also has a policy of limiting deposits with institutions to a maximum of £10 million - £25 million. 

The Council’s management of treasury risks actively works to minimise the Council’s exposure to the unpredictabilityof financial markets and to protect the financial resources available to fund services. The

Council has fully adopted CIPFA’s Code of Treasury Managment Practices and has written principles for overall risk management as well as written policies and procedures covering specific areas such as

credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Fair value is more than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolioof loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is lower/higher than the rates available for similar loans

at the Balance Sheet date. The commitment to pay interest below current market rates reduces the amount that the Council would have to pay if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

The following maturity profile summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on past experience and current market conditions. No credit limits were exceeded during the finan

year and the Council expects full repayment on the due date of deposits placed with its counterparties.

Fair Value of Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

Cash deposits with banks and other financial institutions

The fair value is higher than the carrying amount because the Council's portfolioof investments includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate is receivable is lower/higher than the rates available

for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. This guarantee to receive interest above/below current market rates increases the amount that the authority would receive if it agreed to early repayment of loans. 

As Restated
1

The calculations are made with the following assumptions:

  • The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

  • No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

  • Fair values for all instruments in the portfolio have been calculated, but only those which are materially different from the carrying value are disclosed.

  • The PWLB can been calculated by reference to the "Premature Redemption" set of rates in force on the 31st March 2010.

  • For other market debt and investments the discount rate used is the rates available for an instrument with the same terms from a comparable lender.

  • Interpolation techniques have been used between available rates where the exact maturity period was not available.

The fair values are as follows

- 39 -Page 155



31 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (contd)

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Credit Risk £'000 £'000

Three to six months 474                     598

Six months to one year 1,061                  1,336

More than one year 1,053                  1,327

TOTAL 2,588 3,261

2. Liquidity Risk

The maturity structure of financial liabilities is as follows (at nominal value):

Loans outstanding 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

233,723              247,113

77,608                17,573

Temporary Borrowing 5,777                  0

PFI 38,978                39,336

TOTAL 356,086 304,022

15,324                16,310

26,244                6,970

46,859                60,620

125,350              119,284

142,309              100,838

TOTAL 356,086 304,022

3. Market Risk

Interest rate risk

The current interest rate risk for the authority is summarised below:

2009/2010 2008/2009

Interest Rate Risk £'000 £'000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 57 0

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 748 (1,037)

Impact on Income and Expenditure Account 805 (1,037)

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.

Price risk

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

London Mutual Insurance Limited 346 346

The Tower Hamlets Local Education Partnership 7 7

Total 353 353

More than 10 years

• The fair value of fixed rate financialassets will fall if interest rates rise. This will not impact on the Balance Sheet for the majority of assets held at amortised cost, but will impact on the disclosure note for

fair value. It would have a negative effect on the Balance Sheet for those assets held at fair value in the Balance Sheet, which would also be reflected in the Statement of Recognised Gains & Losses.

The Council has access to a facility to borrow from the Public Works Loans Board. As a result there is no significant risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meets its commitments under

financial instruments. The Council has safeguards in place to ensure that a significant proportion of its borrowing does not mature for repayment at any one time in the future to reduce the financial impact of

re-borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Council’s policy is to ensure that not more than 20% of loans are due to mature within any financialyear through a combinationof prudent planning

of new loans taken out and, where it is economic to do so, making early repayments.

Market debt

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years

Between 2 and 5 years

Public Works Loans Board

The Council does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £2.587 millionof the £28.191 millionbalance is past its due date for payment, but not impaired. The past due amount can be analysed by

age as follows: 

The Council does not generally invest in equity shares but does have the following shareholdings acquired in association with its activit

The Council is exposed to interest rate risk in two different ways - the uncertainty of interest paid/received on variable rate instruments and the effect of fluctuations in interest rates on the fair value of an

instrument.

  • Decreases in interest rates will affect interest earned on variable rate investments, potentially reducing income credited to the Income and Expenditure Account.

  • Increases in interest rates will affect interest paid on variable rate borrowings, potentially increasing interest expense charged to the Income and Expenditure Account.

• The fair value of fixed rate financial liabilitieswill rise if interest rates fall. This will not impact on the Balance Sheet for the majority of liabilitiesheld at amortised cost, but will impact on the disclosure

note for fair value.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The policy is to aim to keep a maximum of 20% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of falling interest rates, and

where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a proportion of government grant payable on

financing costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates or the Council's cost of borrowing and provide compensation for a proportion of higher costs.

The treasury management team has a strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget.

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2010, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:

Between 5 and 10 years

- 40 -Page 156



32 CREDITORS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

20,245 36,905

8,649 8,297

8,867 5,503

1,180 1,109

307 240

38,151 40,600

52,303 39,512

129,702 132,166

33 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

34 CAPITAL GRANTS UNAPPLIED

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 37,363 21,234

Capital grants received 68,917 36,716

Total receipts for year 106,280 57,950

Receipts applied to finance capital expenditure (67,769) (20,587)

Balance as at 31st March 38,511 37,363

35 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Balance brought forward 96,139 99,788

Grants and contributions applied to capital investments 76,781 22,202

Amounts released in year (37,275) (25,851)

Amounts released relating to assets disposed of in 2009/10 (4,781) 0

Balance carried forward 130,864 96,139

Balance at Released in year Balance at 

31 March 2009 31 March 2010

£'000 £'000 £'000

Administrative buildings lease reverse premium 11,006 (1,189) 9,817

36  DEFERRED INCOME - RECEIPT IN ADVANCE 

The Council was paid an incentive (reverse premium) to enter into the lease of an administrative building. The premium is being released to 

revenue over the term of the lease and is classified as "deferred income - receipt in advance" in the Council's Balance Sheet.

Government

Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs

Council Taxpayers 

Receipts in advance

Sundry

These represent grants and contributions which have been applied to fund capital expenditure. They are released to revenue to match

depreciation on the assets they funded, or fully released to revenue if there is no depreciation.

Rents: sundry tenants

Rents: homeless families

TOTAL CREDITORS

No post balance sheet events have been identified that would materially affect the financial statements.

1
SORP 2009 requires revised accounting treatment of the debtor / creditor relationship between the Council and the Government (in respect

of National Non-Domestic Rates) and the Greater London Authority (in respect of Council Tax). 2008-09 figures have been restated

accordingly. See Note 57 for more details.

- 41 -
Page 157



37 PROVISIONS

The nature of provisions and movements during the year are set out below.

Balance at Used in Contribution in Balance at

1/4/2009 Year Year 31/3/2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a) Insurance Fund 4,876 1,622 6,498

(b) Single Status 426 (135) 291

(c) Liability to DEFRA for BMW landfill usage 6 645 651

(d) Repayment of deposits 391 127 518

(e) Education salaries liability 25 (25) 0

(f) Repayment of European funding 394 394

(g) Pension liability - part time staff 400 400

(h) Primary Care Trust nursing charges 0 88 88

(i) Barkantine PFI 1,596 393 1,989

(j) Dangerous structures 13 (13) 0

(k) Youth and community contracts 101 (101) 0

(l) Metropolitan Police 176 176

(m) Employment Tribunal 60 90 150

(n) Commissioning Responsibility 53 (53) 0

(o) Adoption Fees 43 18 61

TOTAL 8,560 (327) 2,983 11,216

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

(l)

(m)

(n)

(o)

There are a number of European funded schemes where there is a probability that grant will need to be repaid.

To reflect the potential liability for 40 ex-employees, based on the additional pension contribution costs that the Council would have incurred if these

staff had been allowed to join the pension fund.

A provision for the likely, but currently disputed payment of bills received from THPCT in respect of nursing costs.

Originally a provision for the disputed payment for a former borough  resident's nursing care. It has been determined that the Council is not responsible 

for the assessed contribution and the provision is no longer required.

To provide for the potential liability of PFI credits not being issued by the DCLG for the Barkantine PFI Scheme.

Provision for the final payment to other authorities should particular children placed with potential adopters resident in other boroughs ultimately be 

legally adopted. The required provision has been reviewed and increased.

To cover a range of self-insured risks including personal accident cover for staff, motor car credit guarantee insurance and miscellaneous items of

property. Amounts are transferred to the provision from the insurance reserve on an annual basis if a reliable estimate can be made of the likely

settlement amount. 

For additional costs resulting from the single status agreement which changed employees' conditions of service. £135,000 of the provision was used

during the year.

The Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003 places a duty on waste disposal authorities (WDAs) to reduce the amount of Biodegradable Municipal

Waste (BMW). The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme allocates tradable landfill allowances to each WDA up to a defined upper limit. As landfill is

used, a liability is recognised for actual BMW landfill usage.

The youth work contracts provided for a 10% bonus to be paid at the end of each contract year. This provision was to meet this obligation. The amounts 

to be paid were calculated in 2009-10 and treated as creditors. The provision is therefore no longer required.

To provide for the repayment of grant either to the Metropolitan Police or the Home Office. There are current discussions with the Home Office on

repayment which is anticiptaed in 2010-11.

To provide for payment following an unfair dismissal by the Council. The provision required has been reviewed and increased.

The Council was in dispute over the cost of various works under its dangerous structure obligations. The provision was established to meet the cost of 

these works once the amount of the liability has been agreed. The dispute has been resolved, an amount agreed in settlement and the provision is no 

longer required.

The provision is used to hold deposits received from contractors with approval for erecting temporary structures. On completion of the work, the

deposits will be refunded to the contractors, less deductions for any liabilities incurred.

This provision was to accommodate the anticipated pay rise due to ex-employees following the cessation of the national pay body in 1994. Following

review, this provision is no longer required.

- 42 -Page 158



38 MOVEMENT ON RESERVES

Balance at 

1/4/2009

Movement in 

year

Balance at 

31/03/2010 Purpose of Reserve

Further Detail of 

Movements

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000

Revaluation Reserve
1 486,712 23,426 510,138 To record unrealised revaluation gains (since 1 April 2007) from

holding fixed assets. The balance does not represent cash resources

available to the Council.

See note 39

Capital Adjustment Account
1 994,431 (18,797) 975,634 A balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets

are depreciated under the SORP and financed through the capital

controls system. The balance does not represent cash resources

available to the Council. 

See note 41

Capital Receipts Reserve 18,091 (1,782) 16,309 Proceeds of fixed asset sales available to meet future capital

investment

See note 42

280 484 764 Premia and discounts on the premature redemption of debt to be

transferred to revenue over the residual term of the loan

See note 40

Pensions Reserve (270,565) (400,128) (670,693) Balancing account to allow inclusion of Pensions Liability in the

Balance Sheet

See note 47

Housing Revenue Account 23,301 (10,323) 12,978 Resources available to meet future costs for council houses See pages 56-61

Major Repairs Reserve 2,354 (1,280) 1,074 Resources available to meet capital investment in council housing See page 59

General Fund 27,102 31 27,133 Resources available to meet future costs for non-housing services.

Schools' Balances are included in Earmarked Reserves.

See page 18

101,865 (2,976) 98,889 Amounts carried forward to meet known liabilities in the future. See note 46

TOTAL 1,383,571 (411,345) 972,226

1
As adjusted. See note 57

39 REVALUATION RESERVE

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1st April 486,712 335,449

Revaluation gains on assets revalued in year 37,338 301,288

Balances written off on assets disposed of in year (8,759) (587)

Balances written off on impairment losses in year 0 (141,342)

Difference between depreciation on current value and depreciation on historic cost (5,153) (8,096)

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 510,138 486,712

1
See note 57

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1st April 280 2,555

0 (2,839)

484 564

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 764 280

The Council keeps a number of reserves in the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be held for statutory reasons, some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice, and others have been set up voluntarily to 

earmark resources for future spending plans.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

This account represents the balance of deferred premia and discounts relating to the premature redemption of Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) debt prior to 2009-1

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment)Regulations 2007 permit councils to hold the total amount in this account and debit or credit the amounts to revenue over the residual

term of the redeemed loan. 

Earmarked Reserves (including schools'

balances)

The Revaluation Reserve records unrealised revaluation gains (since 1 April 2007) from holding fixed assets. The balance on the account is matched by fixed assets within the Balance Sheet and does not represent cash

resources available to the Council.

Annual transfer to revenue

Premia - prior year adjustment 
1

1
The accounting treatment of premia in 2007-08 was reviewed. The balance outstanding previously served to reduce Long Term Liabilities - Long term borrowing, on the Council's Balance Sheet. It was transferred to

this account in 2008-09 to reflect best practice. 

- 43 -Page 159



41 CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT 

2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

BALANCE AT 1st APRIL 994,431 1,019,095

Fixed Asset Adjustments

Depreciation (General Fund) (17,202) (20,528)

Depreciation (HRA) (12,892) (12,558)

Impairment (GF) (30,073) (31,750)

Difference between depreciation on current value and depreciation on historic cost 5,152 8,096

Sales of Fixed Assets (483) (5,911)

Write-off of Fixed Assets (27,038) 0

Impairment relating to Housing Stock Transfer (6,842) 0

Impairment relating to Demolitions of Fixed Assets (10,718) 0

Write out Revaluation Reserve Balance on Assets Disposed of in Year 8,741 587

Write out Deferred Capital Contributions Balance on Assets Disposed of in Year 4,782 0

Amortisation  of Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (16,419) (18,684)

Resources set aside to finance Capital Expenditure

Capital Receipts 11,387 7,306

Capital Grants and Contributions 37,275 25,851

Direct Revenue Financing (General Fund) 8,437 3,315

Direct Revenue Financing (HRA) 6,000 0

Major Repairs Allowance 13,836 12,311

Minimum Revenue Provision 7,260 7,301

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 975,634 994,431

1
See note 57

42 CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE 

Housing Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1st April, 2009 0 18,091 18,091

Receipts from sales of assets 1,329 0 1,329

Unattached receipts 432 8,303 8,735

Deferred capital receipts 113 0 113

Receipts paid to central government (572) 0 (572)

Receipts applied to finance capital expenditure (1,302) (10,085) (11,387)

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 2010 0 16,309 16,309

43 DEFERRED CAPITAL RECEIPTS

Deferred capital receipts relate to principal repayments due from mortgages granted for the purchase by individuals of council houses.

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Mortgages 298 412

298 412

The Capital Adjustment Account provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets are depreciated under the SORP and

financed through the capital controls system. The balance is matched by fixed assets within the Balance Sheet and does not represent cash resources

available to the Council. 

- 44 -
Page 160



44 STREET TRADING ACCOUNT

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Expenditure

Employee costs 893 985

Refuse collection and disposal 659 682

Support services 317 311

Other expenditure 133 110

Increase in provision for bad debts - 30

Total Expenditure 2,002 2,118

Income

 Street trading charges 2,066 2,107

 Other income - 115

 Decrease in provision for bad debts 24 -

Total Income 2,090 2,222

Deficit/(surplus) for the year (88) (104)

Balance at 1st April 298 402

Deficit/(surplus) for the year (88) (104)

BALANCE at 31st MARCH 210 298

45 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Housing Transfers to Registered Social Landlords

Further Stock Transfers

The Council operates a separate Street Trading Account under the London Local Authorities Act 1990. S.32 of the Act enables the Council to

recover from the traders the reasonable costs in connection with their functions under the Act - notably, refuse collection/disposal and

administrative/technical support. The overall deficit on the account serves to reduce the Council's General Fund balance.

Between March 1998 and March 2009 the Council transferred tenanted and leasehold properties to other landlords - 7,363 to Poplar Housing and

Regeneration Community Association; 2,392 to Tower Hamlets Community Housing; 970 to Swan Housing Association; 3,537 to Eastend

Homes; 1,985 to Toynbee Island Homes; 238 to Bethnal Green and Victoria Park Housing Association and 106 to Spitalfields HA. The Council

has given warranties to provide the funders of those landlords with a level of comfort in relation to their loans, which represents a potential

liability to the Council. The amount of the potential liability cannot be determined with any certainty at present.

A small number of further transfers of Council Housing Estates involving up to 174 homes may take place over the next year which require

environmental warranties to be given for land on the estates. These potential liabilities are being covered by taking out insurance as cover for the

first 10 years. Although some liability may occur to the Council after 10 years, most if not all of the potential for claims will occur in the first 5

years following each transfer when the major works will be carried out. The amount of the potential obligation cannot be measured with sufficient

reliability at this time.

- 45 -Page 161



46 EARMARKED RESERVES

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Corporate

(a) Insurance Reserve 24,734 26,096

(b) Area Based Grant Reserve 3,724 5,744

(c) Decent Homes 19,659 23,662

(d) Final accounts review 2,724 2,724

(e) Performance related grant 1,452 2,348

(f) Olympic legacy 1,500 2,110

(g) Personal computers refresh 1,417 1,355

(h) Single status 1,205 1,205

(i) Town centres improvements 725 725

(j) Efficiency reserve 1,885 689

Chief Executive's 

(k) Corporate initiatives 1,441 1,791

(l) Partnerships 446 -

(m) Miscellaneous Information Technology (IT) projects - 213

(n) Elections 280 150

(n2) Beacon Council Scheme 231 -

(o) Underspends carried forward 953 100

Resources

(p) Underspends carried forward 193 -

Development and Renewal

(q) Regeneration 1,738 1,738

(r) Homelessness 2,451 1,851

(s) Planning development 3,142 1,236

(t) Access to employment 1,363 -

(u) Third party loans 350 -

(v) Land charges 71 -

(w) Building Control - 247

(x) Community use of buildings 200 200

(y) Neighbourhood Renewal - 2,468

(z) Crossrail 30 90

(aa) Ocean New Deal for Communities 459 359

Communities Localities and Culture

(bb) Parking Control Account 1,828 957

(cc) Tower Hamlets Mela 133 288

(dd) Food waste recycling programme - 220

(ee) Civil Contingencies 33 150

(ff) Blackwall depot 50 50

(gg) Underspends carried forward 309 -

Children Schools and Families

(hh) Schools delegated balances 19,111 20,536

(ii) Unapplied rate rebates 792 1,970

(jj) Special needs - 93

Adults Health and Wellbeing

(kk) Health, Mental Health and Stroke services 1,023 -

(ll) Underspends carried forward 301 -

(mm) Framework I 500 500

(nn) Transforming Social Care 1,477 -

(oo) Supporting People 959 -

98,889 101,865

The nature of the above reserves is described below and on the following pages.

(a) The Council is self insured for most liability and property risks. The level of the reserve is reviewed annually and where

appropriate an amount transferred to the Insurance Provision. During the year the reserve reduced by £1.4 million (£1.6 million

transferred into the insurance provision, offset by a budgetted contribution into the reserve).

- 46 -Page 162



46 EARMARKED RESERVES (contd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

(l)

(m)

(n)

(n2)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

A reserve created in 2008-09 to earmark and carry forward unused Area Based Grant into the following year. During the year

£2,321,000 of the reserve was used to finance expenditure. The reserve was increased by £301,000 to carry forward additional

grant into 2010-11.

£10.7 million of this reserve is to fund capital schemes. The balance of £9 million is earmarked for potential future costs

associated with the outsourcing of the Council's housing repairs and improvements service (£0.4 million used during the year). 

This reserve represents grant received which will be used to deliver improved outcomes in accordance with the Local Area

Agreement.

Held to meet any liabilities identified following a review of the Council's final accounts and balance sheet. 

A reserve established from grant monies and earmarked to progress future regeneration initiatives.

For the purpose of making a grant available, should it be necessary, to the developers of the Olympic Aquatics Centre.

A reserve established to meet the future cost of replacing personal computers. 

A reserve established to meet potential costs resulting from a reduction in the basic week for former manual employees, and

other potential claims. 

A reserve previously established from LAGBI resources, earmarked for the future improvement of town centres.

A reserve established to carry forward unspent Resources Directorate budget provision.

A reserve to meet the cost of technology driven efficiency initiatives. 

This reserve was established to provide time-limited resources to accelerate performance improvement. 

A reserve established from grant monies and earmarked to progress future Beacon Council initiatives.

A new reserve to which is transferred the surplus generated by land charges. The reserve will be taken into account when setting

future years' fee structures for the service.

Under Government regulations chargeable building control activities should break even over a 3 year period. The reserve

represents previous years' surpluses on such activities and was used to part finance a deficit in 2009-10.

A new reserve established to carry forward unspent budget provision on partnership workstreams.

This reserve was originally established to meet the cost of the May 2010 local borough elections. It was increased by carrying

forward a 2009-10 underspend and is to be used for all elections in 2010.

A reserve established to carry forward unspent Chief Executive's budget provision.

A reserve established from grant monies and earmarked to finance future planning function initiatives including the digitisation

of records; and Local Development Framework and Customer Contact Centre related expenditure.

A new reserve to meet the cost of any default in respect of third party loans.

This reserve was established to fund specific projects. The balance was brought forward as an underspend of budget in 2008-09

and was applied in 2009-10.

A new reserve which amalgamates existing Government Grants for use by the Access to Employment Service.

A reserve to meet the cost of future homelessness initiatives.

- 47 -Page 163



46 EARMARKED RESERVES (contd)

(x)

(y)

(z)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

(ff)

(gg)

(hh)

(ii)

(jj)

(kk)

(ll)

(mm)

(nn)

(oo)

This reserve, established to facilitate the continuing rollout of the Council's Food Waste Recycling Programme, was

fully used during the year..

A reserve established from grant monies and earmarked to progress future Transforming Social Care initiatives.

A reserve established from grant monies and earmarked to progress future Supporting People initiatives.

Resources generated by reviews of the rateable values of Children's Services properties, earmarked for future

improvements to Children's Services building stock. 

This reserve represents unapplied revenue balances held by the Council on behalf of schools with delegated spending

authority. The balance is committed to be spent on the education service.

A reserve to provide for necessary security works at Blackwall depot. Expenditure now anticipated in 2010-11.

A reserve established to carry forward unspent Communities Localities and Culture Directorate budget to the next

financial year. 

This reserve is to enable the implementation of a new client database using new software called "Framework I". 

A reserve to fund business continuity options. 

A new reserve which amalgamates existing Government Grants for use by the services specified.

A reserve for dealing with special educational needs cases. The reserve is no longer required.

A reserve established to carry forward unspent Adults Health and Wellbeing Directorate budget to the next financial

year.

A reserve to fund future strategies in respect of the community use of buildings.

A reserve to fund the Council's management and organisation of the Mela in 2010 and support the creation of a new

community trust to deliver the Mela in future years. 

During the year £2.0 million of this reserve was used on the Housing overcrowding strategy and £0.35 million for legacy

issues from the Davenant Centre. The balance was transferred to the Regeneration reserve.

This reserve has been created and increased using part of the Parking Control account surplus for the year. It will be

used for future operational activities.

This reserve combined existing New Deal for Communities (NDC) reserves and is earmarked towards the Ocean NDC

regeneration programme and support for the Ocean regeneration trust. £100,000 was added to the reserve during the year

in respect of the resident wardens project.

A reserve to fund future Council costs arising from this major construction project. 

- 48 -Page 164



47 PENSIONS SCHEMES

Participation in pensions schemes

Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

13,755 16,732 342 407 14,097 17,139

Past service costs 0 6,681 0 237 0 6,918

1,097 1,958 0 0 1,097 1,958

0

55,993 57,960 3,175 3,309 59,168 61,269

(34,741) (47,033) (1,540) (2,002) (36,281) (49,035)

36,104 36,298 1,977 1,951 38,081 38,249

(36,104) (36,298) (1,977) (1,951) (38,081) (38,249)

33,232 35,272 1,013 1,082 34,245 36,354

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Income and Expenditure Account, actuarial losses of £379.599 million (£83.135 million in 2008-09) were

included in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL). The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the STRGL is £435.431 million.

General Fund Balance for pensions in the year

In 2009-10 the Council paid £14.261 million into the Teachers Pension Scheme, representing 14.1% of pensionable pay. The figures for 2008-09 were £13.465 million and

14.1% respectively. In addition, the Council is responsible for all pension payments and annual increases in respect of added years it has awarded. In 2009-10 this amounted

to £0.43 million (£0.43 million in 2008-09).

Income and Expenditure Account

Impact of settlements and curtailments

Fund Balance

Net Operating Expenditure

Net Cost of Services

Current service costs

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not be payable until employees retire,

the Council has a commitment to make the payments which needs to be disclosed at the time the employees earn their future entitlement.

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS), administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF).

The LGP schemes are funded defined benefit final salary schemes, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to

balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

The TPS is an unfunded defined benefit final salary scheme meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated

to meet pensions payments as they eventually fall due. It does, however, use a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers' contribution rate paid by local

education authorities (LEAs) of which the Council is one. It is not possible for the Council to identify a share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its own

employees and it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme. This means that contributions are included on the basis of the actual amount

paid into the scheme. 

The Council participates in three pensions schemes:

The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the London Pensions Fund Authority 

The Local Government Pension (LGP) Scheme administered by the Council

Actual amount charged against the 

Interest cost

Expected return on assets in the scheme

Net Charge to the Income and

Expenditure Account

Statement of Movement in the General

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in 

accordance with FRS 17

The cost of LGPS retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when the benefits are earned by employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as

pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year. The real cost of retirement benefits is therefore reversed out

in the Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance (SMGFB). The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and SMGFB

during the year:

The Council LPFA Total

- 49 -Page 165



47 PENSION SCHEME  (continued)

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1st April (815,900) (837,851) (47,051) (48,839) (862,951) (886,690)

Current service cost (13,755) (16,732) (342) (407) (14,097) (17,139)

Interest cost (55,993) (57,960) (3,175) (3,309) (59,168) (61,269)

Contributions (8,478) (8,610) (142) (148) (8,620) (8,758)

Actuarial gains / (losses) (525,563) 84,292 (19,369) 3,309 (544,932) 87,601

Benefits paid 32,294 29,600 2,577 2,580 34,871 32,180

Past service costs 0 (6,681) 0 (237) 0 (6,918)

Losses on curtailments (1,097) (1,958) 0 (1,097) (1,958)

31st March (1,388,492) (815,900) (67,502) (47,051) (1,455,994) (862,951)

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets (LGPS):

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

As restated As restated As restated

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1st April 555,794 661,906 36,592 41,758 592,386 703,664

Expected rate of return 34,741 47,033 1,540 2,002 36,281 49,035

Actuarial (losses) / gains 145,965 (167,427) 2,676 (5,818) 148,641 (173,245)

Contributions

   Members 8,478 8,610 142 148 8,620 8,758

   Employer 33,232 35,272 1,013 1,082 34,245 36,354

Benefits paid (32,294) (29,600) (2,577) (2,580) (34,871) (32,180)

31st March 745,916 555,794 39,386 36,592 785,302 592,386

Scheme history

2009/2010 2008/2009 2007/2008 2006/2007 2005/2006*

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Present value of liabilities:

   The Council (1,388,492) (815,900) (837,851) (986,327) (989,200)

   LPFA (67,502) (47,051) (48,839) (54,198) (55,110)

Fair value of assets

   The Council 745,916 555,794 661,906 692,748 639,300

   LPFA 39,386 36,592 41,758 39,087 39,031

Deficit in the scheme

   The Council (642,576) (260,106) (175,945) (293,579) (349,900)

   LPFA (28,116) (10,459) (7,081) (15,111) (16,079)

(670,692) (270,565) (183,026) (308,690) (365,979)

LPFA Total

LPFA Total

The contributions expected to be made by the Council in the year to 31st March 2011 are £33.72 million to the Council's scheme and £0.50 million to the LPFA scheme.

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits

The liabilitiesshow the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. Whilst the total deficit in the schemes of £670.7 million has a significant impact on the

net worth of the Council as recorded in the balance sheet, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financialposition of the Council remains healthy - the deficit will be made good by

increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the schemes' actuary.

              Total deficit in the schemes

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities (LGPS):

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments

are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

The Council

The Council

* The Council has elected not to restate fair value of assets for 2005/06 as permitted by FRS 17 (as revised

- 50 -
Page 166



47 PENSION SCHEME (contd)

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:

Equity investments 7.8% 7.0% 7.3% 7.0%

Target return portfolio 5.0%

Property 5.8% 4.9%

Bonds 5.0% 5.4%

Cashflow matching 4.5% 4.2%

Cash 4.8% 4.0% 3.0% 4.0%

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

   Men 20.8 years 19.6 years 21.0 years 21.0 years

   Women 24.1 years 22.5 years 23.4 years 23.4 years

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

   Men 22.8 years 20.7 years 22.0 years 23.0 years

   Women 26.2 years 23.6 years 24.2 years 24.2 years

Rate of inflation 3.8% 3.1% 3.9% 3.1%

Rate of increase in salaries 5.3% 4.6% 5.4% 4.6%

Rate of increase in pensions 3.8% 3.1% 3.9% 3.1%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.5% 6.9% 5.5% 6.9%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 50%
*

50%

*
Pre-April 2008 service - 75% for post-April 2008 service

Major categories of assets as a proportion of total assets

The major categories of assets are as follows.

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

Equities 66% 58% 11% 8%

Bonds 22% 27%

Property 9% 10%

Cash 3% 5% -3% 1%

Cashflow matching 38% 91%

Target return portfolio 54%

History of experience gains and losses

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

The Council % % % % %

19.57 -30.12 -14.34 0.07 13.08

0.00 0.00 -4.38 0.00 -0.02

London Pensions Fund Authority

6.79 -15.90 6.17 0.00 3.72

-0.78 0.27 -4.24 0.29 0.19Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities

Experience gains and (losses) on assets

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities

Experience gains and (losses) on assets

The Council LPFA

The actuarial gains and losses identified as movements on the Pension Reserve in 2009-10 can be analysed into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or 

liabilities at 31st March 2010:

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions

about mortality rates, salary levels etc. Both schemes have been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, based on the following main assumptions.

The Council LPFA

- 51 -Page 167



48 TRUST FUNDS

Balance at 1/4/2009 Expenditure Income Balance at 31/3/2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a) 560 231 419 748

(b) 14 0 0 14

(c) 3 6 6 3

(d) 129 154 184 159

(e) 872 3,093 2,918 697

(f) 160 0 0 160

(g) 57 177 132 12

1,795 3,661 3,659 1,793

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

49 STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS EMPLOYED

Balance at Balance at

31/03/10 31/03/09

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

165,218 489,213

811,208 894,173

TOTAL 976,426 1,383,386

50 RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) TO NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (49,834) (31,108)

Non Cash Transactions

Depreciation and impairment 79,101 64,628

Deferred grants amortised in year (37,275) (25,851)

PFI debtor adjustments 1,434

Pension fund adjustments 2,873 1,896

Other non cash financial instrument adjustments (484) (372)

Contribution to provisions 2,656 46,871 (3,091) 38,644

Adjustments for items reported separately in 

cashflow statement

Interest and investment income (1,313) (6,144)

Interest payable 21,551 22,656

Interest element of finance lease rental payments 5,846 5,348

16,419 16,281

Gains/losses on disposal of fixed assets 21,428 (13,394)

Items on an accruals basis

(Increase)/decrease in stock (228) 2,581

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (7,009) (825)

Increase/(decrease) in creditors (12,876) (16,763)

40,856 17,276

1
See note 57

Housing Revenue Account

Sundry Other includes funds representing a number of miscellaneous deposits.

Total assets less liabilities as at 31 March can be analysed as follows:

General Fund

The Council acts as trustee for a number of Trust Funds, the principal ones being shown below. It should be noted that the Council's Balance Sheet does not include all Trust

Fund assets and liabilities and so does not comply fully with relevant accounting standards, although the amounts involved are not material.

Welfare Savings

King Bequest Fund

Children's Trust Funds

Social Services Trust Funds - sundry other

Tower Hamlets Further Education Trust

Globe Town  Picture Fund

Sundry Other

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES

TOTAL TRUST FUNDS

This Fund was established with a legacy from the will of a former resident of the borough. The terms of the will restrict expenditure to specific activities which

enhance the environment of the local community.

This Fund represents monies held by Social Services residential establishments on behalf of residents in their care. It is used to finance the purchase of goods and

services on behalf of residents.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 

These Funds represent monies held and/or invested by the Council on behalf of children in care.

The Council also holds a number of deposits relating to Trust Funds administered by the Council. The funds are held in an interest bearing account maintained by the Council.

The account is excluded from the financial statements relating to the Council. The relevant Trusts and transactions during the financial year ended 31st March 2010 may be

summarised as follows. 

This Fund was established with the proceeds of the sale of a painting by the Council.

This was established by the Council in conjunction with Canary Wharf Limited with the objective of "the advancement of education and training for the residents of

the London Borough of Tower Hamlets". The Council is the sole Trustee and the Trust is registered with the Charities Commission (No. 1002772). Accounts relating

to the Trust have been deposited with the Charities Commissioners.

These Funds represent monies held by the Council on behalf of any residents of the borough (including those in private accommodation) who are unable to manage

their own personal affairs.

- 52 -Page 168



51 OTHER GOVERNMENT GRANTS

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Alcohol and Drug Misuse

HIV/Aids 295                   280

Asylum Seekers / UASC 578                   837

Promoting Independence 553                   273

Preserved Rights -                    -

Children's Services 16,087              1,216

Dept of Health: Other 217

Other Social Services 1,135                570

DWP: Benefits: Administration 5,012                4,315

DWP: Benefits: Council Tax 25,965              26,808

DWP: Benefits: Rent Allowances 150,087            116,198

DWP: Benefits: Rent Rebates 71,339              68,613

DCLG: Area Based Grant 31,204              27,675

DCLG:  Housing Subsidy 15,750              20,551

DCLG:  Homelessness Grant 1,827                1,070

DCLG: Single Regeneration Grant -                    26

DCLG: Home Insulation & Improvement Grants -                    588

Home Office: Civil Defence -                    -

Standards Fund 76,257              50,054

Mandatory Awards -                    -

FEFC Access 392                   385

Learning Skills Council 15,451              2,084

Education and Training 20,791              34,465

Dedicated Schools Grant 232,755            222,676

Nursery and other childrens grants -                    18,683

European Social Grants -                    31

New Deal 12,415              2,325

Planning Delivery Grant 2,327                -

Supporting People 15,530              15,385

Connexions -                    -

London Development Agency 362                   362

Lottery Funding 526                   -

Other Revenue Grants 5,217                6,141

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE GRANTS 701,855 621,828

52 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

Net Debt

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1st April 2009 27,452 78,427 105,879 (13,600) (251,785) (49,643) (209,149)

Cashflows in year 9,558 7,081 16,639 (1,724) (51,144) 1,539 (34,690)

Other non cash changes 0 0 0 0 454 0 454

Balance as at 31st March 2010 0 37,010 85,508 122,518 (15,324) (302,475) (48,104) (243,385)

53 RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN CASH TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Increase/(Decrease) in cash in year 9,558 1,087

Cash inflow/(outflow) from management of liquid resources 7,081 (21,962)

Cash inflow from:

New loans raised (65,769) (7,000)

Cash outflow from:

Loans repaid 12,901 21,719

Deferred Liabilities Repaid 1,539 385

Change in net debt resulting from cashflows (34,690) (5,771)

Other non cash changes:

New deferred liabilities 0 (51,982)

Net adjustments for difference between effective interest rate and interest payable 454 (2,089)

Net Debt Brought Forward (209,149) (149,307)

Net Debt Carried Forward (243,385) (209,149)

54

2009/2010 2008/2009 Change in year

£000 £'000 £'000

Management of Liquid Assets 

Short Term Investments 85,508 78,427 7,081

Short term deposits 4,236 0 4,236

Cash 37,010 27,452 9,558

Increase/(decrease) in year 126,754          105,879            20,875

Short term 

investments

Deferred

Liabilities

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN CASH AND LIQUID RESOURCES DURING THE YEAR

Short term 

investments Total 

Loans due 

within one 

year

Loans due 

more than one 

year

Short term 

investments

- 53 -

Page 169



55 DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT

Central

Expenditure

Individual

Schools

Budget Total

Note £000s £000s £000s

A 18,701 214,054 232,755

B 5,910 0 5,910

C Carry forward to 2010/11 agreed in advance 0 0 0

D Agreed budgeted distribution in 2009-10 24,611 214,054 238,665

E (19,726) 0 (19,726)

F Actual ISB deployed to schools 0 (214,054) (214,054)

G 0 0 0

H 4,885 0 4,885

A

B

C

D Budgeted distribution of DSG, adjusted for carry forward, as agreed with the schools forum.

E Actual amount of central expenditure items in 2009-10.

F Amount of ISB distributed to schools.

G Contribution from the Council in 2009-10 which substituted for DSG in funding the Schools Budget.

H Difference between budgeted distributions and actuals plus carry foward agreed in advance.

The amount which the Council decided after consultation with the schools forum to carry forward to 2010-11 rather than distribute in 

2009-10.

Actual central expenditure

Council contribution for 2009-10

Carry Forward to 2010-11

DSG figure as issued by DCSF on 25 June 2009 plus Exceptional Circumstances Grant notified in December 2009.

Figure brought forward from 2008-09 (restated by way of correction).

The Council's expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Children, Schools and Families - the

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools

Budget. The Schools Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the

Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each school. Over and underspends on the two elements are required

to be accounted for separately.

Final DSG for 2009-10

Brought forward from 2008-09

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2009/10 are as follows:

- 54 -Page 170



56 AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE DATE

The accounts were authorised for issue by Mr. Chris Naylor ACA CPFA MACantab on 29th June 2010. 

57 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

2008-09

Statement of 

Accounts

PFI

Adjustments

Council Tax 

Adjustments

NNDR

Adjustments

2008-09

Restated

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT (NET)

Children's and Education Services 97,168 (540) 96,628

NET COST OF SERVICES 323,888 (540) 323,348

Interest payable and similar charges 22,656 5,888 28,544

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 346,544 5,348 351,892

Council Tax income 70,501 (428) 70,073

25,332 5,348 428 31,108

25,332 5,348 428 31,108

(19,107) (5,348) (428) (24,883)

6,225 6,225

(27,102) 0 0 (27,102)

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets (23,241) (5,667) (28,908)

Transfer from the Council Tax Adjustment Account (427) (427)

6,984 318 7,302

(19,107) (5,349) (427) (24,883)

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Operational assets

Other land and buildings 695,058 273,099 968,157

Total Fixed Assets 1,782,453 273,099 2,055,552

Long Term Debtors 109,614 (108,759) 855

Total Long Term Assets 1,892,067 164,340 2,056,407

Current Assets

Debtors 92,675 (1,434) (1,926) (8,697) 80,618

Total Assets 2,090,924 162,906 (1,926) (8,697) 2,243,207

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowing 12,901 700 13,601

Creditors 142,789 (1,926) (8,697) 132,166

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 1,935,234 162,206 0 0 2,097,441

Long Term Liabilities

Deferred liabilities 38,636 38,636

1,259,816 123,570 0 0 1,383,386

Financed by

Revaluation Reserve 319,706 167,006 486,712

Capital Adjustment Account 1,037,867 (43,436) 994,431

Collection Fund (597) 597 0

Collection Fund Adjustment Account (597) (597)

1,259,816 123,570 0 1,383,386

25,332 5,349 427 31,108

(Surplus)/Deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets 54,771 (222,925) (168,154)

166,228 (217,576) 427 (50,921)

Cumulative effect on reserves of prior period adjustments 93579 93,579

166,228 (123,997) 427 42,658

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES

TOTAL NET WORTH

The SORP 2009 requires revised accounting treatment for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes and for the Council's Collection Fund (covering both the debtor / creditor relationship between the Council and the

Greater London in respect of Council Tax; and the Council and the Government in respect of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). Further details are shown in the Council's accounting policies 18 (page 15) and 19

(page 16). As these are changes to accounting policies, relevant prior year figures have been adjusted to reflect the new requirements. The adjustments for 2008-09 are shown below. None of the adjustments affect the

Council's overall financial position.

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be excluded when determining the 

movement on the General Fund balance for the year

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required to be included by statute when determining the 

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year

Minimum revenue provision for capital financing 

Balance Sheet

Net additional amount required to be credited to the General Fund balance for the year

Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund Balance for 

the year

(Increase)/decrease in General Fund Balance for the year

Amount of General Fund Balance Generally Available for New Expenditure

Note of Reconciling Items for the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

INCOME FROM TAXATION AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANT

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR TRANSFERRED TO THE GENERAL FUND

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year

Total recognised (gains) and losses for the year

Aggregate (increase)/decrease in net worth

- 55 -Page 171



Note 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

INCOME

Gross rental income

  Rents of dwellings 54,601 54,117

  Non dwelling rents 2,614 3,525

Charges for services and facilities

  Heating and other charges 7,003 6,605

  Leaseholder charges 11,283 8,466

HRA subsidy receivable

  General 2,374 6,947

  Major Repairs Allowance 12,556 11,824

Contribution towards expenditure 115 115

Reduction in provision for bad debts 214 0

TOTAL INCOME 90,760 91,599

EXPENDITURE

Repairs, maintenance and management

  Repairs and maintenance 24,315 28,220

  Supervision and management 31,967 33,454

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 2,749 2,982

Rent rebates 0 215

Increase in provision for bad debts 0 1,464

Depreciation of fixed assets 6

  On dwellings 12,556 11,824

  On other assets 335 734

Impairment 18,191 23,363

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 13 6,403 8,113

Debt management costs 213 196

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 96,729 110,565

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES AS INCLUDED IN THE WHOLE 

AUTHORITY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

5,969 18,966

HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 502 328

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES 6,471 19,294

HRA share of operating income and expenditure included in the whole 

authority Income and Expenditure Account

Gain or loss on sale of HRA fixed assets 2,379 (3,720)

Amortisation of premiums and discounts
1

10 0 2,849

Interest payable 14,293 17,804

Interest and investment income (192) (1,002)

Pensions interest cost 7 3,109 3,776

Expected return on pension assets 7 (1,929) (3,058)

DEFICIT/(SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON HRA SERVICES 24,131 35,943

2
See note 57

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) deals with the provision and maintenance of council housing by the Council acting as landlord. It also shows income

from rents and Government grant. There is a statutory requirement to keep this account separate from other Council activities (including other housing

activities).

1
An amounts of £666,000 was reflected in the Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance in 2008/09, in accordance with proper

practice - see note 1. See also note 10.

- 56 -Page 172



Note 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

24,131 35,943

(13,808) (24,056)

(Increase)/decrease in the HRA Balance 10,323 11,887

Balance on the Statutory HRA Brought Forward (23,301) (35,188)

Balance on the Statutory HRA Carried Forward (12,978) (23,301)

1
See note 57

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account

Net additional amount required by statute to be credited to the HRA balance for the year                     1

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account discloses the income received and expenditure incurred in providing

council dwellings to tenants for the year. However, the Council is required to raise council rents based on the balance on the Statutory Housing 

Revenue Account.

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account and the balance on the 

Statutory HRA.

- 57 -Page 173



1. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but excluded from the

movement on HRA balance for the year

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (6,403) (8,113)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue 6,000 0

Government Grants Deferred amortisation 6,995 6,434

Gain or loss on sale of HRA fixed assets (2,379) 3,720

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets (11,349) (23,363)

Impairment relating to housing stock transfer (6,842) 0

Difference between amounts charged to the Income & Expenditure Account for premiums and

discounts and the charge for the year determined in accordance with statute 585 (2,183)

Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS 17 (1,211) (1,175)

Transfers from General Fund (as directed by Secretary of State) (714) (15,318) (932) (25,612)

Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but included in the

movement on HRA balance for the year

Transfer to/from the Major Repairs Reserve (335) (734)

Employer's contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement benefits payable direct to

pensioners 1,845 1,510 2,290 1,556

Net additional amount required by statute to be debited to the HRA Balance for the year (13,808) (24,056)

1
See note 57

2008/20092009/2010

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

- 58 -Page 174



2. HOUSING STOCK

2010 2009

Low rise flats (1-2 storeys) 270 228

Medium rise flats (3-5 storeys) 7,564 7,496

High rise flats (6 or more storeys) 4,194 4,539

Houses and bungalows 799 795

     TOTAL AT 31st MARCH 12,827 13,058

3. FIXED ASSETS

The balance sheet values of assets within the Council's HRA were as follows:

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

925,378 901,291

Other Land & Buildings 14,345 25,368

Non-Operational 50,713 46,520

990,436 973,179

1
See note 57

Dwellings Other land Non- TOTAL

and buildings Operational

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

986,081 30,181 50,634 1,066,896

   Additions, disposals, transfers and revaluations (84,790) (4,813) (4,114) (93,717)

Total value at 31st March 2009 901,291 25,368 46,520 973,179

   Additions, disposals, transfers and revaluations 24,087 (11,023) 4,193 17,257

TOTAL VALUE AT 31st MARCH 2010 925,378 14,345 50,713 990,436

4. MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1st April 2,354 2,841

Transfer from Capital Adjustment Account - depreciation 12,891 12,558

Transfer to HRA - depreciation on non-dwellings (335) (734)

Financing of capital expenditure (13,836) (12,311)

Balance at 31st March 1,074 2,354

1
See note 57

The type and number of dwellings in the Council's housing stock at 31st March were as follows:

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the Council's HRA was £2,391 million in 2009/2010 (£2,785 million in 2008/2009). The difference

between the vacant possession value and the balance sheet value shows the economic cost to the Government of providing council housing at less than open

market rents.

          Operational

The balance sheet values of operational and non-operational assets (excluding community assets and equipment, which are included in the totals above) have

been as follows:

Total value at 31st March 2008

Dwellings

TOTAL

- 59 -Page 175



5. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Other land

Dwellings and buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure 60,357 473 60,830

Sources of finance

   Borrowing 15,027            473 15,500

   Useable capital receipts 11,773 11,773

   Capital grants 13,721 13,721

   Major Repairs Reserve 13,836 13,836

   Direct Revenue Financing (RCCO) 6,000 6,000

   TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING 60,357 0 473 60,830

(ii) Capital Receipts

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Dwellings 1,178 7,731

Other land and buildings 162 0

TOTAL CAPITAL RECEIPTS 1,340 7,731

6. DEPRECIATION

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Operational Assets

     Council dwellings 12,556 11,824

     Other land and buildings 330 729

     Equipment - -

     Infrastructure 5 5

     TOTAL DEPRECIATION 12,891 12,558

7. PENSION COSTS

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

    Net Cost of Services

      Current service costs 31 452 6 5 37 457

    Net Operating Expenditure

      Interest cost 3,109 3,747 54 29 3,163 3,776

      Expected return on assets in the scheme (1,929) (3,041) (26) (17) (1,955) (3,058)

1,211 1,158 34 17 1,245 1,175

(1,211) (1,158) (34) (17) (1,245) (1,175)

Employer's contribution to scheme 1,845 2,281 7 9 1,852 2,290

Statement of Movement in the HRA Balance

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits

in accordance with FRS17

Income and Expenditure Account

Net Charge to the Income and

Expenditure Account

Capital expenditure and financing

Capital receipts in 2009/10 from the disposal of fixed assets within the HRA amounted to £1.34 million (£7.73m in 2008/09) as follows:

The total depreciation charge charge for the year was £12.891 million (£12.593 million in 2008/2009) made up of £12.556 million (£11.824 million in

2008/09) in respect of council houses and £0.335 million (£0.734 million in 2008/09) in respect of other housing assets. In the case of council housing,

assets have been depreciated by an amount equivalent to the Major Repairs Allowance as this is the amount (based on a 30 year life cycle costing) which

the Government estimates the Council needed to spend this year to keep the housing stock in its current state. It is therefore considered an appropriate

measure of depreciation. An analysis of the depreciation charges is set out below.

The Council LPFA Total

These figures represent the cost of pensions attributable to the HRA. Further details of the treatment of pensions costs are shown in note 48 of the Core Financial 

Statements, together with details of the assumptions made in calculating the figures included in this note. The following transactions have been made in the account for 

the year.

- 60 -Page 176



8.  RENT ARREARS

2009/2010

£'000

2008/2009

£'000

Gross rent arrears at 31st March 3,197 3,846

Arrears as % of rent receivable 5.9 7.10

Provision made for bad debts 2,631 3,207

9. TRANSFERS FROM GENERAL FUND (AS DIRECTED BY SECRETARY OF STATE)

10. AMORTISED PREMIUMS AND DISCOUNTS

11 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUBSIDY ENTITLEMENT

2009/2010

£'000

2008/2009

£'000

Management & Maintenance Allowances 34,930           33,418          

Major Repairs Allowance 12,556           11,824          

Charges for capital 21,364           26,950          

Other Allowances 17                  31                 

Guide Line Rent Income (53,671) (52,965)

Interest on Receipts (40) (48)

Prior Year Adjustment (225) (439)

     TOTAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUBSIDY 14,931 18,771

12 IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

13 REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 

£5.93 million of this amount is in respect of major works to leaseholders' properties, expenditure on which is in respect of third party capital assets and is

reimbursable. This is a change in practice compared with previous years, when such expenditure was treated as affecting Council-owned assets. The change is

in accordance with proper accounting principles. The comparable figure for 2008-09 was £7.82 million.

This relates to premiums payable on the premature redemption of housing debt prior to 2006-07. The accounting treatment of those amounts has been

reviewed and amended retrospectively which results in a charge to the Income and Expenditure Account. The charge is reversed out in the Statement of

Movement in the HRA balance, resulting in no change in the balance available. 

Authorities are allowed to transfer sums to the HRA from another revenue account on the basis of directions issued by the Government. The £0.7 million

transferred during 2009/10 relates to "Supporting People" services provided by the Council.

An impairment review was carried out in 2009/10 by qualified valuers and it was found that property values have not decreased between the 1st April 2009

and 31st March 2010 and so no impairment due to a fall in market prices has been recognised. A similar review was carried out in 2008/09, which resulted in

impairment being recognised of £138.5m on council dwellings and £6.1m on other HRA assets between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009.

Impairment on dwellings recognised in 2009/10 is the result of a stock transfer to a registered social landlord, and also demolition of a number of properties in

preparation for re-development, and as such is not comparable to the impairment recognised in 2008/09.

- 61 -Page 177



Note 2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

INCOME

Council Tax (net of benefits) 2 70,561 68,519                

Transfers from General Fund - Council Tax Benefits 28,995 99,556 26,625                95,144              

Distribution of prior year deficit on Collection Fund 2,716

National Non-Domestic Rates 3 287,443 280,994            

Reduction in provision for bad debts 5 0 17                     

TOTAL INCOME 389,715 376,155            

EXPENDITURE

Precepts and demands 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 71,110 68,996                

Greater London Authority 24,879 95,989 24,694                93,690              

Distribution of prior year surplus on Collection Fund 2,050                

National Non-Domestic Rates 

Payment to National Pool 286,489 280,047              

Cost of collection allowance 954 287,443 947                     280,994            

Increase in provision for bad debts 5 210

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 383,642 376,734            

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 6,073 (579)

COLLECTION FUND BALANCE

Balance at the beginning of the year (810) (231)

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year 6,073 (579)

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 1 5,263 (810)

COLLECTION FUND

- 62 -Page 178



NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

1. GENERAL

2. COUNCIL TAX

     

Band Market Value in Fraction of

April 1991 Band D

A Up to £40,000 6/9

B Over £40,000 and up to £52,000 7/9

C Over £52,000 and up to £68,000 8/9

D Over £68,000 and up to £88,000 9/9

E Over £88,000 and up to £120,000 11/9

F Over £120,000 and up to £160,000 13/9

G Over £160,000 and up to £320,000 15/9

H Over £320,000 18/9

2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

Band No. of Council No. of Council

Properties Tax Base Properties Tax Base

A 1,385 730 1,103 713

B 24,427 15,900 20,505 15,470

C 31,246 24,523 27,158 23,416

D 16,736 15,594 15,968 15,489

E 12,868 14,053 11,103 13,164

F 6,113 7,802 5,270 7,384

G 2,447 3,528 2,126 3,437

H 390 657 327 633

Total 95,612 82,787 83,560 79,706

Band D Tax

Amount to be 

raised Band D Tax

Amount to be 

raised Increase

£ £'000 £ £'000 £ %

Tower Hamlets 885.52 71,110 865.64 68,996 19.88 2.30

Greater London Authority 309.82 24,879 309.82 24,694 - -

TOTAL 1,195.34 95,989 1,175.46 93,690 19.88 1.69

2009/2010 2008/2009

The Collection Fund accounts for all transactions in respect of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (also known as NNDR or

Business Rates) and Community Charge (prior to 1st April 1993). Although the account is kept separate from the Income and Expenditure

Account, the Collection Fund balance is included in the Council's Balance Sheet.

Council Tax is a tax payable depending on the nature and degree of occupation of the residential property concerned. It is subject to a system

of personal discounts. For the purpose of calculating the individual tax, all domestic properties were valued by the Inland Revenue as at 1st

April 1991 and placed in one of eight bands. By law the tax for each Band is set as a fraction of Band D.

By multiplying the number of properties in each band (after allowing for discounts, exemptions and non-collection) by the appropriate

fraction the Council calculates the number of "Band D equivalent" properties in the borough (known as the Council Tax Base) and how much

a Band D tax of £1 would produce. For 2009-10 this was £0.080 million (£0.080 million for 2008-09) allowing for a non-collection rate of

3.00% (3.00% in 2008-09).

When the 2009-10 Council Tax was set the position was as follows:

The Council Tax is made up of amounts for the Greater London Authority as well as the Council. The Band D tax and total amount to be 

raised in the last 2 years was as follows:

The surplus on the Fund (£5,263,000) is attributable to the Council (£3,902,000) and the Greater London Authority (£1,361,000). The latter

amount is carried as a creditor in the Council's Balance Sheet.

- 63 -Page 179



3. NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR)

4. ADJUSTMENTS FOR PRIOR YEARS' COMMUNITY CHARGE

5. PROVISION FOR IRRECOVERABLE COUNCIL TAX DEBTS

Although Council Tax replaced Community Charge on 1st April 1993 the Council continues to account for residual adjustments

to the Community Charges raised in earlier years in the Collection Fund.

Contributions are made to or from the Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account to a provision for bad debts. For

2009/10 the Council Tax bad debt provision was increased by £0.21 million (reduced by £0.017 million in 2008/09) and £1.767

million of irrecoverable debts were written off (£1.621 million in 2008/09).

Under the arrangements for National Non-Domestic Rates the Council collects business rates for its area which it pays to the

Government. The Government then redistributes the total NNDR back to local authorities on the basis of a fixed amount per

head of population. NNDR due is calculated by multiplying a national uniform rate(set by the Government) by the rateable

value of the property. The national uniform rate in 2009/10 was 48.5p in the £ (46.2p in the £ in 2008/09). The total rateable

value in the borough as at 29 March 2010 was £677.4 million (£673.0 million at 31 March 2009). A periodic revaluation of

business properties took place in April 2010. The new 2010 valuation list shows a total rateable value in the borough as at 29

March 2010 of £817.9 million.

- 64 -Page 180



1 INTRODUCTION

Number Voting Rights

Council nominees 5 5

Housing tenants and leaseholders 5 5

Independent 5 5

Total 15 15

Tower Hamlets Homes Limited

Jack Dash House, 2 Lawn Close, London E14 9YQ

or from Companies House, Cardiff

The accounts are subject to approval and adoption at the Annual General Meeting; and the formal issuing of the auditors'

report

THH's appointed auditors are:

KPMG  LLP

2 Cornwall Street

Birmingham

B3 2DL

A copy of THH's accounts is availabe from the company's registered office at:

GROUP ACCOUNTS

The Council's Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Tower Hamlets Homes Limited ("THH"), was incorporated on 16 May 2007 and

commenced trading on 7 July 2008. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council responsible for the management, maintenance and modernisation of

the Council's housing stock. The stock remains in the ownership of the Council and rents are collected by THH.

The Council has determined that Group Accounts, showing the consolidated financial activities and financial position of the Council as a "single entity"

and THH, need to be prepared since the 2008-09 financial year. The consolidation has been carried out in accordance with the acquisition basis of

accounting - the service was externalised at fair value and did not result in an adjustment for goodwill. The income and expenditure of THH for the year

are included in the Group Income and Expenditure Account and its assets and liabilities at 31 March 2010 in the Group Balance Sheet. Comparative

figures for 2008-09 cover the period 7th July 2008 to 31st March 2009.

The Council undertakes, in the event of the company's being wound up, to contribute such amounts as may be required for the payment of the debts and

liabilities of the company, provided this does not exceed £1. After the satisfaction of all the debts and liabilities, the remaining assets would revert to the

Council. THH is an admitted body to the Council's local government pension fund. The full pension obligation and related deficit together with current

and past services costs for THH employees passed to the company when it began trading. Should THH cease trading then the full pension obligation and

related deficit or surplus would pass back to the Council as an integral part of the general business transfer. 

THH is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital. The composition of the board of the company and the associated voting rights are

as follows.

It should be noted that, although Board members have voting rights at Board meetings, the Council is the sole member of the company and therefore has

100% of the voting rights at the company's Annual General Meeting.

- 65 -

Page 181



2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2008/09 2008/09 2008/09

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 142,626 48,701 93,925 130,252 53,909 76,343

Central Services 89,424 77,339 12,085 55,655 47,018 8,637

Children's and Education Services 510,826 425,197 85,629 470,703 374,075 96,628

Highways and Transport Services 29,754 24,141 5,613 30,989 27,693 3,296

Local Authority Housing (HRA) 97,804 90,760 7,044 110,408 91,599 18,809

Other Housing Services 285,533 278,526 7,007 259,630 255,347 4,283

Adult Social Care 113,069 20,948 92,121 102,959 17,201 85,758

Corporate and Democratic Core 10,689 6,303 4,386 21,072 6,339 14,733

Non-distributed Costs 17,721 26 17,695 15,185 481 14,704

NET COST OF SERVICES 1,297,446 971,941 325,505 1,196,853 873,662 323,191

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets 21,428 (13,394)

Total net (surplus)/deficit on Trading Accounts 11 1,555

Amounts due to levying authorities 1,636 1,641

Contribution to Housing Pooled capital receipts 572 4,766

Interest payable and similar charges 27,379  28,547

Interest and investment income (1,324) (6,166)

Pensions interest cost and  Expected return on pensions assets 21,508 12,267

Amortisation of premiums and discounts 0 2,849

Unattached Capital Receipts (8,734) (1,331)

Corporation tax 2 5

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 387,983 353,930

INCOME FROM TAXATION AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

GRANT:

Council Tax income (74,206) (70,073)

Government grants (not attributable to specific services) (76,714) (55,384)

Distribution from non-domestic rate pool (185,907) (197,503)

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 51,156 30,970

1
See note 57

GROUP INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

- 66 -Page 182



 2009/10 2008/09

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Council's Income and Expenditure Account for the year 49,834 31,108

Adjustments for transactions with THH 1,075 (157)

50,909 30,951

(Surplus)/Deficit attributable to THH 247 19

(Surplus)/Deficit  for the year on the Group Income and 

Expenditure Account
51,156 30,970

1
See note 57

 2009/10 2008/09

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year 50,290 30,970

(Surplus)/Deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets  (38,203) (168,154)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities 414,560 84,532

Movement in Collection Fund balance attributable to the Council 0 481

Total recognised (gains) and losses for the year 426,647 (52,171)

Cumulative effect on reserves of prior period adjustments 93,579

Aggregate (increase)/decrease in net worth 426,647 41,408

1
See note 57

GROUP STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

RECONCILIATION OF SINGLE ENTITY SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE 

YEAR TO THE GROUP SURPLUS OR DEFICIT

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Group Income and Expenditure Account attributable to the

Council

- 67 -Page 183



Note 2010 2010 2009 2009

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Operational assets

Council dwellings 925,378 901,291

Other land and buildings 983,324 968,157

Infrastructure assets 91,170 86,397

Equipment 3 4,711 3,780

Community assets 48,410 45,220

Non-operational assets

Investment properties 52,769 50,042

Surplus assets 5,072 802

Total Fixed Assets 2,110,834 2,055,689

Long Term Debtors 1,067 855

Total Long Term Assets 2,111,901 2,056,544

Current Assets

Stocks and Work in Progress 3 531 345

Debtors 3 88,663 79,402

Investments 85,508 78,427

Cash and Bank 3 38,033 212,735 31,302 189,476

Total Assets 2,324,636 2,246,020

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowing 15,324 13,600

Creditors 3 130,567 145,891 133,603 147,203

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,178,745 2,098,817

Long Term Liabilities

Long-term borrowing 302,475 251,785

Capital Grants Unapplied 38,511 37,363

Capital Grants and Contributions Deferred 130,864 96,139

Deferred liabilities 38,287 38,637

Deferred Income - Receipt in Advance 9,817 11,006

Provisions 11,216 8,560

Liability related to defined benefit pension schemes 
1

3 689,924 1,221,094 270,690 714,180

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 957,651 1,384,637

Financed by

Revaluation Reserve 510,138 486,712

Capital Adjustment Account 975,634 994,431

Capital Receipts Reserve 16,309 18,091

Deferred Capital Receipts 298 412

Pensions Reserve 
1

3 (689,924) (270,690)

Major Repairs Reserve 1,074 2,354

Council Tax Adjustment Account 3,902 (597)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 764 280

Balances

General Fund 27,133 27,102

Housing Revenue Account 12,978 23,301

Earmarked Reserves 98,889 101,865

Income and Expenditure Reserve 3 456 1,376

TOTAL NET WORTH 957,651 1,384,637

2
See note 57

GROUP BALANCE SHEET 
 as at 31st March 

- 68 -Page 184



Note 2009/2010 2009/2010 2008/2009 2008/2009

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NET  REVENUE ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW 1 38,210 21,265

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

Cash outflows

Interest paid (22,455) (21,055)

Interest element of finance lease rental payments (5,846) (5,348)

Cash inflows

Interest received 1,394 6,483

(26,907) (19,920)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows

Purchase of fixed assets (119,919) (66,735)

Other capital cash payments (554) -

Cash inflows

Sale of fixed assets 1,371 25,873

Other capital cash payments/(income) 243 67

Capital grants received 69,124 36,716

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES (49,735) (4,079)

NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING (38,432) (2,734)

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

Net increase/decrease in other liquid resources (8,402) 22,390

(8,402) 22,390

FINANCING

Cash outflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed (12,901) (21,719)

Cash inflows

New loans raised 66,467 7,000

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING 53,566 (14,719)

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 6,732 4,937

1
See note 57

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS 

- 69 -

Page 185



1 RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) TO NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2009/2010 2008/2009 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

(51,156) (30,970)

Non Cash Transactions

Depreciation and impairment 79,173 64,662

Deferred grants amortised in year (37,275) (25,851)

PFI debtor adjustments - 1,434

Pension fund adjustments 3,257 3,116

Other non cash financial instrument adjustments (484) (372)

Contribution to provisions 2,656 47,327 (3,091) 39,898

Adjustments for items reported separately in 

cashflow statement

Interest and investment income (1,304) (6,161)

Interest payable 21,551 22,659

Interest element of finance lease rental payments 5,846 5,348

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 16,419 16,281

Gains/losses on disposal of fixed assets 21,428 63,940 (13,394) 24,733

Items on an accruals basis

(Increase)/decrease in stock (186) 2,539

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (7,633) (896)

(Increase)/decrease in creditors (14,083) (21,902) (14,039) (12,396)

38,210 21,265

2 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

The following Tower Hamlets Homes transactions are included in the Group Income and Expenditure Account:

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Operating (profit) / loss 1,075 (157)

Interest payable - 3

Interest receivable (11) (22)

Pensions interest cost 256 33

Corporation tax 2 5

Total 1,322 (138)

3 BALANCE SHEET

2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009 2009/2010 2008/2009

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

As Restated
1

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed assets - equipment 4,456 3,643 255 137 4,711 3,780

Stock and work in progress 531 303 0 42 531 345

Debtors 87,967 79,331 696 71 88,663 79,402

Cash 37,010 27,452 1,023 3,850 38,033 31,302

Creditors 129,702 132,166 865 1,438 130,567 133,604

Pensions liability 670,693 270,565 19,231 125 689,924 270,690

Pension reserve (670,693) (270,565) (19,231) (125) (689,924) (270,690)

Income and Expenditure Reserve 456 1,376 456 1,376

NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

The Group Balance Sheet reflects the following consolidated balances after eliminating intra-group transactions (transactions between Tower Hamlets Homes and the Council).

The Council THH TOTAL

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES

- 70 -Page 186



Note 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Contributions

From employers 3 38,455 37,755

From members 3 9,612 9,164

Transfers in

Individual transfers in from other schemes 6,214 4,862

Benefits

Pensions 4 (28,510) (26,685)

Lump sum benefits 4 (8,692) (6,495)

Payments to and on account of leavers

Refunds of contributions (6) (6)

State scheme premiums 6 (30)

Individual transfers out to other schemes (6,692) (6,679)

Administrative expenses 14 (1,075) (326)

NET ADDITIONS FROM DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS 9,312 11,560

RETURN ON INVESTMENTS 2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Investment income 11 14,527 23,535

Change in market value of investments

Realised 10 3,999 (81,917)

Unrealised 10 164,201 (72,192)

Investment management expenses 15 (1,871) (1,875)

NET RETURN ON INVESTMENTS 180,856 (132,449)

Net increase in the the Fund during the year 190,168 (120,889)

Add: Opening net assets of the scheme 562,333 683,222

CLOSING NET ASSETS OF THE SCHEME 752,501 562,333

NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH 2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Investments Assets

  Fixed interest securities 

Public sector 40,659 54,006

Other 55,219 48,441

  Equities 489,740 328,666

  Index linked securities 

Public sector 49,898 48,922

  Property 73,458 53,668

  Managed and Unitised Funds 

   Other 16,698 23,887

10 725,672 557,590

  Cash deposits 6 19,606 6,892

  Other investment balances 5 4,213 10,833

Investments Liabilities

  Other investment balances 5 (2,116) (8,920)

Current Assets 5 5,851 114

Current Liabilities 5 (725) (4,176)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 752,501 562,333

Note: The Fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 31st March 2010.

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 

FUND ACCOUNT 

DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS, EMPLOYERS AND OTHERS DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN THE 

SCHEME

- 71 -

Page 187



  NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

1. INTRODUCTION

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Accounts

(b) Basis of preparation

(c)

(d) Investments

(i)

   (ii)

   (iii)

   (iv)

(v)

(e)

3. CONTRIBUTIONS

2009/2010 2008/2009

Total Total

£'000 £'000

Members normal contributions

  Council 8,551 8,611

  Admitted bodies 295 367

  Scheduled bodies 766 186

Total members 9,612 9,164

Employers

 Normal contributions

  Council 20,003 20,247

  Admitted bodies 885 1,257

  Scheduled bodies 1,872 447

 Deficit funding contributions

  Council 13,050 12,500

Other contributions

  Council 2,645 3,304

Total employers 38,455 37,755

Total contributions 48,067 46,919

Propery Unit Trusts are shown by reference to bid price at close of business on 31st March 2010.

The Fund does not hold any direct property holdings and therefore does not employ a separate property valuer.

The Council is required to operate an Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) scheme for employees. In 2009/10 employeesmade contributions of £61,833.25 into the AVC Scheme not administered by

the Council but provided by Norwich Union and £10,737.10 to Equitable Life. The contributions are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with regulation 5(2)(c) of the Pension Scheme

(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998 (SI 1998 N
o
 1831)  but are deducted from salaries and remitted directly to the provider.

The accounts summarise the transactions and net assets of the Pension Fund and comply in all material respects with Chapter 2 ("Recommended Accounting Practice") of the Statement of

Recommended Practice (Financial Reports of Pensions Schemes) 2007.

Except where otherwise stated, the accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis, that is income and expenditure are recognised as earned or incurred, not as received or paid. 

Investments are shown in the Net Assets Statement at market value on the following bases.

Listed securities are shown by reference to bid price at the close of business on 31st March 2010

Managed and Unitised funds are valued at bid price or latest single market price at close of business on 31st March 2010. 

The financial statements of the Fund do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 31st March 2010.

Contributions represent the total amounts receivable from the employing authority in respect of its own contributions and those of its pensionable employees.  Employees pay contributions based on the level 

of pay they receive, with contribution rates set between 5.5% and 7.5% dependent on pensionable pay.  The employer's contributions are made at a rate determined by the Fund's Actuary necesssary to 

maintain the Fund in a state of solvency, having regard to existing and future liabilities.  The Primary Contribution Rate used during the financial year ending 31st March 2010 was 15.8%.  Contributions 

shown in the revenue statement may be categorised as follows:-

Where appropriate, investments held in foreign currencies have been valued on the relevant basis and translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the 31st March 2010. 

Management Expenses

Fund managers' fees are based mainly on a percentage of the value of the funds under their management, although part of the total fee is sometimes fixed.

The Council is the administeringauthority for the Pension Fund and has executive responsibility for it. The Council delegates its responsibility for administeringthe Fund to the Pensions Committeewhich is

responsible for considering all pension matters and discharging the obligations and duties of the Council under the Superannuation Act 1972 and other statutes relating to investment issues. The Committee

meets quarterly to determine investment policy objectives, appoint investment managers, monitor investment performance and make representations to the Government on any proposed changes to the Local

Government Pension Scheme. The Committee is required to obtain proper advice on the investment strategy of the Fund for which it has established an Investment Panel which includes professional

investmentadvisors. The Panel meets quarterly to determinethe general investmentstrategy, monitor the performance of the Fund and individual managers and consider technical reports on investmentissues.

The Fund employs eight specialist investment managers with mandates corresponding to the principle asset classes. 

The day to day administration of the Fund and the operation of the management arrangements and administration of the investment portfolio is delegated to the Corporate Director of Resources.

The Fund is operated as a funded, definedbenefits scheme which provides for the payment of benefits to former employeesof the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and those of bodies admitted to the Fund.

These individuals are referred to as "members". The benefits include not only retirement pensions, but also widows' pensions, death grants and lump sum payments in certain circumstances. The Fund is

financed by contributions from members, from employers and from interest and dividends on the Fund's investments.

The objective of the Pension Fund's financial statements is to provide information about the financial position, performance and financial adaptability of the Fund. They show the results of the stewardship of

management - that is the accountability of management for the resources entrusted to it - and the disposition of its assets at the period end. 

- 72 -Page 188



4. BENEFITS, REFUNDS OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFER VALUES

Council

Admitted

Bodies

Scheduled

Bodies Total Council

Admitted

Bodies

Scheduled

Bodies Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Pensions (27,710) (606) (194) (28,510) (26,568) (95) (22) (26,685)

Lump sum retirement benefits (6,481) (387) (921) (7,789) (5,525) (188) (524) (6,237)

Lump sum death benefits (903) 0 0 (903) (258) 0 0 (258)

Total (35,094) (993) (1,115) (37,202) (32,351) (283) (546) (33,180)

5. DEBTORS AND CREDITORS

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Debtors

Investments Assets
Investment sales 2,316 8,350

Dividends receivable 1,187 1,407

Tax recoverable 306 371

Interest receivable 404 705

4,213 10,833

Current Assets

Employers' contributions due from admitted bodies 74 114

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 5,777 0

5,851 114

Total Debtors 10,064 10,947

Creditors

Investments Liabilities

Investment purchases 2,116 8,920

Current Liabilities

Borrowings
1

0 3,364

Unpaid benefits 187 282

Administrative expenses 538 530

725 4,176

Total Creditors 2,841 13,096

Net Debtors 7,223 (2,149)

6. CASH

The cash balance can be further analysed as follows: 2009/2010 2008/2009

£000 £000

GMO UK 2,732 2,406

Aberdeen: Fixed Interest Portfolio 2,388 1,996

Aberdeen: Private Equity Portfolio 74 0

Aberdeen: UK Equities 2,349 1,462

Schroders: Multi Asset Portfolio 0 13

Schroders: Property Portfolio 11,227 319

Martin Currie 835 666

Merrill Lynch 1 30

TOTAL CASH 19,606 6,892

Benefits payable and refunds of contributions have been brought into the accounts on the basis of all valid claims approved during the year.   Transfers out/in are those sums paid 

to, or received from, other pension schemes and related to the period of previous pensionable employment.  Transfer values are brought into the accounts on a cash basis. 

Benefits payable are analysed below.

Unless otherwise stated, all transactions are accounted for on an accruals basis. The following amounts were debtors or creditors of the Pension Fund as at 31st March . 

2009/2010 2008/2009

- 73 -Page 189



7. TAXATION

UK Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Overseas Tax

8. MEMBERSHIP OF THE FUND

2010 2009

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Active Members 5,190 4,865

Pensioners 3,724 3,561

Deferred Pensioners 5,074 4,664

13,988 13,090

Admitted & Scheduled Bodies

Active Members 479 530

Pensioners 107 78

Deferred Pensioners 245 183

831 791

Admitted Bodies

Tower Hamlets Community Housing

Redbridge Community Housing Limited

East End Homes

Greenwich Leisure Limited

Swan Housing Association

Gateway Housing Association (formerly Bethnal Green and Victoria Park Housing Association)

One Housing Group (formerly Island Homes)

Bees Services

Circle Anglia Ltd.

Look Ahead Housing and Care

Ecovert FM Ltd.

Scheduled Body

Tower Hamlets Homes Limited is a scheduled body contributing to the Fund.

9. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

10. INVESTMENTS

The Fund employs eight specialist investment managers with mandates corresponding to the principal asset classes. 

Manager Mandate

GMO UK Ltd. Global Equity

Martin Currie Investment Management UK Equity

Schroders Asset Management Property Fund Property

Investec Asset Management Residual Venture Capital Fund

Baillee Gifford Life Ltd. Overseas Equities

Aberdeen Asset Management Fixed Interest, UK Equities and Private Equity

Auriel Capital Management Currency 

Record Currency Management Currency 

Investment income is subject to UK tax which the Fund cannot recover under current tax legislation, except for tax deducted at source from Property

Unit Trusts.

By virtue of Tower Hamlets Council being the Administering Authority, VAT input tax is recoverable on all Fund activities.

Taxation agreements exist between Britain and certain other European countries whereby a proportion of the tax deducted locally from investment

earnings may be reclaimed.   The proportion reclaimable and the timescale involved varies from country to country.

The following bodies have been admitted into the Fund:

The following table sets out the membership of the Pension Fund at 31st March 

The Council, as the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund, is required to prepare, maintain and publish a Statement of Investment Principles

(SIP) in accordance with the Local Authority Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) (Amendment) Regulations 1999. The SIP is

published as part of the Local Government Pensions Scheme Annual Report which will be submitted to the Council's Pensions Committee on 18
th

November 2010.

- 74 -Page 190



10. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

£ million % £ million %

GMO UK Ltd. 198.6 26.6 138.2 24.4

Martin Currie Investment Management 95.3 12.8 65.9 11.6

Schroders Asset Management Property Fund 84.9 11.4 61.8 10.9

Aberdeen Asset Management - Bonds 148.6 19.9 153.2 27.1

Aberdeen Asset Management - Equities 70.6 9.4 45.6 8.1

Baillee Gifford Life Ltd. 132.6 17.7 85.3 15.1

Auriel Capital Management 9.9 1.3 9.8 1.7

Record Currency Management 6.7 0.9 6.4 1.1

 Market Value 

as at

1 Apr 2009

Purchases Sales Change in 

Market Value

Market Value 

as at

31 Mar 2010

Transaction

Costs

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

GMO UK Ltd. 135,035 84,175 (78,269) 54,195 195,136 38

Baillee Gifford Life Ltd. 85,338 0 0 47,267 132,605 0

Martin Currie Investment Management 64,842 44,186 (43,663) 28,703 94,068 6

Aberdeen Asset Management - Equities 43,646 11,984 (14,328) 26,629 67,931 3

Schroders Asset Management Property 61,317 21,467 (10,968) 1,642 73,458 0

Aberdeen Asset Management - Bonds 151,171 75,850 (87,508) 6,263 145,776 3

Auriel Capital Management 9,820 103 (1) 21 9,943 0

Record Currency Management 6,387 3,000 (1,917) (731) 6,739 0

Aberdeen No.2 34 0 (230) 212 16 0

557,590 240,765 (236,884) 164,201 725,672 50

 Market Value Purchases Sales Change in Market Value

as at Market as at

1 April 2009 Value 31 Mar 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

UK Investment Assets

   Quoted 359,937 156,590 (158,385) 62,527 420,669

   Unquoted 34 0 (230) 212 16

Overseas Investment Assets

   Quoted 197,619 84,175 (78,269) 101,462 304,987

   Unquoted 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 557,590 240,765 (236,884) 164,201 725,672

11. INVESTMENT INCOME

2009/2010 2008/2009

£'000 £'000

Income from fixed interest securities 2,368 2,696

Income from index linked securities 513 355

Dividends from UK equities 4,911 5,500

Dividends from overseas equities 4,267 12,966

Net rents from properties 2,236 2,415

Interest on cash deposits 101 (512)

Foreign tax 94 115

Underwriting costs, etc. 37 0

TOTAL 14,527 23,535

The movement in the opening and closing value of investments during the year, together with related direct transaction costs, were as follows.

A further analysis of investments assets is as follows.

Investment income is broken down as follows.

The value of the Fund, by manager, as at 31st March was as follows.

2010 2009

- 75 -Page 191



12. SECURITIES

2009/2010 2008/2009

£000 £000

Unlisted 88 32

Listed 745,190 564,450

Working Capital 7,223 (2,149)

752,501 562,333

13. ACTUARIAL POSITION

£m

2008/09 12.5

2009/10 12.5

2010/11 12.5

The value of listed and unlisted securities is broken down as follows:

- not to restrain unnecessarily the investment strategy of the Fund so that the Council can seek to maximise investment returns (and hence minimise the cost of the

benefits) for an appropriate level of risk.

The FSS requires that the Fund operates the same target funding level of all ongoing employers of 100% of its accrued liabilities valued on the ongoing basis, to be achieved

over a 20 year period (a period equivalent to the expected future working lifetime of the remaining scheme members). The valuation of the Fund as at 31st March 2007

determined that this would require a contribution (additional to the future contribution rate) of 9% of members' pensionable pay equivalent to £12.5 million per annum. This

contribution was increased by the Retail Price Index plus 1.5% as from 1st April 2009.

In accordance with the funding policy, the Actuary determines the employer contribution requirement for future service for the Fund as a whole, and for employers who

continue to admit new members. The cost of future service benefits is assessed, taking into account expected future salary increases. In order to place a current value on

future benefit cashflows the Actuary "discounts" the future cashflows to the valuation date at a suitable rate. The Actuary adopts a "gilt-based" valuation which uses the yield

on suitably dated Government bonds as the discount rate. This is then uplifted to the "funding basis discount rate" taking into account the Fund's current and expected future

investment strategy to reflect the percentage by which the Fund is anticipated to "outperform" the yield on Government bonds. The contribution rate required to meet the

expected cost of future service benefits is derived as this value less expected member contributions expressed as a percentage of the value of members' pensionable pay. This

is known as the "Projected Unit method". The future contribution rate for 2009-10 was 15.8%.

In addition, the Actuary compares the value of the Fund's assets with the estimated cost of members' past service. The ratio of the asset value to the estimated cost of

members' past service benefits is known as the "funding level". If the funding level is more than 100% there is a "surplus"; if it less than 100% there is a "shortfall". The next

valuation will be as at 31st March 2010 and the recommendations implemented from 1st April 2011.

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations require a triennial revaluation of the Fund to assess the adequacy of the Fund's investments and contributions in relation

to its overall and future obligations. The contribution rate required for benefits accruing in the future is assessed by considering the benefits that accrue over the course of the

three years to the next valuation.   The employer's contribution rate is determined by the Actuary as part of the revaluation exercise.

The Council, as Administering Authority, prepares a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) in respect of the Fund in collaboration with the Fund's Actuary and after consultation

with the employers and investment advisors. The Actuary is required to have regard to this statement when carrying out the valuation. The FSS includes the Fund's funding

policy, the objectives of which are:

- to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund

Although the funding shortfall is significant, it should be noted that current legislation provides that the level of members' basic pension entitlement and contributions are not

affected by the financial position of the Fund. It is the Council's responsibility to ensure that pension entitlements are fully funded and that the impact on Council Tax is

minimised. It should also be recognised that the Council is a long-term investor both because a high proportion of pension benefits do not become payable until far in the

future and the Council has a relatively secure long-term income stream.

The basis of valuing the Fund's assets (see note 2) is compatible with the basis of placing a value on members' benefits as both are related to market conditions at the

valuation date.

- to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due for payment

The 2007 statutory triennial revaluation of the Pension Fund completed by the Actuary (Hymans Robertson) in the year estimated the deficit on the Fund to be £205 million

and the funding level to be 78%. This compares to a deficit at the previous revaluation in 2004 of £192 million and a corresponding funding level of 73%.

The Actuary has determined that the deficit can be recovered over a period of 20 years and the agreed contribution rate to recover the deficit for the term of the revaluation is

as set out below :-

In addition the contributions were increased by RPI plus 1.5% with effect from the 1st April 2009.

- 76 -
Page 192



Financial Financial Nominal Real

Price Inflation (RPI) 3.2%

Pay Increases 4.7% 1.5% Real rates are nominal rates

"Gilt based" discount rate 4.5% 1.3% adjusted for inflation

Funding basis discount rate 5.9% 2.7%

Longevity (iLongevity (in years) Male Female

19.6 22.5

20.7 23.6

40.1 43.0

14. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2009/2010 2008/2009

£000 £000

Investment Advice 155 151

Performance Measurement 15 13

Administration 882 243

Other Fees 23 (81)

1,075 326

15. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

2009/2010 2008/2009
£000 £000

Payments to Managers 1,871 1,875

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITES

18. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no significant post balance sheet events to report.

The main actuarial assumptions used in revaluation as at 31st March 2007 and applied during the intervaluation p

Average future life expectancy for a pensioner aged 65 

at the valuation date

Average future life expectancy at age 65 for a non-

pensioner aged 45 at the valuation date

Average future life expectancy at age 45 for a non-

pensioner at the valuation date

There were no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2010.

During the year no trustees or Council chief officers with direct responsibility for Pension Fund issues, have

undertaken any declarable transactions with the Pension Fund, other than administrative services undertaken by

the Council on behalf of the Pension Fund.

Information in respect of material transactions with related parties is disclosed elsewhere within the Council's

accounts.

-77-Page 193



As at the authorised for issue date the Council's Statement of Accounts is subject to audit.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

- 78 -

Page 194



 - 80 - 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Council’s responsibilities 

The Council is required: 

! to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of 

its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer 

is the Corporate Director of Resources. 

! to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 

assets.

! to consider and approve the Statement of Accounts. 

The Statement of Accounts 2009-10 was considered and approved by the Council’s Audit Committee on 29th

June 2010. 

Chair of Committee 

The responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Resources 

The Corporate Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts 

in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code of Practice”). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Corporate Director of Resources has: 

! selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 

! made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 

! complied with the Code of Practice. 

The Corporate Director of Resources has also: 

! kept proper accounting records which were up to date 

! taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2009-10 presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Council at 31st March 2010 and its income and expenditure for the year. 

Chris Naylor ACA CPFA MACantab 

Corporate Director of Resources 

29th June 2010 

Page 195



 - 81 - 

Annual Governance Statement 

Tower Hamlets LBC (Tower Hamlets) is required by law to prepare a statement that details the Council’s 

framework for making decisions and controlling its resources. The statement includes the Council’s governance 

arrangements as well as control issues. This statement should enable stakeholders to have an assurance that 

decisions are properly made and public money is being properly spent on behalf of citizens. The statement below 

complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended. 

Scope of Responsibility 

Tower Hamlets is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 

standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently 

and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 

secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination 

of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, Tower Hamlets is 

responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 

exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. Risk management is a 

principal element of corporate governance, to this end a risk management strategy was adopted in March 2002 

and is regularly reviewed and endorsed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  

Tower Hamlets has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which is consistent with the principles 

of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is 

on our website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Council's monitoring officer. This 

statement explains how Tower Hamlets currently complies with the code and also meets the requirements of 

regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit 

(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of the Annual Governance Statement. 

The Council's Standards Committee members received a report in October 2007 assessing the current local 

governance arrangements and recommended areas of improvement as part of the continuous improvement 

processes of the Council’s governance arrangements. 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the authority 

directs and controls its activities and through which, it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It 

enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 

objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is designed to manage risk 

to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 

therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is 

based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to achievement of Tower Hamlets’ 

policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 

be realised, and to mange them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

Tower Hamlets governance framework is established through its systems, processes, cultures and values. These 

are regularly reviewed. The governance framework has been place at Tower Hamlets for the year ended 31 

March 2010 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.  

Independent Members of the Standards Committee review, the Council’s performance in adhering to the core 

principles of good governance, which form Tower Hamlets Code of Corporate Governance.  

Page 196



 - 82 - 

The Governance Framework 

Vision and Priorities 

The Council’s vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and working in Tower Hamlets. This 

involves helping to create a thriving, achieving community in which people feel at ease with one another, have 

good learning and employment opportunities, experience a higher standard of living and good health, and enjoy 

a safe and an attractive environment together with a wide range of cultural and leisure opportunities.  

The Council (and Tower Hamlets Partnership) has refreshed the borough’s Community Plan through to 2020.  

This has four new Community Plan themes to make Tower Hamlets: 

! A great place to live; 

! A prosperous community; 

! A safe and supportive community; and 

! A healthy community. 

Running through this is the core theme of “One Tower Hamlets” with a focus and drive around reducing 

inequality, strengthening community cohesion and working in partnership. The Council’s strategic plan flows 

from the Community Plan themes and for 2009/10, 15 priorities were identified around all five Community Plan 

themes.  

Underpinning the Community Plan Themes and corporate priorities are the core values, which all officers are 

expected to adhere to, to build a more effective organisation.  The Council's values are: 

! Achieving results 

! Engaging with others  

! Valuing diversity 

! Learning effectively 

Over the last year, there has been significant consultation with local people through Local Area Partnership 

(LAP) events, as well as targeted consultation including with young people, older people, faith groups and 

disabled people.  An analysis of key messages from consultation across the Partnership in the last four years was 

also undertaken.  The Vision, themes and priorities of the Community Plan were discussed through the Tower 

Hamlets Partnership structures which comprises the Partnership Board and Executive, the Community Plan 

Delivery Groups (CPDGs) and the Local Area Steering Groups.  The Council’s Corporate Management Team 

(CMT) and the Cabinet and other members have also contributed to the Vision and Priorities for the new 

Community Plan. 

As the diagram below shows, the Council aligns its Strategic Framework with the Community Plan.  The 

Council’s Strategic Plan for 2009/10 is organised around the themes, priorities and objectives of the Community 

Plan and shows how the Council both leads and contributes to the delivery of the Community Plan. 

The Tower Hamlets Partnership Community Plan and the Council’s Strategic Plan fall within the Council’s 

Budget and Policy Framework.  This requires that Overview and Scrutiny Committee are given 10 working days 

to comment on the draft plans and  that Cabinet takes account of Overview and Scrutiny Committee comments 

in their consideration of the draft plans before recommending them to Full Council.  Both plans are subject to 

approval by Full Council. 

The Council’s vision, priorities and objectives are used to structure all directorate service plans and Personal 

Development Plans (PDRs).  This ensures that there is a “golden thread” that runs from each individual’s work 

through to the Community Plan.  This makes sure that the vision, priorities and objectives are communicated at 

all levels of the organisation.  Further communication takes place through the Council’s staff newsletter “Pulling 

Together”. 

The Strategic Plan is refreshed each year through Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny and Full Council.  The 

Community Plan is refreshed every three years. 

Page 197



 - 83 - 

Quality of Service 

The Council operates a comprehensive performance management framework to ensure that strategic priorities 

are embedded in service, team and individual performance development plans; that resources are linked to 

operational aims and objectives; and that progress against plans and targets is monitored and evaluated at all 

levels. 

The overall planning framework is illustrated in the following diagram. 

Constitutional Matters 

The Council has an agreed Constitution that details how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the 

procedures that are to be followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. 

The Constitution is reviewed annually. 

The constitution also includes sections on standing orders, financial regulations and conduct of meetings. 

During the year the Constitution was reviewed to ensure that it kept abreast of changes within the Council. The 

Council approves and keeps under regular review all of the strategic policies which it reserves for its own 

consideration, including: 

! the constitution; 

! the corporate performance plan; 

! the corporate strategy; 

! the capital programme and revenue budget; 

! the housing strategy; and 

! the local development framework. 

COMMUNITY PLAN
A strategic document prepared in partnership with local agencies and residents. 

THE COUNCIL'S STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Council's corporate aims, objectives and key activities to achieve them, along with an 

analysis of performance against targets and future targets. 

SERVICE AND DIRECTORATE PLANS  
Linking operational aims and objectives for services/directorates to resource use.   

Purpose
Strategic

Focus
Broad

Specific

TYPE OF PLAN 

TEAM PLANS 
Operational objectives and activities for teams working within services. 

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
Set out performance objectives and training and development needs for individual staff. 

Operational

Page 198



 - 84 - 

The Executive is responsible for key decisions and comprises a Leader and a Cabinet, who are all appointed by 

the Council. All key decisions required are published in advance in the Executive’s Forward Plan, and will 

generally be discussed in a meeting open to the public. All decisions must be in line with the Council’s overall 

policy and budget framework and any decisions the Executive wishes to take outside of that framework must be 

referred to the Council as a whole to decide. The Council operates a system of delegated authority whereby the 

Executive delegates certain decisions to the Chief Executive and Senior Officers. This is set out in the scheme of 

delegation.  

During 2009/10 the work of the Executive was scrutinised by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and a 

number of Scrutiny Panels. A “call-in” procedure allows Scrutiny to review Executive decisions before they are 

implemented, and to recommend alternative courses of action.  

Codes of Conduct 

The Council has a code of conduct for officers supported by a requirement to make declarations of interest and 

to declare gifts and hospitality. Interests must be declared by officers above a certain grade and those in certain 

decision making and procurement positions. Officers are required generally to decline gifts and hospitality to 

ensure that officers are not inappropriately influenced. These codes and processes are made available to staff at 

their induction, they are on the intranet and training is available to ensure every staff member understands their 

responsibilities.  

Members are required to make declarations of interest when elected and to consider their interests and make 

appropriate declarations at each meeting they attend. Members must also declare any gifts and hospitality. 

Members’ declarations and gifts and hospitality records are made public through the Council’s website. As part 

of the adoption of the new Members’ code a number of protocols were reviewed including the one concerning 

member and officer relationships in 2008/09. The Standards Committee was advised of the change and the 

revisions that were made to the code.  

Compliance with Policies, Procedures, Laws and Regulations 

The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and relevant regulations in the 

performance of its functions. It has developed policies and procedures to ensure that, as far as is reasonably 

possible, all Members and officers understand their responsibilities both to the Council and to the public. These 

include the Constitution, Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures, Codes of Conduct 

and Protocols. Key documents are available to Members and staff through the Council’s intranet and to a wider 

audience through publication on the Council’s website. All policies are subject to periodic review to ensure that 

they remain relevant and reflect changes to legislation and other developments in the environment within which 

the Council operates. 

Effective Audit Committee 

Internal Audit provides assurance and advice on internal control to the Corporate Management Team and 

Members. Internal Audit reviews and evaluates the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of internal control 

within systems and recommends improvements. It also supports the management of the Council in developing 

systems, providing advice on matters pertaining to risk and control.  

Internal Audit is overseen by an Audit Committee comprising seven members - four from the majority group 

and one each from the three largest minority group in proportion to their representation on the Council. The 

Audit Committee’s remit is around the Council’s systems of internal control, risk management and governance, 

as outlined in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Audit Committees. The Audit Committee also reviews audit 

findings and the effectiveness of the internal audit function. Specifically, the core functions of the Audit 

Committee are to consider the annual audit plan and the performance of internal audit; to be satisfied that the 

authority’s annual governance statement properly reflects the risk environment; to demonstrate its fiduciary 

responsibilities in preventing and detecting fraud; to monitor the authority’s risk management framework; to 

meet the accounts and audit regulations in respect of approving the authority’s statement of accounts and to 

consider reports from the Audit Commission. The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 

2009/10 as planned. 

Page 199



 - 85 - 

Whistle Blow and the Complaints Procedure 

The Council has a recognised complaints process. This comprises a number of stages to enable the public to 

escalate their complaints if they are dissatisfied with the answer they receive. Details of complaints are 

monitored by the Monitoring Officer and Members.  

Members also receive enquiries and complaints via their surgeries, walkabouts and question time activities. The 

Council has arrangements to support Members in addressing these queries to ensure that the public receive an 

appropriate answer. 

Within the Council the whistle blowing policy is actively promoted and annually, there are a number of whistle 

blowing events reported. The effectiveness of the policy and the type of issues raised are reviewed and 

monitored by the Council’s Audit Committee on an annual basis. 

Tower Hamlets also participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) a computerised data matching exercise, 

led by the Audit Commission, designed to detect fraud perpetrated on public bodies.  The Corporate Anti Fraud 

team has actively engaged with the Audit Commission to test and improve the output from the NFI exercise. 

Risk Management 

The Authority has embedded a Risk Management Strategy to identify and manage the principal risks to 

achieving its objectives. The Strategy recognises that the Council may not always adopt the least risky option, 

where the potential benefits to the community warrant the acceptance of a higher level of risk.  All reports 

seeking decisions or approval to a proposed course of action contain an assessment of the risk involved.  

Key risks are recorded in corporate and directorate risk registers, which are subject to periodic review and 

reporting to the Corporate Management Team. Directorate Risk Champions oversee the continued development 

of the Council’s approach to risk management. 

Financial Management 

Statutory responsibility for ensuring that there is an effective system of internal financial control rests with the 

Corporate Director of Resources. The system of internal financial control provides reasonable assurance that 

assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or 

irregularities are either prevented or would be detected.  

Internal financial control is based on a well established framework of management information, financial 

regulations and administrative procedures, which include the segregation of duties, management supervision and 

a system of delegation and accountability. Ongoing development and maintenance of the various processes is the 

responsibility of managers within the Council. The control arrangements in 2009/10 included: 

! comprehensive corporate and directorate budgeting systems; 

! an annual budget approved by the Council that reflects strategic priorities; 

! a risk financing strategy; 

! medium-term financial plans and projections; 

! regular reporting of actual expenditure and income against budgets and spending forecasts; 

! targets to measure financial and other performance; 

! clearly defined prudential borrowing framework and indicators; and 

! standing meetings of finance managers from across the Council. 

The Efficient and Effective Use of Resources 

Value for money and continuous improvement are secured through a range of processes, including the 

application of best value principles and the carrying out of best value reviews. During 2009/10, the Council 

continued work on its efficiency programme and has been making plans to manage with significantly reduced 

financial resource in future. As part of its service and financial planning process, the Council set a stretch 

efficiency target and brought performance and perception data into the consideration of resource allocation. The 

Page 200



 - 86 - 

Audit Commission’s most recent assessment for value reported an improvement in the way the Council seeks to 

delivery value for money. 

The strategic planning process ensures that resources are focused on the priorities set out in the Strategic Plan. 

Processes for service and financial planning are aligned and the annual budget process evaluates new 

requirements for resources in terms of their contribution to the objectives of the Strategic Plan. Corporate 

guidance on team planning requires consideration of value for money issues in developing annual objectives. 

Reports concerned with proposed expenditure, reviewing or changing service delivery or the use of resources 

contain an efficiency statement setting out how the proposals will assist towards achieving greater efficiency. 

Learning and Organisational Development 

The Council has a commitment that every member of staff receives an annual appraisal to discuss performance, 

targets and personal development. The Council provides a range of training opportunities for managers and staff 

to ensure that they can deliver excellent public service. These include a Leadership programme, specific training 

relating Recruitment and Selection, Risk Management, and other computer based training.  

Members have a support officer and a development program to keep them up to date with changes and to 

support training needs. Training is supplemented by information through briefings, conferences and weekly 

bulletins. The Audit Committee and Standards Committee have training as part of their agendas and it is 

intended that in future they will agree specific training plans for themselves annually. For some aspects of 

Council work members are required to undertake a period of study and pass a test to ensure they can 

demonstrate appropriate competence, for example the Licensing Committee. 

Communication and Engagement 

The Council publishes numerous documents on its website as well as providing a weekly newspaper, East End 

Life to keep members of the public up to date with what is going on.   

The Council also engages with citizens through surveys such as the annual residents’ survey and a tenants’ 

survey. These help to inform the Council of the population’s opinion on the services provided, their experience 

of services and to influence the Council’s priorities for the future.  

On a more local basis the Council has a number of community forums which are used to engage with the 

community. Tower Hamlets has a greater proportion, compared to the rest of London, of young population and 

has thus engaged with the young people of Tower Hamlets by enabling them to vote for a young Leader of the 

Council. A number of local residents put themselves forward and a vote was held to elect a Leader to represent 

the young people of Tower Hamlets. The young Leader has a clear manifesto and is working to make a 

difference to young people’s lives within the borough. 

The Council’s website is continually being developed to provide more information, enable more services to take 

place electronically and to receive comments from all stakeholders.    

Partnerships

The most significant partnership for the Council is the Tower Hamlets Partnership. The partnership has three 

strands; the eight local area partnerships which allows residents to influence their locality; the Community Plan 

Delivery Groups for each of five key themes in the community plan and the Partnership Executive and Board, 

which has responsibility for developing the overall strategy and for ensuring plans are delivered. The Partnership 

has its own constitution and its Members are also subject to a code of conduct and make declaration of interest at 

meetings. The Tower Hamlets Partnership is responsible for delivering the vision and aspirations for the 

Community in the medium and long term, and the Local Area Agreement (LAA) agreed for the period 2008 - 

2011 includes key targets and indicators following negotiation between The Tower Hamlets Partnership and 

Central Government. 

The Council also has important partnership arrangements with the local primary care trusts. There are also 

partnership arrangements with the Police, Probation and Youth Justice services to help to meet the targets for 

reducing crime and making Tower Hamlets a safer and stronger community.  

Page 201



 - 87 - 

Review of Effectiveness 

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the system of 

internal control. The review was conducted in accordance with the assurance framework and therefore focussed 

on the risks to the fulfilment of the Council’s principal objectives, as set out in the Strategic Plan, and the 

controls in place to manage those risks. The review of the effectiveness of the internal control framework 

involved the evaluation of the key sources of assurance: 

! the Council evaluated its corporate governance arrangements against good practice criteria set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE guidance. The arrangements were found to be sound albeit recommendations were made 

to enhance current arrangements.  

! the annual Head of Audit Opinion expressed the opinion that overall the Council’s system of internal 

control is adequate and effective.  

! the risk management framework, including the corporate and directorate risk registers, provides assurance 

that the key risks to strategic objectives are managed effectively and are monitored by senior officers and 

Members. 

! the Council is subject to a range of external audit and inspection activity both corporately and for individual 

services. The judgements of the external auditors contained in their annual audit letter and other reports 

provide assurance that the Council has a reasonable system of internal control. The independent assessment 

by six inspectorates as part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment identified one notable practice around 

Engaging and Empowering Local People. This measures the extent to which people believe they are able to 

influence decisions affecting their area. The assessment did not identify any significant concerns. The 

results of inspections of individual services continue to show improvements whilst Children’s Services was 

rated as “Performs Excellently” by Ofsted in its report dated February 2010. Adult Social Care Services was 

rated as “Performing Excellently” for Increased Choice and Control for Older People, and as Performing 

Adequately in Safeguarding Adults, also published in February 2010. 

! monitoring of performance shows improvement in performance against external measures, the Council’s 

own targets and in comparison to other authorities.  

! the provisional outturn on the 2009/10 budget shows that the financial management systems and processes 

of the Council succeeded in keeping expenditure within planned limits.  

Overview and Scrutiny 

The Overview and Scrutiny function reviews decisions made by the Cabinet and raises proposals for the Cabinet 

from its annual plan of work. The focus of their role is thus to provide a challenge and to support the 

development of policies. At their meetings they consider performance information. They also have a key role in 

reviewing and challenging the Cabinet’s budget framework prior to consideration at full Council. 

Internal Audit 

Internal audit is an independent appraisal function that acts as a control that measures, evaluates and reports 

upon the effectiveness of the controls in place to manage risks. In carrying out this function Internal Audit 

contributes to the discharge of the Executive Director of Resources’ S151 responsibilities.  

The work of the Internal Audit Section is monitored and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Annually the 

Service Head, Risk Management and Audit is required to give an opinion on the Council’s internal control 

framework based upon the work carried out during the year in the form of an annual report. For 2009/10, the 

overall the control environment is adjudged to be satisfactory. 

External Audit 

The Council’s external auditors, the Audit Commission, review its arrangements for: 

Page 202



 - 88 - 

! preparing accounts in compliance with statutory and other relevant requirements; 

! ensuring the proper conduct of financial affairs and monitoring their adequacy and effectiveness in practice; 

and

! managing performance to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. 

The auditors have in their annual audit letter and their assessment commented upon the Council’s accounts, 

corporate governance and performance management arrangements.  

Significant Governance Issues 

The review of the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in 2009/10 has identified some areas where 

action is appropriate to enhance the control environment and ensure continuous improvement. The areas are set 

out below. In all cases work is already underway to address the action points as shown by the reference to the 

strategic or directorate plan of the Council. 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  

Optimise asset management across public 

services to enable Council assets to be 

utilised in the most effective way. 

In February 2009 Cabinet approved an 

approach to the development of a cross-

public sector asset strategy and phase 1 

will commence on Summer 2009. This 

will involve a gap analysis of all public 

sector property requirements and the 

generation of options to address these 

requirements. This work will be 

undertaken in parallel with the 

development of the Infrastructure Delivery 

Plan for the Core Strategy and it is 

expected the Asset Strategy will be a 

significant part of the Delivery Plan. 

 The Council has broadened membership 

of its Capital and Asset Management 

Board to include the Metropolitan Police 

and NHS Trusts and representatives attend 

meetings quarterly to focus on long term 

asset strategy and other issues of mutual 

interest {Priority 1.2 (6) – Strategic Plan}. 

Corporate

Directors,

Resources and 

Development 

and Renewal 

To further enhance the authority’s Business 

Continuity Plans, particularly in relation to 

disaster recovery. 

The authority has a framework for 

business continuity planning and 

management. However, further 

enhancements will be made to ensure the 

authority can respond to a catastrophic 

disaster and its ability to access all 

essential IT applications { }. 

Corporate

Director,

Resources

Maintain an ongoing drive to deliver decent 

homes standard by ensuring the Council’s 

A mock inspection of the Council’s Arms 

Length Management Organisation (Tower 

Hamlets Homes) is planned for mid June 

Corporate

Director,

Development 

Page 203



 - 89 - 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  

ALMO achieves two stars. 2009. This will allow the ALMO to focus 

key areas. 

From discussions that have taken place 

with the Homes and Community Agency 

and the Department of Communities and 

Local Government, funding for this 

scheme is programmed within their 

financial projections although the funding 

is not fully committed at this stage. The 

authority is also progressing other 

opportunities around regeneration {Priority 

2.1 (15) – Strategic Plan}.  

and Renewal 

To review and ensure the arrangements for 

safeguarding children. 

Following national scrutiny of 

safeguarding issues, and the publication of 

Laming report, the Council has reviewed 

referral and safeguarding arrangements 

with social care and where necessary 

strengthened current arrangements and 

adopt the DCFS / Laming 

recommendations. 

Some key recommendations have already 

been implemented, for example the 

appointment of an independent chair for 

the Safeguarding Board, carrying out audit 

and assurance on cases within Children’s 

Services and enhancing the use of 

Framework I, the Council’s case 

management system. The next steps 

involve implementing all appropriate 

remaining recommendations, in particular, 

assessing potential increase in social 

worker requirements and taking heed of 

further guidance. {Priority 1, Stay Safe, 

CYPP}.

Corporate

Director,

Children 

Services

Improve information governance across the 

authority. 

Following loss of personal data by an 

employee last year, a number of steps were 

taken to militate against future losses and 

to protect the information held by the 

Council. Some of the initiates already 

taken include the use of BIOS passwords. 

A Project is now in place to implement full 

encryption for all mobile devices. This will 

be implemented for the most vulnerable 

devices first and all remaining devices by 

September 2010. {Priority 1.7, point 7 – 

Chief Executive’s Directorate Plan}. 

Assistant Chief 

Executive 

(Legal) 

Page 204



 - 90 - 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  

To model an efficiency programme to take 

account of the likely reduction in revenue 

funding across the public sector. 

The authority has identified a savings 

target of £18m a year for the foreseeable 

future arising from the Government action 

likely to be necessary to tackle the UK's 

public spending deficit.  This is much 

greater than the target in previous years 

and the incremental approach adopted in 

the past does not lend itself to this scale of 

problem. 

The authority has established a Service 

Options Review which will examine the 

strategic opportunities for delivering the 

savings. A clear savings target has been set 

of £55m over the next three years.   

Directorates have been challenged to 

identify savings to the scale required and 

this information has been fed into the 

review. The Review will go on to 

supplement the proposals brought forward 

by Directorates and identify strategic 

savings opportunities, likely to include 

some of a transformational nature, which 

will be governed through the Council's 

Transformation Board.   

{Priority 1.2 (5) Strategic Plan and priority 

8 – Resource’s Directorate Plan}. 

Corporate

Management 

Team 

Directorate operational guidance on contract 

management; retention and filing of contract 

documentation & Unauthorised extension of 

contracts. 

Guidance is already available through the 

contracting toolkit. Work is underway to 

broaden and strengthen our approach and 

this will be submitted to Competition 

Board for approval in September.  A 

proposal for a standard self-assessment 

approach to contract management is 

currently being developed, for approval by 

Competition Board and subsequent roll-out 

across the Council. 

Systems have been improved for recording 

and filing contract documentation.  Work 

is underway with Legal for setting up a 

repository of contract documents. This will 

be finalised by end June 2010. 

Unauthorised contracts have largely been 

addressed through revision of the 

Procurement Procedures in 2009.  The 

updating of the contracts register, which 

will be completed by end May 2010, will 

Corporate

Management 

Team. 

Page 205



 - 91 - 

Governance Issue Action taken and next steps CMT Lead  

provide the assurance to prevent 

unauthorised extensions. 

{Priority 9 – Resource’s Directorate Plan}.  

Termination of Chief Officer’s employment. Responding to the Audit Commission’s 

recommendation the process will be 

clarified by introducing a protocol into the 

Constitution by July 2010.  This makes the 

responsibilities of officers and members 

clear when the termination of a Chief 

Officer's employment is being considered. 

Assistant Chief 

Executive – 

Legal Services 

To review and ensure the delivery of 

additional housing to reduce overcrowding. 

The council is committed to providing 

high quality housing in line with the needs 

of the community. To achieve this, a 

programme is being developed to acquire 

and new build properties to reduce 

overcrowding {Priority 2.1 (1) – Strategic 

Plan}.

Corporate

Director,

Development 

and Renewal. 

We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the governance systems of the 

Council having regard to the sources of assurance set out in this statement, and we are satisfied that the system 

of control is effective.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance 

arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 

our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual 

review. 

……….……….……….……….………. 

Chief Executive 

Date:

……….……….……….……….………. 

Leader

Date:

Page 206



 - 92 - 

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

The following terms and abbreviations, while not being exhaustive, may prove of assistance in understanding the 

Statement of Accounts 

FINANCIAL TERMS

Accounting period - The period of time covered by the Council’s accounts.  The Council’s financial year is 

from the period 1st April to the following 31st March. 

Accrual - The recognition of income and expenditure in the year that they occur and not when any cash is 

received or paid

Actuary - An independent adviser to the Council on the financial position of the Pension Fund.

Actuarial Valuation - Every three years the Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund and 

reports to the Council on the fund’s financial position and recommended employers’ contribution rates.

Accruals - The amounts by which receipts or payments are increased in order to record the full income and

expenditure incurred in an accounting period. 

Amortisation - The writing off of an intangible asset or loan balance to the Income and Expenditure Account 

over an appropriate period of time.

Amortised Cost - The carrying value of an asset or liability in the balance sheet, which has been written up or 

down via the Income and Expenditure Account.

Approved Investments - These are investments, which Local Authorities are permitted to make using their 

unapplied capital and revenue funds. These investments must be in sterling and normally consist of gilts or 

short-term deposits with banks, building societies and other financial institutions. Such investments are treated 

as neither revenue nor capital expenditure.

Balance Sheet - A statement of all the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Council at the end of an 

accounting period.

Budget - A forecast of future expenditure plans for the Council. Detailed revenue budgets are prepared for each 

year and it is on the basis of these figures that the Council Tax is set. Budgets are revised towards the year-end 

to take account of inflation, changes in patterns of services and other factors.

Capital Financing Charges - The annual cost of capital, including principal repayments, interest charges and 

leasing costs.

Capital Expenditure - Expenditure on the acquisition of fixed assets or expenditure which adds to the value of 

an existing fixed asset.

Capital Adjustment Account - Represents amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts to 

finance expenditure on fixed assets or for the repayment of external loans or certain other capital financing 

transactions.

Capital Financing Requirement - Represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.

Capital Receipt - Income received from the sale of a capital asset such as land or buildings.

Capital Receipts Reserve - Represents proceeds of fixed asset sales available to meet future capital investment.

Page 207



 - 93 - 

Carrying Value - In relation to the value of financial instruments, it is the amount to be recognised on the 

Balance Sheet.

Collateral - Assets pledged by a borrower to secure a loan.

Collection Fund - A statutory account which receives Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates and Government 

Grants to cover the costs of services provided by the Council and its precepting authorities.

Community Assets - Assets that a local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful 

life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of Community Assets are parks and historic 

buildings.

Contingent Liability - Where possible “one-off” future liabilities or losses are identified but the level of 

uncertainty is such that the establishment of a provision is not appropriate. 

Creditors - Amount of money owed by the Council for goods and services received.

Credit Risk - The probability that an organisation owing monies to the Council may be unable to honour its 

commitments.

Debtors - Amount of money owed to the Authority by individuals, and organisations.

Deferred Capital Receipts - The balance of outstanding mortgages granted to purchasers of council houses.

Defined Benefit Scheme - A pension scheme which defines benefits independently of the contributions payable. 

Benefits are not directly related to the investments of the Pension Fund.

Depreciation - The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a 

fixed asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes.

Earmarked Reserves - Amounts set aside for a specific purpose to meet future commitments or potential 

liabilities, for which it is not appropriate to establish provisions.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date - Those events that relate to the accounting year, both favourable and 

unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which the Statement of Accounts is 

signed by the Director of Resources.

Fair Value - In relation to the value of financial instruments, it is the amount for which an asset can be 

exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arms length transaction.

Finance Lease - A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to 

the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially all of the 

fair value of the leased asset.

Financial Instrument - Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 

equity instrument of another. 

Financial instrument Adjustment Account - This represents the balance of deferred discounts relating to the 

premature redemption of Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) debt.

Fixed Assets - Tangible assets that yield benefit to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more 

than one year.

General Fund (GF) - The Council’s main revenue account from which is met the cost of providing most of the 

Council’s services.

Government and Other Capital Contributions Deferred - Capital Grants received which will be credited to 

revenue in future years to offset depreciation for related fixed assets.

Page 208



 - 94 - 

Historic Cost - The actual cost of an asset in terms of past consideration as opposed to current value.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - A statutory account maintained separately from the General Fund for the 

recording of income and expenditure relating to the provision of council housing.

Impairment - A reduction in the valuation of a fixed asset caused by consumption of economic benefits or by a 

general fall in prices.

Income and Expenditure Account - A statement showing the expenditure and income of the Council’s services 

during the year demonstrating how costs have been financed from general Government grants and income from 

local taxpayers.

Infrastructure Assets - Assets which have an indeterminate life and although valuable do not have a realisable 

value e.g. roads.

Intangible Assets - Non-financial fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 

controlled by the authority i.e. purchased software licences.

Interest Rate Risk - The uncertainty of interest paid/received on variable rate instruments and the effect of 

fluctuations in interest rates on the fair value of an instrument.

Liquidity Risk - The risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meets its commitments.

Major Repairs Reserve - Represents the funds available to meet capital investment in council housing

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) - The amount that has to be charged to revenue to provide for the 

redemption of debt.  Not applicable to the HRA.

National Non-Domestic Rates Pool (NNDR Pool) - Non-Domestic Rates are paid into a central pool controlled 

by Government. This money is then redistributed to councils on the basis of resident population.

Net Book Value - The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet after depreciation has been 

provided for.

Net Current Replacement Cost - The current cost of replacing or recreating an asset in its existing use adjusted 

for the notional depreciation required to reflect the asset’s existing condition and remaining useful life. 

Net Realisable Value - The open market value of the asset less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.

Non-Operational Assets - Fixed assets held by the Council but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the 

delivery of its services. Examples are investments and surplus properties.

Operating Lease - A lease other than a finance lease - a lease which permits the use of the asset without 

substantially transferring the risks and rewards of ownership.

Operational Assets - Fixed assets held, occupied, used or consumed by the Council in the direct delivery of its 

service.

Outturn - The actual level of expenditure and income for the year.

Precept - The charge made by one Authority (e.g. Greater London Authority) on another Authority (e.g. Tower 

Hamlets) to finance its net expenditure.

Private Finance Initiative - Contracts whereby private sector suppliers provide services and/or capital 

investment in return for a unitary payment; subject to agreed performance targets. 

Projected Unit Method - Actuarial valuation method whose key feature is to assess future service cost; the 

Actuary calculates the employer’s contribution rate, which will meet the cost of benefits accruing in the year 

after the valuation date. 

Page 209



 - 95 - 

Provisions - Amounts set aside for liabilities and losses, which are certain or very likely to occur but where the 

exact amount or timing of the payment are uncertain.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) - Central Government agency which funds much of local government 

borrowing.

Registered Social Landlord - A not-for-profit organisation which owns and manages homes.

Reserves - Amounts set aside which do not fall within the definition of a provision, to fund items of anticipated 

expenditure. These include general reserves or balances which every Council must maintain as a matter of 

prudence.

Revaluation Reserve - Represents the increase in value of the Council’s land and building assets from 1st April 

2007.

Revenue Expenditure - The day-to-day expenditure of the Council - pay, goods and services and capital 

financing charges.

Revenue Support Grant - General grant paid by the Government to local authorities.

Soft Loan - Loans given at less than market/commercial rates to community or not-for-profit organisations.

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance - A Statement that reconciles between the statutory 

provisions that specify the net expenditure that needs to be taken into account when setting local taxes and 

surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account.

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses - A statement bringing together all the gains and losses of 

the Council during the year.

Support Services - Activities of a professional, technical and administrative nature which are not Council 

services in their own right, but support main front line services such as finance, information technology and 

human resources.

Page 210



 - 96 - 

Abbreviations used in Accounts 

ABG Area Based Grant

AGS Annual Governance Statement 

BVACOP Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 

CAA Capital Adjustment Account 

CFR Capital Financing Requirement 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CRR Capital Receipts Reserve 

DCLG Department of Communities and Local Government 

DfE Department for Education 

DSG Dedicated Schools Grant 

DWP Department for Work and Pensions 

EIR Effective Interest Rate 

FRS Financial Reporting Standard 

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GLA Greater London Authority 

HRA Housing Revenue Account 

I & E Income and Expenditure Account 

LABGI Local Authority Business Growth Incentive 

LAML London Authorities Mutual Limited 

LASAAC Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee 

LATS Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 

LBTH London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

LGPS Local Government Pension Scheme 

LOBO Lender’s Option – Borrower’s option 

LPFA London Pensions Fund Authority 

MRA Major Repairs Allowance 

MRP Minimum Revenue Provision 

NPV Net Present Value

(N)NDR (National) Non-Domestic Rates 

PCT Primary Care Trust 

PFI Private Finance Initiative 

PWLB Public Works Loans Board 

RICS Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 

RSG Revenue Support Grant 

SORP Statement of Recommended Practice 

SSAP Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 

STRGL Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses 

WDA Waste Disposal Authority 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 -1- 

COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee

DATE

29th June 2010 

CLASSIFICATION 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 

Chris Naylor – Corporate Director of 
Resources

ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 

Alan Finch – Service Head, Corporate 
Finance

TITLE:

Draft Statement of Accounts 
2009-2010

Ward(s) affected:           N/A 

Special Circumstances and Reasons for Urgency 

!                The report was unavailable for public inspection within the standard timescales set out in the 
Authority’s Constitution, because of continuing work to finalise the treatment of items 
impacted by changes in recommended practice. 

!                 The Corporate Director of Resources recommends that a committee approval of the Draft 
Statement of Accounts is given at this meeting in order to meet the statutory deadline of 30

th

June 2010. 

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This report presents the Authority’s draft Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year ending 31st March 2010, prior to audit.

1.2. It also provides an update on progress towards meeting the 
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Audit Committee is recommended to:- 

2.1 Approve the draft final Statement of Accounts for the financial year 
ending 31st March 2010.

 2.2 Note that the accounts will now be submitted for audit.  

2.3. Note progress towards meeting the International Financial Reporting 
Standard (IFRS).

Page 213



 -2- 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT

Brief description of "background papers" Name and telephone number of holder and 
address where open to inspection 

Closure of Accounts Working Files  Kevin Miles, Ext. 6791 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003 Approval of Accounts  Kevin Miles, Ext. 6791 
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice  Kevin Miles, Ext. 6791 
HRA Closure of Accounts Working Papers  Paul Leeson, Ext. 4995 
Capital Working Papers  Alison Gebbett, Ext. 3360 

Page 214



 -3- 

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The approval of the authority’s Statement of Accounts is subject to a 
two stage process. Firstly, Audit Committee receives and is requested 
to approve the draft Statement of Accounts for submission to the Audit 
Commission. Under statute this must take place on or before 30th June 
2010.

3.2 After the Council’s accounts have been subjected to external audit, the 
auditor will issue his opinion and, providing he finds no reason not to 
do so, his audit certificate. The final accounts must be published by 
30th September each year.

3.3 Under legislation, if there are any material amendments arising as a 
result of the audit, these must be reported back to the Audit 
Committee.

3.4 The auditor is also required to make a report setting out any matters 
that are not material to the accounts but are more than merely trifling. If 
necessary, this report will be made to the Audit Committee at the end 
of September. 

3.5 An important change this year is that for the first time, PFI schemes 
have been brought “on balance sheet” in accordance with changes in 
recommended accounting practice.

4. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009-2010

 4.1 The draft Statement of Accounts is attached to the report as Appendix
1.

4.2 The contents of the accounts are largely determined by statutory 
requirements and mandatory professional standards as set out within 
the “Statement of Recommended Practice” published by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). A summarised 
version of the accounts is published as a leaflet once they are 
approved.

4.3. The Council’s final spending against budgets is reported to the Cabinet 
and this will take place at the meeting of 7th July 2010.

4.4. The accounts are an important aspect of the financial management of 
the Council as they set out the Council’s financial position, including its 
main assets and liabilities on a year-by-year basis as well as 
summarising the transactions of the Council during the year.  The 
accounts influence the Council’s financial plans because balanced 
budgets and sustainable medium term planning depend upon a healthy 
overall financial position.  If an authority finds itself in a position in 
which it needs to set money aside in its accounts to cover existing 
liabilities or future risks, for example, these items are the first call on 
the budget.

Page 215



 -4- 

4.5. The draft accounts provide some important information about the 
Council’s finances which Members will wish to bear in mind.  

Income and Expenditure 
Account (Page 17)

The Income & Expenditure Account 
summarises the revenue activities of the 
Council during 2009/10 and shows the 
day-to-day costs of services provided by 
the Council together with charges made 
to the revenue accounts in respect of the 
use of assets, costs of borrowing and 
income from investments. This includes 
the activities of the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account.  

The draft accounts show that in 2009/10, 
the Council spent £1,297 million on 
services, most of which was funded from 
income which comes in the form of 
specific grants, rents, fees and charges 
for services.  General Fund levels are 
almost unchanged at £27.133 million. 

Any surplus or deficit on the Income and 
Expenditure Account is carried to the 
Statement of Movement on the General 
Fund Balance.

Housing Revenue Account 
(Page 52)

The Housing Revenue Account is a 
separate ring-fenced account showing 
the expenditure and income relating to 
the provision of Social Housing by the 
Council.  

The HRA balance as at 31st March is 
£12.978 million; this was a reduction of 
£10.323 million.  The reduction included 
the use of £4.2 million from Housing 
Choice reserves, £1.95 million of HRA 
balances towards the overcrowding 
strategy and £2.35 million from when the 
budget was set.  The reserve balance of 
£12.978 million is in excess of the 
£12.169 million expected when the 
2010/11 budget was set.

Group Accounts (Pages
61 to 66)

The Group Accounts show the financial 
position of the Council’s ‘Group’- 
comprising the Council itself plus its 
share of any controlled Companies.  The 
Council incorporates Tower Hamlets 
Homes (THH) within its group accounts.
THH is 100% owned by the Council and 

Page 216



 -5- 

does all of its business with the Council. 
For this reason the Group Accounts are 
not substantially different from the 
Council’s own accounts at this stage.  

Reserves & Balances Reserves are those that have 
been set aside to cover a particular risk,
or are ring fenced for particular purposes 
or services. The level of earmarked 
reserves now stands at £98.889m, a 
decrease of £2.976m over the previous 
year. The detail is set out in Note 46 to 
the Accounts (Pages 46 to 48). Most of 
the decrease is explained by application 
of the decent homes reserve.  The 
earmarked reserves are set aside 
against specific risks or approved 
spending.

The level of the General Fund balance 
now stands at £27.133m (Page 
18). This is the amount which is generally
available for use in unforeseen 
circumstances. The amount is being 
held at a relatively high level at the 
moment in view of the risks to the 
authority’s expenditure and income 
arising from the economic downturn and 
the consequential squeeze on public 
spending.

The accounts assume certain transfers to
reserves requested by Directorates 
which have yet to be formally approved, 
and these will be reported in full to the 
Cabinet for approval on 7th July. In the 
event that the Cabinet does not agree to 
these transfers, the accounts will be 
adjusted as part of the audit process 
subject to the auditor’s agreement. 

Balance Sheet  (Page 20) The Balance Sheet shows the various 
assets and liabilities of the Council as at 
31st March 2010. The value of the assets 
of the Council must equal the value of 
liabilities plus reserves.

Assets include land and buildings, 
equipment and vehicles, cash and 
investments held by the Council, and any 
debts owing to the Council.

Liabilities include loans taken out by the 
Council to finance capital expenditure 

Page 217



 -6- 

and any debts owed by the Council.

The net assets of the Council (assets 
less liabilities) were £2.178 billion, which 
was a slight increase from 31st March
2009 when the figure was £2.097 billion. 
The main reason for the increase is that 
fixed asset values have increased. 

The increase in value has no immediate 
impact on the Council but may indicate 
increased opportunities to increase 
income from the disposal of surplus fixed 
assets.

Collection Fund (Page 62) The Collection Fund is a separate 
account detailing local taxes collected by 
the Council on behalf of itself, the 
Greater London Authority (GLA) and the 
Government. The account shows the 
distribution of the amount of Council Tax 
collected between the Council and the 
GLA and the payment of non-domestic 
rates to the Government pool. 

Any surplus on the Fund is distributed 
between the Council and the GLA in 
proportion to their share of tax income 
drawn from the fund, and any deficit is 
similarly distributed.  The Fund shows a 
surplus of just over £6 million in 2009/10.
The additional income collected arises 
from the fact that so far, housing 
completions in Tower Hamlets have been 
affected less than anticipated by the 
recession.

Cash Flow Statement 
(Page 21)

The Cash flow Statement is an 
alternative way of showing the financial 
activity of the Council in terms of 
payments made and received during the 
year.  It gives quite a good idea of the 
scale of the financial operations of the 
Council, showing where its money comes 
from and how it has been spent.

Pension Fund Accounts  
(Pages 71 to 77)

The Pension Fund accounts are separate
from the rest of the Council’s accounts 
and show the expenditure and income, 
assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund 
provided by the Council under legislation 
for the benefit of its employees and 
pensioners, and those of admitted 

Page 218



 -7- 

bodies. They are audited at the same 
time as the Council’s accounts but are 
subject to a separate audit opinion. 
The market value of the assets of fund at 
the end of the year was £752.5m, an 
increase of 33.8% from March 2009 
largely reflecting the market conditions 
affecting investments over the last year.

However the current valuation could 
Impact the next valuation of the Fund, 
which is due in 2010 and sets the 
Council’s contributions to the Fund for 
the following three years. 

The Pensions Fund accounts were also 
considered by the Pensions Committee 
on 10th June.

4.5. The Statement of Accounts also incorporates the Annual Governance 
Statement, which is the subject of a report elsewhere on this agenda.

4.6. Members are now invited to approve the accounts and formally submit 
them to the Audit Commission for audit. The auditor is expected to 
issue his opinion in September. Any material issues arising from the 
audit will be reported back to the Committee. Any immaterial but more 
than merely trifling issues will be reported to the Audit Committee.

5. INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD (IFRS) 

5.1. With effect from the 2010/11 financial year, local authorities will be 
required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).  This replaces the 
existing standards and the Generally Accepted Accounting Code of 
Practice for the UK (UKGAAP).  IFRS, which has applied to Companies 
for some years, has already been introduced in central government 
and the NHS and the purpose is to have a single standard upon which 
all organizations throughout the world are required to report.  Adoption 
is mandatory for local authorities.

5.2. The IFRS introduces many changes to the way results are reported, 
but the main changes which will make a noticeable difference to the 
way information is used are:

- Increasing the level of detail required in reporting the valuation 
of assets.

  - Bringing assets procured through PFI onto the balance sheet.  

- Enhancing the level of information required to be reported on 
leases and contracts.

Page 219



 -8- 

- Providing more information in the accounts which relates back to 
Services and Directorates, so that the performance of budget 
managers will be become clearer from the accounts.

- Increasing the level of reporting required relating to employee 
benefits.

It is understood from experience elsewhere that the changes are likely 
to increase the size of the accounts by about 50%.

5.3. As IFRS is introduced fully in 2010/11, it will be necessary to state the 
current year’s (2009/10) accounts in IFRS terms as well as in 
accordance with existing standards.  The changes relating to the 
treatment of PFI schemes are reflected in the 2009/10 accounts. 

5.4. There is a considerable amount of work involved in progressing 
towards IFRS, which affects most parts of the Council. Consequently a 
project has been set up to address these requirements.    A qualified 
accountant within the Corporate Finance Service has been seconded 
to the role of IFRS Accountant in order to progress the project. The 
Financial Reporting &Technical Excellence Group, which comprises 
senior finance officers from all Directorates, is acting as the project 
board.  The group receives monthly updates. The project began in 
December 2008 and has made good progress so far. 

5.5. Further updates will be provided to the Audit Committee as the project 
proceeds.

6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

6.1 The comments of the chief financial officer are incorporated within this 
report of which he is the author. 

 6.2. There are additional costs incurred in adopting IFRS, both in relation to 
the project and to maintain processes and systems and continue to 
report on the new basis. These will need to be contained within existing 
resources.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

 7.1 There are no specific risk management implications. 

8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

 8.1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 specify the process by 
which the authority's accounts are initially approved and then examined 
by the external auditor. This process and the dates by which the 
various stages have to be achieved are set out in paragraph 3 of the 
report and are binding on the authority. 

Page 220



 -9- 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

 9.1 The Statement of Accounts is a single statement of the financial 
position of the whole Council which is potentially of interest to all 
individuals and organisations which have dealings with the Council. 

 9.2. The statements are published on the Council’s website both in draft 
and in audited form.  Interested parties have the right to inspect the 
accounts during the audit and local electors have the right to submit 
questions to the auditor.  Details of these rights are published in local 
newspapers at appropriate stages.

10. ANTI-POVERTY CONSIDERATIONS

 10.1 There are no specific anti-poverty implications arising out of this report. 

11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
(SAGE)

 11.1 There are no SAGE implications arising out of this report.

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

COMMITTEE: 
 

Audit 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

29 June 2010 
CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 
REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Oladapo Shonola, Chief Financial 
Strategy Officer 

TITLE: 
Treasury Management Activity for 
Period Ending 31 May 2010 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1 This report advises the Committee of treasury management activity for the current 

financial year up to 31 May 2010 as required by the Local Government Act 2003.  
1.2 The report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate Director of 

Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the projected 
investment returns. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report. 
3 REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and the Local Authorities (Capital Financing and 

Accounting) Regulations 2003 requires that regular reports be submitted to 
Council/Committee detailing the council’s treasury management activities. 

3.2 The regular reporting of treasury management activities should assist in ensuring that 
Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions and monitor progress on 
implementation of investment strategy as approved by Full Council. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
4.1 The Council is bound by legislation to have regard to the Treasury Management 

(TM) Code. The Code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council 
(Audit Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury 
management activities. 

4.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to be 
some good reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such reason, 
having regard to the need to ensure that Members are kept informed about 
treasury management activities and to ensure that these activities are in line with 
the investment strategy approved by the Council 

Lead Member Cllr David Edgar –  Resources 
Community Plan Theme All 
Strategic Priority One Tower Hamlets 

Agenda Item 74

Page 223



 2 

5 BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulation 2003 

requires local authorities to have regard to the TM Code. The TM code requires that 
the Council or a sub-committee of the Council (Audit Committee) should receive 
regular monitoring reports on treasury management activities and risks. 

 
5.2 These reports are in addition to the mid-year and annual treasury management activity 

reports that should be presented to Council midway through the financial year and at 
year end respectively. 

 
5.3 This report details the current credit criteria/risk level adopted by the Corporate 

Director of Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the 
projected investment returns. 

 
6.   TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD 1 April to 31 May 2010 
 6.1 This section of the report sets out: 

• The current credit criteria being operated by the Council. 
• The treasury investment strategy for the current financial year and the progress 

in implementing this. 
• The transactions undertaken in the period and the investment portfolio 

outstanding as at 31 May 2010. 
 
7 CREDIT CRITERIA 
7.1 The following credit criteria for investment counterparties were established by the 

Council in February 2010 as part of the budget setting exercise. Explanation of credit 
ratings criteria is attached at Appendix I. 

 
Institution Minimum High 

Credit Criteria 
Use 

Debt Management Office (DMO) Deposit 
Facility 

Not applicable In-house 

Term deposits – Other Local Authorities  Not applicable In-house 
Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Short-term F1+,  
Long-term AA- 

In-house  
Institutions with Government guarantee 
on ALL deposits by high credit rated 
(sovereign rating) countries. 

Sovereign rating In-house  

Institutions with UK Government support. Sovereign rating In-house  
Collective Investment Schemes 
structured as Open Ended Investment 
Companies (OEICs) 

 

Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated In-house 
 

Page 224



 3 

8 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
8.1 Sector provides cash management services to the Council, but the Council retains 

control of the credit criteria and the investments, so that Sector’s role is purely 
advisory. 

8.2 In addition to provide cash management services, Sector also provides treasury 
consultancy/advisory service to the Council. 

8.3 Sector’s interest rate projections are that base rate will remain static at 0.5% for the 
current financial year with no movement in rates until we are well into Q4 of 2010. 
Against this macro-economic perspective Sector has developed a strategy which 
delivers enhanced performance through maximising the investment term of the 
portfolio. This will enable the portfolio to obtain exposure to the higher rates associated 
with investment in the longer term.  

8.4 Sector initially calculated that the Council will have an effective investment balance of 
£100million for 2010-11.  However, this is likely to be revised upwards, but average 
balances will vary through the year.  

8.5 The current balance of £155.3M reflects an increase in balances due to business 
rates collection in the early part of the financial year and funds that are as yet 
unspent but have been earmarked to fund the 2010-11 capital programme. It is 
envisaged that the cash balance will reduce in the medium term especially toward 
the end of the financial year.  

8.6 The Council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank plc, are used as depositors of last 
resort for investment of additional funds received after the treasury transactions 
have been completed and the money markets have closed. 

8.7 The current investment strategy within the constraints of the Councils credit criteria and 
liquidity requirement is as set out below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 225



 4 

Investment Strategy 
 

Projection Actual Deal 
Term Amount £M Rate % Counterparty Maturity Amount £M Rate 
Overnight 10.000 0.80% Santander UK Call 10.000 0.80% 

Overnight  10.000 0.75% Clydesdale 
Bank plc 

Call 24.536 0.75% 

Overnight   0.80%  Alliance & 
Leicester 

Call 0    

Overnight   0.75% Bank of 
Scotland plc 

Call 20.000 0.75% 

Overnight  0.25% Debt Mgt 
Office (DMO) 

01 June 2010 11.750 0.25% 

      SUB TOTAL   66.286   
              
1 Month 5.000 0.45% Bristol City 

Council  
21 June 
2010  

5.000  0.28%  
              
2 Months           
              
3 Months 20.000 0.85%  Stirling 

Council 
 26 July 2010 4.000  0.30%  

              
6 Months 20.000 0.99% Royal Bank of 

Scotland 
10 November 

2010 
25.000 0.92% 

      Nationwide 15 July 2010 5.000 0.79% 
       Nationwide 15 October 

2010  
5.000 0.85%  

       
9 Months 15.000 1.30% Nationwide 10 January 

2011 
10.000 1.02% 

      Nationwide 30 July 2010 5.000 0.99% 
   Barclays 10 February 

2011 
10.000 1.15 

              
12 Months 20.000 2.00% Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
14 May 2011 5.000 1.50% 

      Lloyds 12 August 
2010 

5.000 1.82% 
      Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
13 January 

2011 
5.000 2.20% 

      Cater Allen 
(Santander) 

11 April 2011 3.000 2.20% 

   Cater Allen 
(Santander) 

14 May 2011 2.000 2.10% 

      SUB TOTAL   84.000   
              
  £100.000   TOTAL   £155.286   

 
 
 
 

Page 226



 5 

9 2009-10 OUTTURN 
9.1 The average cash balance as at 31 March 2010 was £83.1m. Balances had been 

depleted due to the lack of business rates collection in the latter part of the year 
and also the reduction in council tax payments too, so dip was expected. 

9.2 At 1.51% (1.83% if you exclude call account deposits) return on investments was 
solid in 2009-10. This outperforms LIBID by 1.07% and the portfolio benchmark by 
0.26%. 

9.3 Although portfolio performance was good, return on investment was affected by 
the amount of funds deposited in call account/less than one month deals. These 
short term deposits, although necessary to ensure liquidity during the latter part of 
the financial year when cash inflows to the Council is much reduced, affected the 
average interest of the portfolio and consequently the overall portfolio 
performance. 

 
10 INVESTMENT RETURNS 
10.1 Investment returns since inception of the new arrangement with Sector has been 

consistently above the portfolio benchmark and the London Interbank Bid Rate 
(LIBID). This performance continued into the first quarter of 2010, but there has 
been a slight tailing off in Q2 of 2010.  

10.2 As at 31 May the average return on investment stood at 0.93%. Although this is 
below the benchmark of 1.25%, it is above the LIBID by 0.47% and represents 
good performance given the issues around level of additional funds that need to 
be invested under the current investment strategy. 

10.3 The dip in returns is due to the maturity of high returning deposits. These 
favourable rates are no longer available so maturing deposits have had to be 
invested at lower rates than before.   

10.4 Other factors affecting average return on investment include the increase in 
available for investment cash balances and the contraction in counterparty list due 
to stricter counterparty criteria. Consequently, a higher than envisaged percentage 
of the portfolio has had to be placed with DMO at low rates of return of 0.25%. 

10.5 Officers are reviewing all available options within the boundaries of the strategy to 
ensure that returns are maximised and are in the process of opening Money 
Market Fund accounts to facilitate short term placement of funds to boost 
performance. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1. The comments of the Corporate Director Resources have been incorporated into 

the report. 
 
11 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
 
11.1  The Committee is asked to note the information in the report concerning the 

Councils treasury transactions undertaken by the Corporate Director of resources 
under delegated powers. 

 
 

Page 227



 6 

12. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
12.1 Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed significantly towards 

the budget.  
 
 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
13.1 There are no Sustainable Actions for A Greener Environment implications. 
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
14.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. To minimise risk the 

investment strategy has restricted exposure of council cash balances to UK backed 
banks or institutions with the highest short term rating or strong long term rating. 

 
15 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
15.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report. 
16 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
16.1 Monitoring and reporting of treasury management activities ensures the Council 

optimises the use of its monetary resources within the constraints placed on the 
Council by statute, appropriate management of risk and operational requirements. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

Directorate Submissions  Oladapo Shonola   Ext.  4733 
Mulberry Place, 4th Floor. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 228



 7 

 
Appendix 1: Definition of Credit Ratings  
 
 
Support Ratings 
 
Rating  
1 A bank for which there is an extremely high probability of external 

support. The potential provider of support is very highly rated in its 
own right and has a very high propensity to support the bank in 
question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term 
rating floor of 'A-'. 

2 A bank for which there is a high probability of external support.  The 
potential provider of support is highly rated in its own right and has a 
high propensity to provide support to the bank in question. This 
probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 
'BBB-'. 

3 A bank for which there is a moderate probability of support because 
of uncertainties about the ability or propensity of the potential 
provider of support to do so. This probability of support indicates a 
minimum Long-term rating floor of 'BB-'. 
 

4 A bank for which there is a limited probability of support because of 
significant uncertainties about the ability or propensity of any 
possible provider of support to do so. This probability of support 
indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 'B'. 
 

5 A bank for which external support, although possible, cannot be 
relied upon. This may be due to a lack of propensity to provide 
support or to very weak financial ability to do so. This probability of 
support indicates a Long-term rating floor no higher than 'B-' and in 
many cases no floor at all. 

 
Short-term Ratings 
 
Rating  
F1 Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely 

payment of financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote 
any exceptionally strong credit feature. 

F2 Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in 
the case of the higher ratings. 

F3 Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments is adequate; however, near-term adverse changes 
could result in a reduction to non-investment grade. 

 

Page 229



 8 

 
Long-term Ratings 
 
Rating Current Definition (August 2003) 
AAA Highest credit quality. 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation 

of credit risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity 
is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events. 

AA Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote a very low 
expectation of credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for 
timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not 
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events. 

A High credit quality. 'A' ratings denote a low expectation of credit 
risk. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is 
considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more 
vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic conditions 
than is the case for higher ratings. 

BBB Good credit quality. 'BBB' ratings indicate that there is currently a 
low expectation of credit risk. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered adequate, but adverse changes 
in circumstances and in economic conditions are more likely to 
impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment-grade category 

 
Individual Ratings 
 
Rating  
A A very strong bank. Characteristics may include outstanding 

profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

B A strong bank. There are no major concerns regarding the bank. 
Characteristics may include strong profitability and balance sheet 
integrity, franchise, management, operating environment or 
prospects 

C An adequate bank, which, however, possesses one or more 
troublesome aspects. There may be some concerns regarding its 
profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

D A bank, which has weaknesses of internal and/or external origin. 
There are concerns regarding its profitability, substance and 
resilience, balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. Banks in emerging markets are 
necessarily faced with a greater number of potential deficiencies of 
external origin. 

E A bank with very serious problems, which either requires or is likely 
to require external support. 

 

Page 230



 1 

COMMITTEE: 
 

Audit 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

29 June 2010 
CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 
REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Oladapo Shonola, Chief Financial 
Strategy Officer 

TITLE: 
Treasury Management Activity for 
Period Ending 31 May 2010 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1 This report advises the Committee of treasury management activity for the current 

financial year up to 31 May 2010 as required by the Local Government Act 2003.  
1.2 The report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate Director of 

Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the projected 
investment returns. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report. 
3 REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and the Local Authorities (Capital Financing and 

Accounting) Regulations 2003 requires that regular reports be submitted to 
Council/Committee detailing the council’s treasury management activities. 

3.2 The regular reporting of treasury management activities should assist in ensuring that 
Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions and monitor progress on 
implementation of investment strategy as approved by Full Council. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
4.1 The Council is bound by legislation to have regard to the Treasury Management 

(TM) Code. The Code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council 
(Audit Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury 
management activities. 

4.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to be 
some good reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such reason, 
having regard to the need to ensure that Members are kept informed about 
treasury management activities and to ensure that these activities are in line with 
the investment strategy approved by the Council 

Lead Member Cllr David Edgar –  Resources 
Community Plan Theme All 
Strategic Priority One Tower Hamlets 

Page 231



 2 

5 BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulation 2003 

requires local authorities to have regard to the TM Code. The TM code requires that 
the Council or a sub-committee of the Council (Audit Committee) should receive 
regular monitoring reports on treasury management activities and risks. 

 
5.2 These reports are in addition to the mid-year and annual treasury management activity 

reports that should be presented to Council midway through the financial year and at 
year end respectively. 

 
5.3 This report details the current credit criteria/risk level adopted by the Corporate 

Director of Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the 
projected investment returns. 

 
6.   TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD 1 April to 31 May 2010 
 6.1 This section of the report sets out: 

• The current credit criteria being operated by the Council. 
• The treasury investment strategy for the current financial year and the progress 

in implementing this. 
• The transactions undertaken in the period and the investment portfolio 

outstanding as at 31 May 2010. 
 
7 CREDIT CRITERIA 
7.1 The following credit criteria for investment counterparties were established by the 

Council in February 2010 as part of the budget setting exercise. Explanation of credit 
ratings criteria is attached at Appendix I. 

 
Institution Minimum High 

Credit Criteria 
Use 

Debt Management Office (DMO) Deposit 
Facility 

Not applicable In-house 

Term deposits – Other Local Authorities  Not applicable In-house 
Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Short-term F1+,  
Long-term AA- 

In-house  
Institutions with Government guarantee 
on ALL deposits by high credit rated 
(sovereign rating) countries. 

Sovereign rating In-house  

Institutions with UK Government support. Sovereign rating In-house  
Collective Investment Schemes 
structured as Open Ended Investment 
Companies (OEICs) 

 

Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated In-house 
 

Page 232



 3 

8 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
8.1 Sector provides cash management services to the Council, but the Council retains 

control of the credit criteria and the investments, so that Sector’s role is purely 
advisory. 

8.2 In addition to provide cash management services, Sector also provides treasury 
consultancy/advisory service to the Council. 

8.3 Sector’s interest rate projections are that base rate will remain static at 0.5% for the 
current financial year with no movement in rates until we are well into Q4 of 2010. 
Against this macro-economic perspective Sector has developed a strategy which 
delivers enhanced performance through maximising the investment term of the 
portfolio. This will enable the portfolio to obtain exposure to the higher rates associated 
with investment in the longer term.  

8.4 Sector initially calculated that the Council will have an effective investment balance of 
£100million for 2010-11.  However, this is likely to be revised upwards, but average 
balances will vary through the year.  

8.5 The current balance of £155.3M reflects an increase in balances due to business 
rates collection in the early part of the financial year and funds that are as yet 
unspent but have been earmarked to fund the 2010-11 capital programme. It is 
envisaged that the cash balance will reduce in the medium term especially toward 
the end of the financial year.  

8.6 The Council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank plc, are used as depositors of last 
resort for investment of additional funds received after the treasury transactions 
have been completed and the money markets have closed. 

8.7 The current investment strategy within the constraints of the Councils credit criteria and 
liquidity requirement is as set out below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 233



 4 

Investment Strategy 
 

Projection Actual Deal 
Term Amount £M Rate % Counterparty Maturity Amount £M Rate 
Overnight 10.000 0.80% Santander UK Call 10.000 0.80% 

Overnight  10.000 0.75% Clydesdale 
Bank plc 

Call 24.536 0.75% 

Overnight   0.80%  Alliance & 
Leicester 

Call 0    

Overnight   0.75% Bank of 
Scotland plc 

Call 20.000 0.75% 

Overnight  0.25% Debt Mgt 
Office (DMO) 

01 June 2010 11.750 0.25% 

      SUB TOTAL   66.286   
              
1 Month 5.000 0.45% Bristol City 

Council  
21 June 
2010  

5.000  0.28%  
              
2 Months           
              
3 Months 20.000 0.85%  Stirling 

Council 
 26 July 2010 4.000  0.30%  

              
6 Months 20.000 0.99% Royal Bank of 

Scotland 
10 November 

2010 
25.000 0.92% 

      Nationwide 15 July 2010 5.000 0.79% 
       Nationwide 15 October 

2010  
5.000 0.85%  

       
9 Months 15.000 1.30% Nationwide 10 January 

2011 
10.000 1.02% 

      Nationwide 30 July 2010 5.000 0.99% 
   Barclays 10 February 

2011 
10.000 1.15 

              
12 Months 20.000 2.00% Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
14 May 2011 5.000 1.50% 

      Lloyds 12 August 
2010 

5.000 1.82% 
      Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
13 January 

2011 
5.000 2.20% 

      Cater Allen 
(Santander) 

11 April 2011 3.000 2.20% 

   Cater Allen 
(Santander) 

14 May 2011 2.000 2.10% 

      SUB TOTAL   84.000   
              
  £100.000   TOTAL   £155.286   

 
 
 
 

Page 234



 5 

9 2009-10 OUTTURN 
9.1 The average cash balance as at 31 March 2010 was £83.1m. Balances had been 

depleted due to the lack of business rates collection in the latter part of the year 
and also the reduction in council tax payments too, so dip was expected. 

9.2 At 1.51% (1.83% if you exclude call account deposits) return on investments was 
solid in 2009-10. This outperforms LIBID by 1.07% and the portfolio benchmark by 
0.26%. 

9.3 Although portfolio performance was good, return on investment was affected by 
the amount of funds deposited in call account/less than one month deals. These 
short term deposits, although necessary to ensure liquidity during the latter part of 
the financial year when cash inflows to the Council is much reduced, affected the 
average interest of the portfolio and consequently the overall portfolio 
performance. 

 
10 INVESTMENT RETURNS 
10.1 Investment returns since inception of the new arrangement with Sector has been 

consistently above the portfolio benchmark and the London Interbank Bid Rate 
(LIBID). This performance continued into the first quarter of 2010, but there has 
been a slight tailing off in Q2 of 2010.  

10.2 As at 31 May the average return on investment stood at 0.93%. Although this is 
below the benchmark of 1.25%, it is above the LIBID by 0.47% and represents 
good performance given the issues around level of additional funds that need to 
be invested under the current investment strategy. 

10.3 The dip in returns is due to the maturity of high returning deposits. These 
favourable rates are no longer available so maturing deposits have had to be 
invested at lower rates than before.   

10.4 Other factors affecting average return on investment include the increase in 
available for investment cash balances and the contraction in counterparty list due 
to stricter counterparty criteria. Consequently, a higher than envisaged percentage 
of the portfolio has had to be placed with DMO at low rates of return of 0.25%. 

10.5 Officers are reviewing all available options within the boundaries of the strategy to 
ensure that returns are maximised and are in the process of opening Money 
Market Fund accounts to facilitate short term placement of funds to boost 
performance. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1. The comments of the Corporate Director Resources have been incorporated into 

the report. 
 
11 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
 
11.1  The Committee is asked to note the information in the report concerning the 

Councils treasury transactions undertaken by the Corporate Director of resources 
under delegated powers. 

 
 

Page 235



 6 

12. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
12.1 Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed significantly towards 

the budget.  
 
 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
13.1 There are no Sustainable Actions for A Greener Environment implications. 
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
14.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. To minimise risk the 

investment strategy has restricted exposure of council cash balances to UK backed 
banks or institutions with the highest short term rating or strong long term rating. 

 
15 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
15.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report. 
16 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
16.1 Monitoring and reporting of treasury management activities ensures the Council 

optimises the use of its monetary resources within the constraints placed on the 
Council by statute, appropriate management of risk and operational requirements. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

Directorate Submissions  Oladapo Shonola   Ext.  4733 
Mulberry Place, 4th Floor. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 236



 7 

 
Appendix 1: Definition of Credit Ratings  
 
 
Support Ratings 
 
Rating  
1 A bank for which there is an extremely high probability of external 

support. The potential provider of support is very highly rated in its 
own right and has a very high propensity to support the bank in 
question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term 
rating floor of 'A-'. 

2 A bank for which there is a high probability of external support.  The 
potential provider of support is highly rated in its own right and has a 
high propensity to provide support to the bank in question. This 
probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 
'BBB-'. 

3 A bank for which there is a moderate probability of support because 
of uncertainties about the ability or propensity of the potential 
provider of support to do so. This probability of support indicates a 
minimum Long-term rating floor of 'BB-'. 
 

4 A bank for which there is a limited probability of support because of 
significant uncertainties about the ability or propensity of any 
possible provider of support to do so. This probability of support 
indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 'B'. 
 

5 A bank for which external support, although possible, cannot be 
relied upon. This may be due to a lack of propensity to provide 
support or to very weak financial ability to do so. This probability of 
support indicates a Long-term rating floor no higher than 'B-' and in 
many cases no floor at all. 

 
Short-term Ratings 
 
Rating  
F1 Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely 

payment of financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote 
any exceptionally strong credit feature. 

F2 Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in 
the case of the higher ratings. 

F3 Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments is adequate; however, near-term adverse changes 
could result in a reduction to non-investment grade. 

 

Page 237



 8 

 
Long-term Ratings 
 
Rating Current Definition (August 2003) 
AAA Highest credit quality. 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation 

of credit risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity 
is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events. 

AA Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote a very low 
expectation of credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for 
timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not 
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events. 

A High credit quality. 'A' ratings denote a low expectation of credit 
risk. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is 
considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more 
vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic conditions 
than is the case for higher ratings. 

BBB Good credit quality. 'BBB' ratings indicate that there is currently a 
low expectation of credit risk. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered adequate, but adverse changes 
in circumstances and in economic conditions are more likely to 
impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment-grade category 

 
Individual Ratings 
 
Rating  
A A very strong bank. Characteristics may include outstanding 

profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

B A strong bank. There are no major concerns regarding the bank. 
Characteristics may include strong profitability and balance sheet 
integrity, franchise, management, operating environment or 
prospects 

C An adequate bank, which, however, possesses one or more 
troublesome aspects. There may be some concerns regarding its 
profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

D A bank, which has weaknesses of internal and/or external origin. 
There are concerns regarding its profitability, substance and 
resilience, balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. Banks in emerging markets are 
necessarily faced with a greater number of potential deficiencies of 
external origin. 

E A bank with very serious problems, which either requires or is likely 
to require external support. 

 

Page 238


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5 AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP
	TofR Audit Appendix 1
	TofR  Audit Appendix 2
	TofR Audit Appendix 3

	61 Annual Audit Letter 2008/09
	62 Progress Report June 2010
	71 Internal Audit Annual Report 2009/10
	72 Annual Governance Statement 2009/10
	73 Draft Statement of Accounts 2009/10
	Statement of Accounts Report Audit Committee 29 June 10

	74 Treasury Management Activity for Period Ending 31 May 2010
	31-05-10 TM REPORT


